
 TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
REGULAR  MEETING 

AGENDA 
 

 

Public Works Transportation Division 1947 Center Street, 4th  Floor, Berkeley, CA 94704 
Tel: 510.981-7010   TDD: 510-981-6347  Fax: 510.981-7060 

 

Willow Room Thursday 
City Corporation Yard, Building A January 17, 2019 
1326 Allston Way 7:00 PM 
Berkeley, CA 94702  

A. PRELIMINARY BUSINESS 
1. Call to Order by Vice-Chair Humbert 
2. Roll Call 
3. Public Comment on items not on the Agenda 
4. Approval of Draft Action Minutes of October 18, 2018*  
5. Approval and Order of Agenda 
6. Update on Administration/Staff  
7. Announcements 

 

B. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS   * Written material included in packet   ** Written material to be 

delivered at meeting   *** Written material previously mailed 

The public may speak at the beginning of any item. 
1. Measure T-1 Update***  

Material provided in 11/15/18 packet and 1/17 web packet 

Presentation by T-1 Staff (Elmar Kapfer, Facilities Manager) 
 Discussion, Q&A, comments to T-1 Staff 
 Secretary Javandel 
 

2. Pedestrian Plan Update*** (Carried over from 10/18)  
Material provided in 11/15/18 packet and 1/17 web packet 

Presentation, discussion and comments on existing conditions and  
scope of Ped Plan 

 Report from subcommittee (Ghosh, Humbert, Zander) 
Staff (Beth Thomas, Principal Planner) 
 

3. Election of Officers *  
a. Discussion and adoption of nomination process  
b. Consider opening nominations for February election 

 
4. Adopt 2019 Regular Meeting Schedule* 

Note: 2019 Meetings will be held in the Willow Room, Building A, at the 
Corporation Yard during remodel of North Berkeley Senior Center 
Vice Chair Humbert 

  
5. Stop Sign Warrants (Carried over from 10/18) 

Update from Subcommittee  (Greene, Oxley, Parolek)  
Discussion and possible action 
Vice Chair Humbert 

 



Transportation Commission Agenda 
Thursday, January 17, 2019 

2 

 

6. Transportation Commission Mission Statement* 
Discussion and possible recommendation to amend Council Resolution No. 55751 
Vice Chair Humbert 
 

7. Work Plan Review and Prioritization* (Carried over from 10/18) 
Discussion and possible action to revise FY 2019 Work Plan,  
considering 

 Addition of Council referrals e.g. Traffic Circles (12/11/18, Item 20), Fossil 
Fuel Free Berkeley (6/12/18, Item 30)  and Ordinance Restricting Number of 
Vehicles Parked on the street (2/27/18, Item 9),  Create Incentives for 
sustainable transportation (11/27/18 Item 30), Research equitable exchange 
with TNCs (11/27 Item 33) 

 Priorities and limits to resource capacity  

 Staff (Secretary Javandel) updates on Strategic Plan (ref 12/6/18 item 3: 
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/City_Council
__12-06-2018_-_Special_Meeting_Agenda.aspx  and Council prioritized 
referrals, of which Vision Zero is top priority:. (ref 6/12/18 Special item1: 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/City_Counc
il__06-12-2018_-_Special_Meeting_Agenda.aspx  

Vice-Chair Humbert 
 

8. Subcommittee Appointments, Assignments*  
a. Appoint Liaison to attend Traffic Circle Working Group 
b. Establish (or re-establish) Ad Hoc Subcommittees and assignments as 

needed to advance work plan priorities in 2019 
c. Other appointments or assignments as needed 

Vice Chair Humbert 
C. INFORMATION ITEMS AND SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

Information items can be moved to Discussion or Action by majority vote of the TC. 
1. Subcommittee Reports: Verbal Reports from Subcommittees and Liaisons  
2. Council Summary Actions 2018* (Full version in web packet) 
3. Link to Council and Agenda Committee Agendas and Minutes 

http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/citycouncil/ 
4. I-80-Gilman Interchange Improvement Project* 
5. Link to 2018 Edition of Commissioners Manual 

D. COMMUNICATIONS 
Received at 10/18 meeting and posted in 11/15 online agenda:  

1. R. DelRosario  Map: AC Transit Bus Network – Berkeley 

2. Joan Guilford –traffic calming on LeConte 
3. Anonymous –Separated bikeway on Hearst Repaving project  

Received since 10/18 meeting: 
4. City Survey on Electric Vehicle Roadmap*** 

https://www.opentownhall.com/portals/257/Issue_7014?cookies=detect  
 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/City_Council__12-06-2018_-_Special_Meeting_Agenda.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/City_Council__12-06-2018_-_Special_Meeting_Agenda.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/City_Council__06-12-2018_-_Special_Meeting_Agenda.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/City_Council__06-12-2018_-_Special_Meeting_Agenda.aspx
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/citycouncil/
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_Commissions/Commissioners%20Manual%20ADOPTED%206-12-2018%20v2.pdf
https://www.opentownhall.com/portals/257/Issue_7014?cookies=detect


Transportation Commission Agenda 
Thursday, January 17, 2019 

3 

 

E.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS        
Ashby/Hwy 13 Corridor Projects Update - Feb One Way CarShare Update - Feb 
Election of Officers - Feb Vision Zero Policy Recommendations 
Adopt FY 2020 Work Plan - June  

F. ADJOURNMENT         
Agenda Posted: January 11, 2019 

A complete agenda packet is available for public review at the Main Branch Library and at the 
Transportation Division front desk. 
 

ADA Disclaimer 

 This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request a 

disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids 
or services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6418 (V) or 981-
6347 (TDD) at least three business days before the meeting date.  Please refrain from 
wearing scented products to this meeting.  
Communications Disclaimer 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and 
will become part of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s 
website.  Please note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact 
information are not required, but if included in any communication to a City 
board, commission or committee, will become part of the public record.  If you do 
not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you 
may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the 
relevant board, commission or committee.  If you do not want your contact information 
included in the public record, please do not include that information in your 
communication.  Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, commission or 
committee for further information. 
 
Commission Secretary: Farid Javandel, Transportation Division Manager, 1947 
Center St., 4th Floor, Berkeley, CA, 94704, Telephone (510) 981-7061, Fax: (510) 981-
7060 TDD: (510) 981-6347  email: Fjavandel@ci.berkeley.ca.us   

mailto:Fjavandel@ci.berkeley.ca.us


A-4  

1947 Center Street, 4th  Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7010    TDD: 510.981.6347    Fax: 510.981.7060 
E-mail: transportation@cityofberkeley.info 

 
 

DRAFT ACTION MINUTES 
Transportation Commission 

Regular Meeting 
October 18, 2018 

North Berkeley Senior Center                                     
1901 Hearst Avenue (at MLK)       
Berkeley, CA 

 

A. PRELIMINARY BUSINESS 
 1.  Call to Order  
      Meeting called to order by Chair Thomas at 7:04 PM 

2. Roll Call 
Commissioners Present: Anthony Bruzzone (Arr. 7:15), Barnali Ghosh, Beverly Greene, Mark 

Humbert, Donald Lathbury, Nicholas Oxley, Ghanya Thomas, Sofia Zander 
Commissioners Absent: Karen Parolek (L/A) 

Staff Present: Farid Javandel, Kamala Parks, Beth Thomas, Tamlyn Bright 
Guest:  Robert del Rosario, AC Transit Planner 

3. Public Comment on items not on the Agenda : 5 speakers 
4. Approval of Draft Minutes 

Action: It was M/S (Zander/Humbert) to approve the draft action Minutes of 
September 20, 2018, amending the action for Item B.1 to read: “…Staff to 
communicate with AC Transit about potential changes to line 52 on Cedar.” 
Ayes: Ghosh, Greene, Humbert, Oxley, Thomas, Zander Noes: None Abstain: 
Lathbury   Absent: Bruzzone 

5. Approval and Order of Agenda  - No change 
6. Update on Administration/Staff 
7. Announcements  

 
B.  DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS       

1. General Discussion with representative from AC Transit  
Robert DelRosario provided a map of AC Transit routes in Berkeley, discussed AC 
Transit service route objectives, and responded to questions. 
Speakers: 1   No action. 

  
2. One-Way Car Share Update 

Speakers: 1  
Discussion only. Staff will return to the Commission in February 
 
Action: It was M/S/C (Bruzzone/Ghosh) to extend the meeting to 10:00 PM 
Unanimous; motion carried 
 

3. T-1 Bond Projects at Adeline and Hearst  
Staff Presentation by Beth Thomas, Principal Planner: Protected Bikeway Concepts 
for inclusion in upcoming paving projects 
Speakers: 6 
Action: It was M/S/C (Bruzzone/Zander) to extend the meeting to 10:10 pm. 
Unanimous. Motion Carried 



Transportation Commission Minutes 
Thursday, October 18, 2018 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Action: It was M/S/C (Bruzzone/Zander) to carry over the remaining items (B-4 
through B-8) to the November 15 meeting. Unanimous. Motion  carried. 
Action: It was M/S (Bruzzone/Zander) that the Transportation Commission endorse 
the two concept plans as presented and encourages staff to continue the process. 
Unanimous.  Motion carried. 

4. Pedestrian Plan Update - carried over to 11/15/18 
5. Stop Sign Warrants - carried over to 11/15/18 
6. Transportation Commission Mission Statement- carried over to 11/15/18 
7. Work Plan Update - carried over to 11/15/18 
8. Subcommittee Appointments - carried over to 11/15/18 

 
C. INFORMATION ITEMS AND SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

1. Subcommittee Reports (Verbal reports from Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Subcommittees and Liaisons to PWC, COD, and goBerkeley Advisory Group) 

2. Council Summary Actions 2018* 
3. Link to Council and Agenda Committee Agendas and Minutes: 

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil/ 
 

D.  COMMUNICATIONS 

1-5 were received on 9/20; Published in 10/18 online packet 

1. Charles Siegel 9/17/18 email and op-ed article “Beg buttons” make Berkeley’s Pedestrians 
Less Safe 

2. AC Transit  Route 52 – Cedar Street Bus Stop Spacing and Ridership Diagram (Staff: 
Javandel, Parks) 

3. Meryl Siegal 9/20/18 Presentation: “The 52 Bus” 

4. Scooter Share Pilot Update 9/20/18 Staff ( Ryan Murray) 
5. TC Ad-Hoc Subcommittee Assignments as of 9/20/18 

 
E.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Ashby/Hwy 13 Corridor Projects (qtrly) Pedestrian Plan Update (Staff) - Nov 

San Pablo Corridor Study Bike Plan Implementation Subcommittee Report- Nov 

Electric Vehicle Roadmap T-1 Bond Projects – Presentation, Q & A - Nov 

Sidewalk Policy - Nov Vision Zero Policy 

  

 
F.  ADJOURNMENT     

It was MSC ( Bruzzone  / Zander ) Unanimous to adjourn the meeting at 10:05 PM.   
 

Public Present: 19 Speakers: 11 

 
Commission Secretary: Farid Javandel, Public Works/Transportation Division, 1947 Center St., 
4th Floor, Berkeley, CA, 94704, Tel: (510) 981-7061, Fax: (510) 981-7060, TDD: (510) 981-6903   
email: fjavandel@ci.berkeley.ca.us, 

 
Minutes on the web:  http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/ContentDisplay.aspx?id=13086  

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil/
mailto:fjavandel@ci.berkeley.ca.us
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/ContentDisplay.aspx?id=13086


Measure T1 Infrastructure Bond Program
UPDATE  TO  PARTICIPATING  COMMISSIONS

NOVEMBER/DECEMBER  2018

1



Agenda
Measure T1 Overview
 Projects Update 
 Funding Gap
 Program Update
 Next Steps

2



T1 Overview
 2016 ‐ $100 Million Bond
 Renovate Existing City Facilities and Infrastructure
 Passed with 86.5% of the Vote 

3



T1 Overview
 Phase 1
 2017 – 2021 
 June 2017 – Council approved list of projects for Phase 1 
 November 2017 – $35 million bonds sold

4



5

www.cityofberkeley.info/measuret1 

Measure T1 Story Map 



Project Updates
Excerpt from Attachment 1: T1 Project Schedule, Funding & Project Management

6



Tom Bates Regional Sports Complex
Grand Re‐Opening
March 3, 2018

7



North Berkeley Senior Center

8



Live Oak Community Center

9



Mental Health Clinic
2640 Martin Luther King Jr. Way

10



Citywide Irrigation System

11



Projected Funding Gap
Program Budget ‐ Approvals and Funding

Date Description Amount

June 27, 2017 Council Approved List of Projects for Phase 1 $37,365,000

January 23, 2018 Council Authorized $2M for Mental Health Building $2,000,000

Total  $39,365,000

Date Description Amount

November 2017 Phase 1 Bonds Sold $35,000,000

Approvals

Funding

Funding Gap = $4,365,000

12



Projected Funding Gap
Program Budget – Reductions and Additions

Program Cost $39,365,000

Reductions:

Bond Transaction Cost Not Incurred (800,000)

Transfer Station Master Plan (Funded by Zero Waste) (500,000)

Over estimated contributions for Art (49,000)

Additions:

Estimated additional escalation for construction cost 2,400,000

Revised program cost $40,416,000

Revised Estimated Funding Gap = $5,416,000

13



How to Reduce Funding Gap
 Grants

 FEMA, SF Bay Regional Quality Control Board, Measure AA, Prop 68 

 Other sources of funding
 PW/PRW Capital or General Fund

 Program‐level reductions
 Reduce scopes
 Reduce projects from “Construction” to “Design/Planning”
 Reduce projects from “Construction” to “Conceptual”
 Reduce projects from “Design/Planning” to “Conceptual”, if needed

 Elimination of a project

14



Project Prioritization Process
 Bi‐Annual Update to Council (Dec 6th Worksession)

 Further discussion with Commissions after bidding process for       
major projects is complete (Feb – April 2019)

 Council Action to Prioritize Projects (June 2019)

15



Program Update
 T1 Policies and Procedures Manual
 Audit Plan
 Communications
 Planning for Phase 2

16



Thank you.

Questions?

17



Attachment 1‐ T1 Project Schedule, Funding and Project Management

KEY:
Planning, Design
Construction

# DEPT PROJECT NAME PROJECT TYPE PROJECT DESCRIPTION
T1 ORIGINAL 
FUNDING

(A)

T1 ART 
CONTRIBUTION* 

(B)

T1 TOTAL PROJECT 
FUNDING
=(A‐B)

OTHER FUNDING
OTHER FUNDING 

AMOUNT
APPROXIMATE 
TOTAL FUNDING

PM FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 STATUS UPDATE

FACILITIES/BUILDINGS $15,900,000 $189,210 $15,710,790 $7,671,143 $23,381,933

1
PW/
PRW

Citywide Restrooms 
Citywide Needs Assessment

Conceptual
Perform needs and feasibility assessment of location for citywide restrooms; will include 
consideration of Ohlone Park restroom.

$150,000 $1,785 $148,215 $148,215  EK 
RFP posted on 7/3/2018 and closed on 7/26/2018.  No proposals received.  Staff subsequently 
solicited consultants and interviewed two firms and made a selection. A contract was negotiated. 
Project is anticipated to begin in January 2019.

2 PW
Old City Hall/ Veteran's Building/ Civic 
Center Park

Conceptual
Structural analysis and visioning of possible conceptual design alternatives, in concert with 
Civic Center Park, to help determine a direction for future capital improvements to restore 
and secure these facilities to maximize their community benefit.

$300,000 $3,570 $296,430 $296,430  EK 
Staff selected an architect and is in the process of getting a proposal for architectural services. A 
stakeholder kick‐off meeting is scheduled for the third quarter of 2019. 

3 PW Transfer Station ‐ Master Plan Planning  
Developing a Master Plan for modernization of the City's Waste Transfer Station, including 
the recycling center, with the goal of creating a new facility that promotes recycling and 
promotes elimination of solid waste.

Zero Waste Fund $500,000 $500,000  GA 
Alternate funding source secured for project. Planning consultant selected and contract awarded. 
Next step will be stakeholder charrette. 

4 PW
West Berkeley Service Center
Planning and Conceptual Design

Conceptual
Structural analysis and visioning of possible conceptual design alternatives, to help 
determine a direction for future capital improvements.

$150,000 $1,785 $148,215 $148,215  NC 
Staff selected an architect and is in the process of getting a proposal for architectural services. A 
stakeholder kick‐off meeting is scheduled for the third quarter of 2019. 

5 PRW
Frances Albrier Community Center
Planning and Design

Planning & 
Design

Evaluation of site conditions, facility and structural assessments, and recreation 
programming to determine what improvements to move forward with to upgrade the center 
as a Care and Shelter facility and for improved recreation programming and opportunities. 

$750,000 $8,925 $741,075 $741,075  WK 
Staff will be using the upcoming On‐Call Architectural Services contracts to solicit RFPs for this work. 
Staff expect to have contracts available to solciit RFPs for work to start in early 2019. 

6 PRW
Tom Bates (Gilman) Fields 
North Field House and Restroom

Planning & 
Design

Evaluation of needs for restroom and storage, analysis of utility and supporting 
infrastructure needed, and development of detailed design and construction documents. 

$250,000 $2,975 $247,025 $247,025  NL 
Staff provided information regarding this project and received input from the community at a Field 
Users Meeting in April 2018. Conceptual design is further being developed and will be shared with the 
public in winter 2018‐19. 

7 PRW
Willard Clubhouse Renovation
Planning and Design

Conceptual Planning and design to renovate or expand the Willard Clubhouse. $250,000 $2,975 $247,025 $247,025  WK 
Staff will be using the upcoming On‐Call Architectural Services contracts to solicit RFPs for this work. 
Staff expect to have contracts available to solciit RFPs for work to start in early 2019. 

8 PRW
Live Oak Community Center
Seismic Upgrade and Renovations 

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Seismic retrofit, deferred maintenance upgrades, and programming improvements to 
upgrade the center as a Care and Shelter facility and enable improved recreation 
programming.

$4,900,000 $58,310 $4,841,690 $4,841,690  TL 
Held a public meeting on 3/24/18. Conceptual design has been completed and staff will be holding 
another public meeting once additional information from FEMA is available. 

9 PW
North Berkeley Senior Center
Seismic Upgrades and Renovations

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Seismic retrofit, deferred maintenance upgrades, and programming improvements to 
upgrade the center as a Care and Shelter facility and enable improved senior programming, 
generator hook up.

$6,800,000 $80,920 $6,719,080 FEMA $1,875,000 $8,594,080  EK 

Initial public meeting held on 2/15/18. Met with NBSC Advisory Council‐ 3/7/18. Follow‐Up 
Community Meeting  was held on 4/24/18. Plans were submitted for permit review. The public 
hearing process started in Setember 2018 with ZAB approval expected by February 2019. Construction 
anticipated to start in early 2019.

10 PRW
Strawberry Creek Park 
Restroom Replacement

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Replace restroom at Strawberry Creek Park. $350,000 $4,165 $345,835
Parks Tax & PRW 

Capital Improvement 
Fund

$500,000 $845,835  WK 
Project is bundled with FY 19 Strawberry Creek Phase 2 to leverage additional funding from Parks Tax 
and Capital Improvement fund.  Community meeting held on 5/19/18. Conceptual designs are being 
prepared for further comments in Spring 2019. 

11
HHCS/
PW

Mental Health Building Renovation
Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Renovate interior for safety and energy efficiency. A Net Zero Energy project with 
anticipated payback savings of less than ten years.

$2,000,000 $23,800 $1,976,200

Capital Improvement 
Fund and Mental 
Health Services 

Account

$4,796,143 $6,772,343  SG 
Staff have prepared approved construction documents to solicit bids from contractors. The final 
design was submitted for permit review. Bidding is anticipated in December 2018 with construction to 
begin after contract execution. 

CITY WIDE SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS $900,000 $10,710 $889,290 $889,290

12 PW
Berkeley Health Clinic
Electrical Improvements

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Electrical upgrades to main switchboard, two panel boards, conduit, wiring, and wiring 
devices.

 EK  Consultant is working on proposal for scope of work. 

13 PW
Corporation Yard
Roof and Electrical Upgrades

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Roof and electrical improvements  IL 
A Due Diligence Study and cost estimate have been completed. The next step will be to identify the 
exact scope of improvements and complete design.

14 PW
Marina Corporation Yard
Electrical Upgrades

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Electrical upgrades to main switchboard, two panel boards, and wiring devices.  IL 
A Due Diligence Study and cost estimate have been completed. The next step will be to identify the 
exact scope of improvements and complete design.

15 PW
Public Safety Building
Mechanical and HVAC Efficiency 
Improvements

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Mechanical/HVAC upgrades  EK  Coordination with IT is ongoing to develop the scope. 

PARKS IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS $6,965,000 $82,884 $6,882,117 $2,492,499 $9,374,616

16 PRW Aquatic Park ‐ Tide Tubes
Planning & 
Design

Final design, acquiring regulatory permits and envrionmental documents, and preparation of 
construction documents for replacement of the collapsed tide tubes connecting the main 
lagoon with the Bay.

$350,000 $4,165 $345,835 $345,835  LM 
Staff will be using an On‐Call Civil Engineering Consultant to solicit RFPs for planning/design. On‐Call 
Consultant contract pending execution.

17 PRW Berkeley Municipal Pier
Planning & 
Design

Final design, acquiring regulatory permits and envrionmental documents, and preparation of 
construction documents for structural repairs to restore the pier for recreational use. 

$900,000 $10,710 $889,290 $889,290  NL 

Draft Study and conceptual design alternatives presented for discussion at P&W Commission/Public 
Meeting in January. Coordinated with WETA to supplement scope of work to evaluate the possibility 
of ferry service that meets WETA needs. MOU is currently being developed to coordinate scope and 
secure additional funding to include further study of ferry services to the Berkeley Marina for possible 
incorporation into the Pier design.  

Conceptual

$889,290$900,000 $10,710 $889,290

Updated 10/29/18



Attachment 1‐ T1 Project Schedule, Funding and Project Management

Planning, Design
Construction

# DEPT PROJECT NAME PROJECT TYPE PROJECT DESCRIPTION
T1 ORIGINAL 
FUNDING

(A)

T1 ART 
CONTRIBUTION* 

(B)

T1 TOTAL PROJECT 
FUNDING
=(A‐B)

OTHER FUNDING
OTHER FUNDING 

AMOUNT
APPROXIMATE 
TOTAL FUNDING

PM FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 STATUS UPDATE

18 PW
Berkeley Rose Garden 
Drainage

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Improvements to Codornices Creek to repair erosion damage at the downstream end of 
Rose Garden site.

$800,000 $9,520 $790,480 $790,480  DA 
Staff held pre‐project permitting meeting with environmental agencies. Consultants are preparing 
permit applications, CEQA documents and preliminary plans. Construction is anticipated to start 
summer of 2019, pending receipt of environmental permits. 

19 PRW
Berkeley Rose Garden
Pathways, Tennis Courts

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Renovation of existing site pathways and construction of new pathways to provide an 
accessible path of travel to the center of the trellis. Reconstruction of portions or all of the 
tennis courts for safety. 

$1,200,000 $14,280 $1,185,720
Parks Tax & PRW 

Capital Improvement 
Fund

$1,092,499 $2,278,219  EC 

Work bundled with Phase 2 of Trellis reconstruction to leverage additional funding from Parks Tax and 
Capital Improvement Fund.  Met with LPC Subcommittee on 3/6/18.  Public meeting held on 6/2/18.  
Anticipated start of construction July 2019. Survey work is almost complete and Design Development 
is currently in progress.

20 PRW Citywide Irrigation System
Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Current irrigation system requires individual programming and daily monitoring by City staff. 
This project includes the replacement of Irrigation Control Software and Controllers and the 
establishment of wireless software that controls all irrigation clocks, which will conserve 
water and control costs.

$750,000 $8,925 $741,075 $741,075  BP/TT 
Contract awarded by Council on 5/1/18.  Contract is currently pending review and execution.  Pilot 
installation to begin after contract is executed. Full implementation anticipated in 2020. 

21 PRW
Grove Park Field and Restroom 
Renovation of ballfield backstop, dugout, 
lights, and irrigation

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Improvements to the ballfield, dugouts, site lighting and accessibility for safety and energy 
savings, including improvements to site drainage; partial renovation of the restroom 
building.

$1,000,000 $11,900 $988,100 $988,100  TL 
Public meeting held on 12/13/17.  A contract with an On‐Call Landscape Architect was executed in 
September 2018 and survey and design work is underway. 

22 PRW
George Florence Mini‐Park
Play Equipment Upgrade 

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Renovate age 2‐5 play structures and age 5‐12 play structures and complete ADA 
improvements.

$600,000 $7,140 $592,860 $592,860  TL  Design contract awarded and design is underway.  Public meeting was held on 10/20/18.

23 PRW
San Pablo Park
Play Equipment Upgrade
(Ages 5‐12 Play Areas)

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Renovate age 5‐12 play structures and complete ADA improvements. $250,000 $2,975 $247,025
PRW Capital 

Improvement Fund
$200,000 $447,025  WK 

Public meeting held on 6/9/18.  Project bundled with San Pablo Park Tennis Renovation to leverage 
funding and design effort.  Coordination ongoing with Civic Arts for inclusion of functional art to the 
project site. Contract with On‐Call Landscape Architect was excuted and survey and design is 
underway. 

24 PRW
San Pablo Park 
Tennis Courts Renovation

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Reconstruction or renovation of the existing lighted tennis courts at San Pablo Park. $800,000 $9,520 $790,480 $790,480  WK  third quarter of 2019

25 PRW
Tom Bates (Gilman) Fields 
Artifical/Synthetic Turf Replacement

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Replace artificial turf on two existing fields to include organic infill, shock pad and upgraded 
turf.

$315,000 $3,749 $311,252
Gilman Reserve 

Account, Parks Tax, 
User Fees

$1,200,000 $1,511,252  NL  Grand opening held on 3/3/18.  Project complete.

GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS $1,200,000 $14,280 $1,185,720 $1,185,720

26 PW
King School Park
Green Infrastructure

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Install cistern to reduce peak stormwater flows and/or a bioswale to infiltrate rainwater, 
regulate flows, and improve water quality.

$1,200,000 $14,280 $1,185,720 $1,185,720  DA  Project is not feasible.

COMPLETE STREETS PROJECTS $8,500,000 $101,150 $8,398,850 $9,398,850

27 PW Adeline Street & Hearst Avenue
Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Complete streets projects to include needed upgrades to curbs, sidewalks, storm drains, 
bicycle/ped improvements, and pavement, as appropriate.

 SM 
Design and coordination with utility partners has been completed. Coordination with the 
Transportation division for a protected bicycle lane is underway. Bidding is anticipated in early 2019. 
Construction is expected to begin in the summer of 2019.

28 PW Monterey Avenue and Ward Street
Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Complete streets projects to include needed upgrades to curbs, sidewalks, storm drains, 
bicycle/ped improvements, and pavement, as appropriate.

 SM 
Utility coordination is underway. Staff is evaluating options for green infrastructure on Ward Street.  
On‐Call Civil Engineering consultant to start design in early 2019. 

29 PW
2nd Street,  Hopkins Street and Bancroft 
Way

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Complete streets projects to include needed upgrades to curbs, sidewalks, storm drains, 
bicycle/ped improvements, and pavement, as appropriate.

 SM 
Staff is performing preliminary studies and confirming scope of work. On‐Call Civil Engineering 
consultant to start design in early 2019. 

30 PRW
University Avenue (West Frontage Rd to 
Marina Blvd), Marina Blvd, and 
Spinnaker Way Renovation

Planning, 
Design & 
Construction

Final design, obtaining permits, and pavement reconstruction. Design will be based on the 
preferred alternative identified in the Feasibility Study on Mitigation of Undulating 
Pavement at University Avenue.

$3,500,000 $41,650 $3,458,350 $4,458,350  NL 
Design contract was awarded for final design. Design is in progress. Staff is seeking additional funding 
for Marina Blvd and Spinnaker Way. 

TOTAL $33,465,000 $398,234 $33,066,767 $10,163,642 $44,230,409

*Per Measure T1 Bond requirements, 1% of bond proceeds is to be used for functional art. Phase 1 art contribution should be 1% of the $35 million bond sale. The calculated art contribution is based on the actual estimated Phase 1 cost of $39 million+. 

$5,000,000 $59,500 $4,940,500 $4,940,500

BP ‐ Bruce Pratt x6632 BPratt@cityofberkeley.info GA ‐ Greg Apa x6359 GApa@cityofberkeley.info NL ‐ Nelson Lam x6395 NeLam@cityofberkeley.info TL ‐ Taylor Lancelot x6421 MTLancelot@cityofberkeley.info
DA ‐ Danny Akagi x6394 DAkagi@cityofberkeley.info IL ‐ Ingrid Lin x6633 ILin@cityofberkeley.info NC ‐ Nick Cartagena xTBD NCartagena@cityofberkeley.info TT ‐ Thanh Thai x6505 TThai@cityofberkeley.info
EK ‐ Elmar Kapfer x6435 EKapfer@cityofberkeley.info JA ‐ Jennifer Allen X6627 JAllen@cityofberkeley.info SM ‐ Srinivas Muktevi x6420 SMuktevi@cityofberkeley.info WK ‐ Wendy Wellbrock x5214 WWellbrock@cityofberkeley.info
EC ‐ Evelyn Chan x6430 EChan@cityofberkeley.info LM ‐ Liza McNulty x6437 LMcNulty@cityofberkeley.info SG ‐ Steve Grolnic x5249 SGrolnic@cityofberkeley.info

Updated 10/29/18



  B-2 

 
1947 Center Street, 4th   Floor, Berkeley, CA 94704   Tel: 510.981-7010   TDD: 510.981-6903   Fax: 510.981-7060 

 

       
Department of Public Works 

Transportation Division 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

Date:  November 15, 2018 

 
To:  Transportation Commission 
 
From:  Beth Thomas, Principal Planner 
  Jim Frank, Associate Planner   
 
Subject: Pedestrian Master Plan Update  
 
Staff requests that the Commission review and comment on the proposed vision, goals, 
performance measures, and existing conditions and needs analysis for the Pedestrian 
Master Plan Update.  
 
The Pedestrian Master Plan Update (the Plan) is being developed as a multi-year 
blueprint to achieve the vision of Berkeley as a model walkable City where traveling on 
foot or by assistive device is safe, comfortable, and convenient for people of all ages. The 
Plan will ultimately include policies and actions to provide further direction on how to 
make progress toward meeting its goals. It will identify the City’s pedestrian high-injury 
corridors and include a list of proposed capital projects that are grouped together 
geographically in order to be competitive for future grant applications.  

The scope of the Plan includes the development of a vision, set of goals, and 
performance measures. Other sections will include the assessment of existing conditions 
and needs, the identification of projects and programs to meet those needs, the 
development of a funding plan, and the creation of design concepts for twenty high-
priority projects. The project prioritization will weight projects based on crash severity and 
other factors, such as proximity to schools, transit access, socioeconomic equity, and 
pedestrian demand. So far the community engagement process to guide the Plan has 
included seven neighborhood and citywide events, a project website, survey, and 
interactive wiki map. A public open house will be held on Saturday, December 3rd at the 
Frances Albrier Community Center. 
 
Proposed Plan goals include: 1. Reduction of pedestrian fatalities and severe injuries to 
zero by 2028, 2. Achieving equity and extending transportation choices for all, and  
3. Improving public health and the environment.  
 
The next steps for the Plan include an analysis for existing conditions and needs, project 
and program recommendations, and presentations to the interagency staff working group, 
Pedestrian Subcommittee, Transportation Commission, and at least one more public 
open house.  



Transportation Commission Agenda  Excerpted from Commissioners Manual 2018 ed. 

January 17, 2019        B-3 

 
 

COMMISSION ORGANIZATION 
1) Election of Officers and Terms of Office 
Unless otherwise provided by ordinance, the chair and vice-chair are elected by 
the majority of the commission for a one-year term and hold office until their 
successors are elected or until their terms as members of the commission expire. 
No commissioner shall serve as chair for more than two consecutive years. There 
is no term limit for vice-chair. 
 
Unless otherwise provided for in the enabling legislation, the annual election of 
commission officers should occur during the month of February. The election of 
officers must be listed as an item on the agenda. 
 
Two meetings prior to the meeting at which officers will be elected, commissions 
are encouraged to list as an agenda item a discussion of the election, to inform 
all commissioners of the opportunity to seek nomination and election for the 
offices of chair and vice chair, to discuss and agree to the nomination process 
and timing for nominations (if no policy has been enacted by the commission), 
and to add clarity for commissioners and the 
public. In order to facilitate an orderly and fair nomination process, commissions 
may open nominations at the January meeting (or the meeting prior to the 
February meeting) and then hold the vote on officers at the February meeting. A 
Commission may enact a policy on officer elections in conformance with the 
requirements stated below, specifying the timing for nominations, the order in 
which nominations will be voted upon, and any other details that support a fair, 
orderly and transparent process for election of officers. 

 
If there are multiple nominees for chair or vice-chair, the commission may wish to 
use a process by which all nominations can be made prior to voting. Full 
discussion of nominations is recommended, including the ability of nominees to 
speak on behalf of their own candidacy. 

 

Additional regulations for officer elections: 
 

 Nominations for chair and vice-chair require a motion (with second). 

 A commissioner may nominate himself or herself. 

 Any member of the commission, regardless of length of tenure on the 
commission may be elected chair or vice-chair. 

 There is no automatic succession from vice-chair to chair. 

 Motions to nominate must be voted on in the public forum, and no secret 
ballots are allowed. 

 A roll call vote is recommended for votes on commission officers, and is 
required if any commissioner requests a roll call vote. 

 The results of the vote must be publicly announced and the vote recorded 
in the minutes (Resolution No. 60,531-N.S.). 

 A commissioner may not be elected chair if he or she will not be able to 
finish the term due to the two-year limitation. 



2 
 

 
Terms of office for officers are determined by the date the election regularly 
occurs, not by the date it may have actually occurred. If there is a slight variation 
in the date of the election, the sitting chair may serve on an interim basis provided 
that they do not exceed the two-year limit. 

 

2) Mandatory Annual Training for Chairs and Vice-Chairs 
Chairs and vice-chairs are required to complete mandatory annual training. 
Resolution No. 63,876-N.S. was adopted by the City Council to implement video 
training for commission officers to satisfy the requirements of Resolution No. 
60,531-N.S. 

 
The chair and vice-chair must view, in its entirety, a training video on 
commission procedures and legal requirements. Upon completion, the chair 
and vice-chair must file with the City Clerk an Affirmation of Completion. 

 
 

This training video must be viewed and the Affirmation of Completion must be 
filed with the City Clerk no later than 60 calendar days from the date of election 
as chair or vice-chair. Failure to complete the video training and file the Affirmation 
of Completion within 60 days of election will result in the immediate forfeiture of 
the position of chair or vice-chair. 

 

While not mandatory for commissioners other than the chair and vice-chair, 
completion of this training is encouraged for all commissioners. 

 
The required training video may be viewed online through the city website - 
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/commissions/ or a DVD may be obtained from the 

City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor. The City Clerk also offers 
a video terminal at its office for commissioners to view the training video. 

 

3) Duties of Officers 
The “presiding officer” (chair or, in his or her absence, the vice-chair), performs 
the following duties. 

 
• Presides at all meetings of the commission and ensures that the work of the 

commission is accomplished. To this end, the chair must exert sufficient 
control of the meeting to eliminate irrelevant, repetitious, or otherwise 
unproductive discussion. At the same time, the chair must ensure that all 
viewpoints are heard and are considered in a fair and impartial manner. 

• Ensures that commission bylaws, if any, and procedures are followed. The 
chair cannot make rules related to the conduct of meetings; only the full 
commission may do so. 

• Appoints commissioners to temporary subcommittees subject to the 
approval of the full commission. 

• Approves the agenda prior to distribution. This is limited to the structure and 
order of the agenda and does not grant the chair the authority to remove 
an item submitted by commissioners or staff if submitted by the established 
deadline. 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/commissions/


3 
 

• Signs correspondence on behalf of the commission. 
• Represents the commission before the City Council. Other commissioners 

may be the representative with the formal approval of the commission by 
motion and vote. 

• Approves commission reports to Council. The chair cannot modify content 
that was approved by the full commission. 

• The chair or a quorum of the commission may call a special meeting. 
• The chair and vice-chair have full rights to vote and to make or second 

motions. 
•  
4) Transfer of Chair 

 In the absence of the chair or his or her inability to act, the vice-chair 
presides in place of the chair, but does not assume the office of chair. In the 
event of the absence or the inability to act of both the chair and the vice- 
chair, the remaining commissioners elect one of their members to act as 
temporary chair. 

 If a chair is terminated from the commission for any reason, or resigns, the 
office is vacated, and a new election for chair must be held to fill the office. 
The vice-chair does not assume the office of chair, rather they preside over 
the meetings and execute the chair’s duties as the vice-chair. If a vice-chair 
is terminated, the office is vacated, and a new election would be held to fill 
the office. If an officer is terminated and subsequently reappointed to the 
commission, he or she shall not resume the office and must be reelected to 
the office by the majority of the membership. 

 
 

In the event a chair leaves the commission prior to the end of his or her 
term, the vice-chair performs the duties of chair but does not assume the 
office of chair. An election must be agendized and a new chair must be 
elected at a subsequent meeting. The vice-chair may be elected as chair, 
as may any other commissioner, but the commission must vote on the 
election. 



Transportation Commission Agenda 1/17/19   B4 

2019 Commission Meeting Dates 
Please complete this form and email it to the  

Commission Inbox by: Friday, January 25, 2019 

               

Name of Commission: _____Transportation_____________________________ 
               

Commission Secretary:______Farid Javandel____________________________ 
 

 
Please Note the Commission Meeting Dates for 2019 Below 

 
Please fill in meeting date below.  If no meeting for the month is scheduled please note as “No Meeting.” 

      

   “Example”     

Month   Meeting Day and Date  Time  Month   Meeting Day and Date  Time 

January 2019 Thursday    1/10/19 7:00 pm  July 2019 No Meeting  

       

 

2019 Meeting Dates 
NOTE TEMPORARY LOCATION:  Willow Room, Building A, Corporation Yard, 1326 Allston Way 94702 

 
Month   Meeting Day and Date  Time  Month   Meeting Day and Date  Time 

January 2019 1/17/19 7:00 pm  July 2019 7/18/19 7:00 pm 

       

       

February 2019 2/21/19 7:00 pm  August 2019 No meeting  

       

       

March 2019 3/21/19 7:00 pm  September 2019 9/19/18 7:00 pm 

       

       

April 2019 4/18/19 7:00 pm  October 2019 10/17/19 7:00 pm 

       

       

May 2019 5/16/19 7:00 pm  November 2019 11/21/19 7:00 pm 

       

       

June 2019 6/20/19 7:00 pm  December 2019 No meeting  

       

       

 
 

commission@cityofberkeley.info 
City Clerk Department 

mailto:commission@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:commission@cityofberkeley.info


RESOLUTION NO. 55,751 -N.S. 

ESTABLISHING THE TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION AND PROVIDING FOR THE DUTIES 

THEREOF. 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows: 

Section 1. ESTABLISHING THE COMMISSION. 

A. There is hereby established a Transportation Commission

in the City of Berkeley, the duties and responsibilities of which are set 
forth hereinafter. 

B. Members of the Commission shall be appointed by members

of the City Council in accordance with Ordinance No. 4780-N.S. 

Section 2. DURATION OF THE COMMISSION. 

Unless specifically extended by vote of the City Council, 

the life of the Transportation Commission shall expire on November 30, 1992. 

Section 3. DUTIES OF THE COMMISSION 

A. The Transportation Commission shall advise the City
Council with respect to Transportation policies, facilities, and services. 

B. The Commission shall be empowered to hold and conduct

hearings and undertake other activities for the purpose of gathering 

information and data relevant to legislative actions which directly and 
significantly influence transportation. 

C. The Commission shall evaluate such information and data

and make recommendations to the City Council or City Manager on traffic 
management policies and implementation of such policies. 

D. In addition to the foregoing general duties, the

Commission shall be empowered to do the following: 

1. Hold hearings on the taxi ordinance and make

recommendations to the Council regarding rates, the number of permits, taxi 
stands and related matters. 

2. Conduct hearings and obtain data regarding parking

policies and restrictions, pricing, and enforcement thereof. 

3. Consider safety measures and devices, including

emergency access, and make recommendations thereon. 

4. Consider pricing of road use.

5. Consider vehicle circulation.

6. Consider impact of land use on transportation.

1 

B-6a









 B-6b





ADOPTED Work Plan FY 2018-19         

1 
 

Updated by action July 19, 2018 
 

Mission: Advises the Council on transportation policies, facilities, and services.  

 

 Goals- Ongoing projects/UPDATES Resources Program activities Outputs Outcomes 

1. goBerkeley Program Staff updates Public meetings Policy guidance  

FY 2019 

Next Update April 

2. I-80 Gilman Interchange & Pedestrian 

Overcrossing Project Northwest 

Berkeley 

Staff updates Public meetings 

 

Policy guidance on 

technical decisions 

Successful project delivery (Ongoing) 

3. Safe Routes to Schools Projects 

(John Muir redesign) 

Staff updates Public meetings Pedestrian 

Subcommittee  

Successful project delivery (Ongoing) 

4. Bike Share – Phase 2 Expansion beyond 

Berk/Oak/Eville 

MTC project 

funding 

Policy Guidance Recommendations 

for Council 

approval 

Expanded Bike Share resource 

5. Adeline Corridor Specific Plan (grant 

planning) Est. 1 year to complete  

process 

Staff updates Coordination between Berkeley 

BEST Plan & Adeline Specific 

Plan 

Guidance on 

funding 

opportunities 

Ensure successful grant funding $ and 

encourage equitable stakeholder 

involvement 

6. Grants- Annual Updates; Comprehensive 

discussion of all grant applications 

(includes: Measure BB Grants) RR 

Safety/Quiet Zone funding in FY 19 for 

scoping 

Staff updates Commission will review 

language to improve outcomes 

Policy guidance on 

technical decisions 

Ensure successful grant funding 

$500k for RR Safety 

7. Traffic Calming – Reassessing Traffic 

Calming Policy 

Staff Update Policy guidance on technical 

decisions 

Recommendations 

to Council 

Successful delivery of revised calm 

streets policy 

8. ACTC annual report showing  Meas. BB 

fund distribution (May 2017  and every 

January) 

Staff updates Policy guidance on technical 

decisions 

Funding 

transparency 

Successful project funding  

 Goals - TC Work Items Resources Program Activities Outputs Outcomes 

9. Vision Zero + Complete Streets Policy 

Development- Transit/Bike/ Pedestrians 

First, Parking Removal 

Subcommittee Public meetings Review Crash Data 

(SWITRS report) & annual safety 

goals; Coord. w/PWC on Paving 

Plan & Oppties for Complete 

Streets; Prioritize Citywide access 

to Schools policy via all modes; 

Simplify parking removal 

Make 

recommendations 

to Council 

Adoption of Vision Zero policy 

Action Plan; augment Pedestrian Plan 

& Complete Streets Policy 



ADOPTED Work Plan FY 2018-19         

2 
 

10. Two-way Telegraph Avenue  & 

Southside (Complete Streets) 2018: 

Telegraph Yellow zones Ph. 2: Design 

Telegraph/Dana Couplet; Ph. 3: Upper 

Bancroft 

Staff Updates 

Monthly 

Policy guidance on language Make 

recommendations 

to Council 

Consensus on Telegraph by TBID/AC 

Transit/COB 

11. Bike Plan Implementation (Using 

Complete Streets Filter) 

Assigned to 

Bike 

subcommittee 

Review of bike grant funding; 

Track Projects eg. monitor 

Milvia 

Consultation with 

staff 

Successful completion of goals; Bike 

project funding $ 

12. Pedestrian Plan Update 

(Consultant selected; ready to issue 

notice on Scope) 

Pedestrian 

subcommittee  

Public meetings Recommendations 

to Council 

Comprehensive Pedestrian Plan 

13. Prepare for new/emerging mobility 

technologies & services 

Subcommittee  Research data and policy Recommendations 

to Council 

Successful  

14. Council Referral: Stop Sign Criteria 

(1/18/18) 

Subcommittee Research to data and policy Recommendation 

to Council  

Successful completion of Council 

assignment 

15. ACTC/MTC Review Grant Proposals Subcommittee Review ACTC/MTC grant-

proposals 

Provide comments 

to staff 

Ensure successful grant funding 

16. Climate Action Plan (Collaborate with 

other relevant commissions eg Energy, 

Housing, PWC) 

Subcommittee Clarify CAP goals and timelines. 

Conduct transportation 

emissions and analysis reviews.  

Recommendation 

to Council 

Achieve timely Climate Action Plan 

goals 

17. Develop TC Mission Statement Agenda Item TC public discussion/action 

item; reinforce mission 

statement at each meeting 

Recommend new 

mission statement 

to Council 

Submit updated TC Mission 

Statement 

18. Transit First Policy – Review and report 

(Transportation Element of General Plan and 

Transit First Policy) 

Subcommittee 

Staff to provide 

links  

Review current policy and 

language 

If needed 

recommend 

updates 

Reaffirm Transit 1st Policy priorities 

to Council 

19. Traffic Calming – Reassessing Traffic 

Calming Policy 

Subcommittee Policy guidance on technical 

decisions 

Recommendation 

to Council 

Successful delivery of revised calm 

streets policy 

20. Scooter Share Program - 90-day Council 

Referral: to CM and  

Council Report 

7/10/18; Consider 

staff input 

Develop TC Recommend 

ordinance/permit process for 

Scooter Sharing in PROW 

Recommendation 

to Council  

Respond to council referral within 

designated timeline 

 



� ����� �����
		
 ��� �� � ����	 �� ������ � ��� ��� ��

� ���	 ��� ���

��� �� !"#�$ %& ' ()(�� *+ ,* - .+ /0

1 23456 78 9: ;;<6 78 = 3< ;> 8;7? 3 @< ;A B C D16<E ;
F ;4CAA;7? 3<6 C7

G HC7IC26 78 J CK746E A;AL ;2+ J CAA6 II6 C7F ;IHC7I6LE ; = ;H32< A;7<+ =6 M6 I6 C7F 375: 325 ;? N C2 F ;ACM3E

OP QRP QSTUTUVW XW YZ[ \]Y
T̂_̀ Yab \c̀ \XYd ebW YZf Y ghU iORT jf gk gW ZXeaaY]b Yl mVW XW YZ[ \]Yl ]mn\oY]pb Y\dW nW Zmb \mdd

b ]mllW q j]\d mb \l̀ mb mdWbW \XmZ` X\r\]\W Zs e]W \XW Zt \]p \d \ubv ]Yewv mXml \XuXb \nXmaa]Ymqv iovW qv

a]W Y]WbW x\X]Ym` omu` \XW wZmZ` aYdW quXb ]mb \wW \X iqYnadW n\Zb \ỳ ua]Yr\Z\` eqmbW YZmZ`

\Zl Y]q\n\Zb Xb ]mb \wW \X gQ̂c \l \]Xa\qWlW qVW XW YZ[ \]YaYdW qu` \r\d Yan\Zbb Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]mZ`

| ]mZXaY]b mbW YZz YnnW XXW YZ gc \qYnn\Z` mbW YZXqYed̀W Zqd e` \ iy eb m]\ZYbdW nWb \b̀ Y ibv \

} ~�� ~�� ����� ����� ~�~} ��� �� ~�� ��~� ���� ~���~�� �����~�� ��� ~�� ~��� ��� ~���� �~����� ���� ��

���� �������� �}} ���~��� ����� ���� � �� ��� ��� ��� ���� �� ~�� � �� ��� �� ��� ~�� ��� ����� ���� ��� � ��

z ]\mbW YZmVW XW YZ[ \]Y_ qbW YZ�d mZbv mb ebWdW x\X` mb m j` ]W r\ZXb ]mb \wW \Xb YW na]Yr\

�� ���� �  ��� ��� �� ����} �� ��¡ ����� ���~������ ����� ���� �¢ ��� ~��� ��� �£�� ~����� �� ����� ~�

Yl maeydW qo\y XWb \bv mb YebdW Z\Xbv \VW XW YZ[ \]Y_ qbW YZ�d mZmZ` Yll \]Xmr\Ze\l Y]aeydW qW Zaeb g¤ ]YXb \ i_ ]]\weW Z i ¥ \Zw]ml� eydW q¥ Y]p X*

hP TOP QSTR¦Rz YZXẀ \]mbW YZYl§ ZW r\]Xmd¤ \XW wZkb mZ` m]` XW ZzWb u
� ]Ys \qb X

c \l \]b Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]b Ynmp \bv \qYZXẀ \]mbW YZYl§ ZW r\]Xmd¤ \XW wZl \mb e]\XmZ\̈adW qWb mZ`

dW Xb \` q]Wb \]W ml Y]mdd a]Ys \qb XeZ` \]b mp \Zy ubv \qWb u iW Zqd eẀ Zwbv \nmZueaqYnW Zwa]Ys \qb Xb Yy \

l eZ` \b̀v ]Yewv{ \mXe]\|T g

© mv Z i¤ mrWd m� eydW q¥ Y]p Xª

OP QRP QSTUT«kb ]\\bk o\\aW Zw¬ na]Yr\n\Zb�d mZ
c \l \]b Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\] i� eydW q¥ Y]p XqYnnW XXW YZ imZ[̀ \]Y¥ mXb \qYnnW XXW YZb Y` \r\d Yam

Z\oXb ]mb \wub Y\ZXe]\bv mb Xb ]\\b Xo\\aW ZwW XZYb Yy Xb ]eqb \ỳ uomXb \P ]\quqdW ZwaW qp jea g¬ Z

m`̀WbW YZb Yy \W ZweZXW wvbd u ioWbv Yeb a]Ya\]Xb ]\\b Xo\\aW Zw ib ]mXv mZ`̀ \y ]W Xm]\nY]\dWp \d ub YwY

W Zb Ybv \Xb Y]nomb \]` ]mW ZX gk a\qWlW qmdd uT gkb mll Xv Yed̀ a]YrẀ \mnmaYl Xb ]\\b XW ZovW qv Xo\\aW Zw

` muXmZ` omXb \P ]\quqdW ZwaW qp eaqYW ZqẀ \b Yy \bb \]eZ` \]Xb mZ` ov \]\mZ` ov \ZbvW Xa]Yyd \n

Yqqe]XmZQ̀ gkb mll mZz̀ YnnW XXW YZXXv Yed̀ ]\b e]Zb Yz YeZqWd oWbv ma]YaYX\` XYd ebW YZW Zqd eẀ Zw i

y eb ZYbdW nWb \b̀ Y i]\Xqv \` edW ZwXb ]\\b Xo\\aW ZwmZ` omXb \P ]\quqdW ZwaW qp eaXb Y\ZXe]\bv mby Ybv

X\]rW q\X` YZYb Yqqe]YZbv \Xmn\` mu g

¤ ]YXb \ i_ ]]\weW Z� eydW q¥ Y]p X®

¯P TP QSTUQQz YnneZWb u{W q]Yy YZ¬̀ ZWbW mbW r\ jc \rW X\` nmb \]W md X
°k eaaQ̂

c \l \]b Ybv \QSTU a]W Y]WbW xmbW YZa]Yq\XXb YẀ ]\qbbv \zWb u{ mZmw\]b Ya]Y` eq\m]\aY]b YebdW ZW Zw

Xb \aX]\±eW ]\Ẁlbv \zWb uo\]\b YW nad \n\Zb m�Wd Yb� ]Ys \qbl Y]bv \z YnneZWb u{W q]Yy YZ`

¬ ZWbW mbW r\oWbvW Z«S̀ muX gz YZXẀ \]W Zqd eẀ ZwmqYnneZWb u\Zwmw\n\Zb qYnaYZ\Zb° Xeqv mXm

Xe]r\ub̂ YẀ \ZbWl uma]Ys \qbl Y]bv \aWd Yb iẀ \ZbWl uzWb uXb mll ov YoYed̀y \W ZrYd r\Ẁ Zbv \�Wd Yb

� ]Ys \qb imZmd ux\bv \qYXb Xb ]eqb e]\b Ybv \zWb u iqd m]Wl ubv \a]Yq\XXb YẀ \ZbWl u iX\d \qb mZ` qYdd my Y]mb \

oWbv ]\d \rmZb r\Z` Y]X imZ` YebdW Z\mZumZ` mdd Ybv \]Z\q\XXm]uXb \aXb YmqvW \r\m�Wd Yb{W q]Yy YZ`

Yll \]W Zw gz YZXẀ \]W Zqd eẀ Zwbv \l Ydd YoW Zw]\±eW ]\n\Zb Xl Y]ma]YaYX\c̀²� ³V \Z` Y]° X^ X\d \qb \`

Xv Yed̀v mr\neZW qW amdy YZ` eZ` \]o]WbW ZwqmamyWdWbW \XV \Z` Y]° X^ X\d \qb \` Xv Yed̀v mr\\̈a\]W \Zq\

oWbvyd Yqp qv mW Zb \qv ZYd Ywu

t m]bd \bb²W ZmZq\
´

hP TOP QSTROU_̀̀
W Zw|v ]\mb Yl¤W Xad mq\n\Zb Yl mt \]p \d \u

c \XẀ \Zbb Ybv \z e]]\Zb¬ ZqYn\µ emdWlW qmbW YZ
¶ eẀ \dW Z\X¥vW qv¥ Yed̀�d mq\mZ_ aadW qmZbW Z

� ]W Y]Wb ukb mb eXl Y]t{c°t \d Yo{ m]p \bc mb \§̂ ZWb Xc \l \]b Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]m`̀W Zwb YW ZqYn\±emdWlW qmbW YZbv \Xb mb eXYl a\ZẀ ZwẀ Xad mq\n\Zb Yl m

t \]p \d \u]\XẀ \Zb Y]l mnWd u il Y]a]W Y]Wb u\dW wWyWdWb ul Y]t{c eZWb X g
{ mW Y i© m]]W XYZ i © mv Z it m]bd \bb©©zk

/

OP TOP QSTUQO��� �· ������¸ �} ����� �¹ ���~£� ���� ���� �º �¡� �£�� ~�
» ]Ẁ ZmZq\

¸ �} ������ ~�� ���� �· ���������� ~��� ��� ~�~��� ������� �� ~� ���~£��� ���� �º �¡� �£�� ~�

» ]Ẁ ZmZq\y um`̀ ]\XXW Zwbv \qYZq\]ZXYlbv \Ẁ Xmyd \` qYnneZWb u g
¥ Y]bvW Zwb YZ i { mW Y i© mv Z i © m]]W XYZ�d mZZW Zw¼

½ ¾¿½ÀÁ ÂÃÄÅ ÆÇ ÈÉ



� ����� �����
		
 ��� �� � ����	 �� ������ � ��� ��� ��

� ���	 ��� ���

��� �� !"#�$ %& ' ()(��

1 23456 78 9: ;;<6 78 = 3< ;> 8;7? 3 @< ;A B C D16<E ;
F ;4CAA;7? 3<6 C7

G HC7IC26 78 J CK746E A;AL ;2+ J CAA6 II6 C7F ;IHC7I6LE ; = ;H32< A;7<+ =6 M6 I6 C7F 375: 325 ;? N C2 F ;ACM3E

TTP T¦P QSTRQRc \l \]]mdb Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]³Ê ±eWb myd \_ qq\XXb Y
¶ ]\\ZXamq\

c \l \]b Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]b Y\̈ad Y]\` \r\d YaW Zwmad mZl Y]W Zq]\mXW ZwÊ ±eWb myd \_ qq\XXb Y

¶ ]\\ZXamq\W Zt \]p \d \u g² eb e]\am]p XmZ` w]\\ZXamq\W Zr\Xb n\Zb XXv Yed̀y \b m]w\b \` mb ]\` eqW Zw

Yl uYebv gX\ZW Y]XmZ`̀W Xmyd \` a\Yad \eZmyd \b Yb ]mr\db YnY]\Ẁ Xb mZbl mqWdWbW \X|v \zWb unmu

����� Ë����~����� ��� ~��} �~��� ����~��Ì� ��� �� ��� ��� ��� ���� ��} ~���¡ Í��� ��� �� �� ���Î

��~� ����� ��� �� ��� ����� �� ��} �~��� ~��� ��� ~�º �Ï �� �~����� ��~��� ���� �� ��� ���� ��� ~���

�� �~�~���� ���� ��~�� ~}Ï ��� ����� ��~º �Ð ����� ~������ ~��Ñ ������ ��   �} Ò�� ���� �� �~��  ����� Ò

qYZZ\qbW YZX^ ovW qv a]YnYb \Xbv \a]\X\Zq\mZ` mbb ]mqbW r\Z\XXYl omdpW ZwmZỳWp \ambv Xb Yw]\\Z

Xamq\XW ZY]` \]b Y\ZqYe]mw\bv \W ]eX\ g|v \zWb uXv Yed̀W Zr\XbW wmb \Xb ]mb \wW \Xl Y]\̈amZẀ Zwam]p

qmamqWb uW Zqd eẀ ZwmXX\XXW Zwa]W n\m]\mXl Y]` \r\d YaW ZwZ\oam]p XmZ` w]\\ZXamq\X iXeqv mXW Zbv \

_̀ \dW Z\z Y]]Ẁ Y]mZk̀ mZb m² \c»¥ g|v \_̀ \dW Z\z Y]]Ẁ Y]�d mZneXb qYZXẀ \]mZ` mqqYeZbl Y]

W Zq]\mXW Zww]\\ZXamq\W Zbv \k Yebv \mXbµ em` ]mZb Ylt \]p \d \u imZ` \̈ad Y]\W ZZYrmbW r\omuXl Y]

W Zb \w]mbW Zww]\\ZXamq\W Zb YYe]e]y mZ\ZrW ]YZn\Zb g| YW nad \n\Zbbv \X\]\qYnn\Z` mbW YZX ibv \

zWb uXv Yed̀ \̈ad Y]\aeydW qa]W rmb \l eZẀ Zwam]b Z\]XvW aXmXo\dd mXqYnneZWb uam]b Z\]XvW aXoWbv

t \]p \d \u]\XẀ \Zb X iqYnneZWb uY]wmZW xmbW YZX imZd̀ Yqmdy eXW Z\XX\X g|v \zWb uXv Yed̀ md XY\̈ad Y]\

` \r\d Yan\Zbl YeZ` mbW YZX imZỳ YZ` Xl Y]XeaaY]bW Zwl e]bv \]W Zr\Xb n\ZbW Zam]p XmZ` w]\\ZXamq\X

t eWd̀W ZwaeydW qd umqq\XXWyd \\qY j]YYl X iW Zq]\mXW Zw\` eqmbW YZmZ` Yeb ]\mqvb Y` \r\d Ya\]XmZ`

a]W rmb \qWbW x\ZX]\wm]Ẁ Zw\qY j]YYl X imZẀ ZqY]aY]mbW ZwW Zq\ZbW r\Xl Y]\qY j]YYl XW Zb Ybv \ad mZZW Zwt m]bd \bb� m]p X ic \q i ¥ mb \]l ]YZbP �d mZZW ZwP �
eydW q¥ Y]p XÓ

QP «P QSThQQc \Xb ]W qb� m]pW ZwW Zbv \©Wdd X© mxm]` YeX²W ]\_ ]\m
°z YZbW Ze\l̀ ]YnÔ mZem]uTQ iQSTĥ

c \l \]b YXb mllbv \` \XW wZYl mam]pW Zw]\Xb ]W qbW YZa]Yw]mnW Zbv \©Wdd X²W ]\[ YZ\b Y\ZXe]\mqq\XXl Y]

\n\]w\Zqur\vW qd \XmZb̀ Ymdd Yol Y]Xml \\rmqembW YZXW ZmZ\n\]w\ZqumZb̀ Yv Yd̀ aeydW q

n\\bW ZwXb Yw\b qYnneZWb uW ZaebW Zbv \` \XW wZYl Xeqv ma]Yw]mn g
¥ \Zw]ml°¤W Xb gĥ� eydW q¥ Y]p XÕ

¯P TP QSTUQhk eaad \n\Zb md nmb \]W md X°k eaaQ̂
c \l \]b Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]b Y` \r\d Yav \mdbv mZ` Xml \b uXb mZ` m]` XmXqmdd \l̀ Y]eZ` \]_t«OQ°¶z

Uh«U g¦̂l Y]mdb \]ZmbW r\v YeXW ZwnY` \d X g

z YeZqWd©©zk
Ö

RP Q̄P QSTROUc \l \]]mdb Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]mZb̀v \�d mZZW Zw
z YnnW XXW YZ³_̀ \dW Z\z Y]]Ẁ Y]z YnneZWb ut \Z\lWb X

» ]Ẁ ZmZq\
c \l \]b Ybv \�d mZZW Zwz YnnW XXW YZb Y³Ê Xb mydW Xv mxYZW ZwYr\]d mul Y]a]Ya\]bW \X` \XW wZmb \` mXam]b

Ylbv \_̀ \dW Z\z Y]]Ẁ Y]�d mZW ZY]` \]b Ya]YnYb \W ZZYrmbW YZXW Zv YeXW ZwaYdW qumZ¤̀ \r\d Ya

]\wed mbW YZXl Y]bv \_̀ \dW Z\z Y]]Ẁ Y]xYZW ZwYr\]d mu g|vW XYr\]d muẀ Xb ]W qb Xv Yed̀y \m` Yab \Ẁ Z

qYZs eZqbW YZoWbvbv \_̀ \dW Z\z Y]]Ẁ Y]ad mZY]W ZqY]aY]mb \Ẁ Zb YWb̀W ]\qbd u g
t m]bd \bb�d mZZW Zw*×

Ø ¾¿½ÀÁ ÂÃÄÙ ÆÇ ÈÉ



� ����� �����
		
 ��� �� � ����	 �� ������ � ��� ��� ��

� ���	 ��� ���

��� �� !"#�$ %& ' ()(��

1 23456 78 9: ;;<6 78 = 3< ;> 8;7? 3 @< ;A B C D16<E ;
F ;4CAA;7? 3<6 C7

G HC7IC26 78 J CK746E A;AL ;2+ J CAA6 II6 C7F ;IHC7I6LE ; = ;H32< A;7<+ =6 M6 I6 C7F 375: 325 ;? N C2 F ;ACM3E

QSTh jh«TSP TRP QSTR¦T��� �· ������¸ �} ������ ~Ú �� �� ���� �º �· ��� �� ���
z Y` \| Y¬ Zq]\mX\z Yna\bWbW r\Z\XXYl| m̈W¬ Z` eXb ]u�� ���� �� ~����� ��} ��� ~�� ���� �· ������� ~��� �� ��� ���� �º ����� �� ��� �~� ������ ~��Û �ÜÝ �ÞÝÞ �

« gQ̄ gSRS i« gS¦ gSQS imZ«̀ gS¦ gSŌb Y]\ld \qbbv \l Ydd YoW ZwWb \nX iW ZY]` \]b YW Zq]\mX\bv \

qYna\bWbW r\Z\XXYl Ye]d Yqmdb m̈WW Z` eXb ]u³O g_dd Yobv \mZZemd r\vW qd \W ZXa\qbW YZb Yy \qYZ` eqb \`

y u\Wbv \]mqWb u\nad Yu\\Y]mZ_k¬ jq\]bWlW \` n\qv mZW q g¦ gz YZXb ]eqb mw\Z\]md aYdW qubv mb oYed̀

mdd Yob m̈W Xb mZ` Xb YYa\]mb \Z\m]Z\od uqYZXb ]eqb \` mZ` \̈W XbW Zwv Yb \d XW Zbv \qWb uYlt \]p \d \u g¯ g

{ Yr\bv \_ Xvy ut_c|| m̈Wkb mZ` Yeb XẀ \Ylbv \t_c| Xb mbW YZb YZ\W wvy Y]W Zw{ gß gà gÔ ] g¥ mu iW Z

Y]` \]b YW Zq]\mX\rW XWyWdWb ul Y]b m̈W X gh gÊ ¨b \Zb̀v \\̈\nabW YZYlbv \ß YoÊ nW XXW YZc \±eW ]\n\Zb X

l Y]rmZXb Yb m̈W X` e\b Ybv \eZmrmWd myWdWb uYl XW nWd m]d uXW x\v̀ uy ]Ẁ r\vW qd \X gR gÊ ¨b \Zb̀v \rmdẀWb u

a\]W Y` Ylb m̈Ẁ ]W r\]¬¤ a\]nWb Xb Ybv ]\\u\m]X i]\ad mqW Zwbv \qe]]\Zb aYdW quYl u\m]d u]\Z\omd X g¬ Z

m`̀WbW YZ imdd \̈W XbW Zwa\]nWb Xb YÔ mZem]uT iQSTU Xv Yed̀ a\]l Y]nmZ\b ]\Z\omd YZÔ mZem]uT iQSQT g

U g¥ mW r\W ZXe]mZq\amun\Zb Xl Y]b m̈Ẁ ]W r\]Xov YneXbb mp \md \mr\Yl my X\Zq\W ZqmX\Yl

��������� �áÛ �¡ £�� ��� ��� �� �â�� �� £��¢ ��~�� ��� ~�º ���~�~����� ���� ���� �~}� ��� �� ���� ~���

qv mZw\bv \\ZbW ]\]\Z\omd a]Yq\XX iW Zqd eẀ Zw]\Z\omd Yly Ybv av uXW qmd mZ` n\qv mZW qmdW ZXa\qbW YZX i

y eXW Z\XXdW q\ZX\X imZb̀ m̈Ẁ ]W r\]¬¤ X il ]YnYZ\u\m]b Ybv ]\\u\m]X g
¥ Y]bvW Zwb YZ i © m]]W XYZzWb u{ mZmw\]**

TP OSP QSTUT¦¤W ]\qbW YZmZc̀ \l \]]mdb Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]
¸ ������ ��Ì� ���� ��� ��Î� �~���� �ã ��� �� ��� �� ��� ��¢}} ~�� ��� �ä ~��� ��� �~å ���� ��� ���� �º �� ~��}} ~�� ��� �� ~��� ����� ~��� � �

� ���� ��� �� ������� ���~���� � �� ~� �� �£�� ~���} ~��}} ~�� ��� �� ~��� ��} ��� ���� ���� �Ìä� ��

� �� ~��� �Î ~��� ��� �� ~}� ~��� ��� ���� ��� £��������� �� ~����� ~�æ ~£��� ��Ýç �ÝÞèé �¹ ��� ��� ~}�� �

my Yr\ i]\l \]b Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]b Yb mp \bv \l Ydd YoW ZwmqbW YZXb YnYr\� ]\nW \]z ]el Y]om]` mXm

©W wv� ]W Y]Wb uW ZWbW mbW r\³m gt mX\` YZ]\qYnn\Z` mbW YZXl ]Yn© \mdbv i© YeXW ZwmZz̀ YnneZWb u

k \]rW q\XmZ` Ybv \]¤ \am]b n\Zb X ibv \© YeXW Zw_̀ rW XY]uz YnnW XXW YZ imZ` YZqYZXedb mbW YZoWbvd Yqmd

mll Y]` myd \v YeXW Zwa]YrẀ \]X imZb̀ mpW ZwW Zb YqYZXẀ \]mbW YZ]\±eW ]\n\Zb XmZ` ]\Xb ]W qbW YZX

mXXYqW mb \` oWbv aYb \ZbW mdl eZẀ ZwXYe]q\X iq]\mb \m]\qYnn\Z` mbW YZY]]\qYnn\Z` mbW YZXb Y

z YeZqWd ]\wm]Ẁ Zwd \r\d XYl mll Y]` myWdWb u ieZWb XW x\X iYZ jXWb \X\]rW q\XmZ` Ybv \]l \mb e]\Xb Yy \

W Zqd e` \Ẁ Zbv \a]YaYX\` a]Ys \qb Y]a]Ys \qb X gy gt mX\` YZbv \my Yr\mZmd uX\XmZ`

]\qYnn\Z` mbW YZX imZ` YZz YeZqWd̀W ]\qbW YZ i` \r\d YamZẀ XXe\mZc²µ Y]c²�b Ymll Y]` myd \

v YeXW Zw` \r\d Ya\]Xl Y]a]YaYXmd Xb Y` \r\d Yamll Y]` myd \v YeXW Zwmbbv \XWb \ g
© mv Z i_ ]]\weW Z i { mW Y i© m]]W XYZ©©zk �d mZZW Zw*ª

TQP ¯P QSTRŢ̄ �} ��� ~�� ���� �· ������º �ê}}� ������ �� ���
c \l \]]md ³k \qYZ¤̀ o\ddW Zw§ ZWbP _ qq\XXY]u¤ o\ddW Zw

§ ZWb�Wd Yb� ]Yw]mnb Y© YeX\bv \© Yn\d \XX¸ �} ��� ~�� ���� �· ������º �~}}� ������� �ä¢�� ~� �£�� ~�����~��� ����� ������  ������~��

` o\ddW ZweZWb�Wd Yb� ]Ys \qb mXmZm`̀WbW YZmd Xb ]mb \wub Ya]YrẀ \v YeXW Zwl Y]v Yn\d \XXa\]XYZXmZ`

l mnWdW \X g

t m]bd \bb�d mZZW Zw*®

ë ¾¿½ÀÁ ÂÃÄì ÆÇ ÈÉ



� ����� �����
		
 ��� �� � ����	 �� ������ � ��� ��� ��

� ���	 ��� ���

��� �� !"#�$ %& ' ()(��

1 23456 78 9: ;;<6 78 = 3< ;> 8;7? 3 @< ;A B C D16<E ;
F ;4CAA;7? 3<6 C7

G HC7IC26 78 J CK746E A;AL ;2+ J CAA6 II6 C7F ;IHC7I6LE ; = ;H32< A;7<+ =6 M6 I6 C7F 375: 325 ;? N C2 F ;ACM3E

RP TQP QSThOOÊ ¨b \ZẀ Zw» a\]mbW Zw© Ye]XW Zz Ynn\]qW md¤W Xb ]W qb Xc \l \]b Ybv \�d mZZW Zwz YnnW XXW YZb Y]\rW \omZ` mn\Zb̀v \[ YZW Zw» ]Ẁ ZmZq\b Y\̈b \Z` Ya\]mbW Zw

v Ye]XYly eXW Z\XX\XW ZqYnn\]qW md̀W Xb ]W qb Xbv ]Yewv Yebt \]p \d \umXl Ydd YoX³Q¦v Ye]XW Zbv \

¤ YoZb YoZmZf̀ Y]bv XẀ \°Ê eqdẀ_ r\Ze\y \b o\\Z© \m]Xb mZc̀Ẁ w\^ qYnn\]qW md̀W Xb ]W qb XX\r\Z

` muXmo\\p iv Yo\r\]ae]XemZbb YXb mb \d mobv \Xmd \Yl md qYv YdW qy \r\]mw\XW XdW nWb \b̀ YQ m gn g

² ]Ẁ mumZk̀ mb e]` mub YQ m gn gW Zbv \Êd noYY` mZf̀ Y]bvkv mbb eqp̀W Xb ]W qb X g© Yo\r\] iXmd \XmZ`

X\]rW q\Yl md qYv YdW qy \r\]mw\XW XdW nWb \b̀ Yl edd jX\]rW q\]\Xb me]mZb Xk \r\Z` muXmo\\pb YQ m gn gmb

ZY` \XYlbv \k mZ� myd YẀ Xb ]W qb g
z YZXẀ \]maad uW ZwW Zbv \X\Ẁ Xb ]W qb Xbv \\̈W XbW Zw]\wed mbW YZXW Zbv \z j|̀W Xb ]W qb YZ

Yll jXmd \Yl md qYv YdW qy \r\]mw\XmZ` YZa]\nW X\qYZXenabW YZYl̀W XbWdd \` md qYv YdW qy \r\]mw\Xmbl edd j

X\]rW q\]\Xb me]mZb X g kW nWd m]b Ybv \\̈W XbW ZwQ¦ jv Ye]xYZW Zw` \XW wZmbW YZW Zbv \| \d \w]mavz Ynn\]qW md¤W Xb ]W qb ibv \X\

mn\Z` n\Zb XoWdd mdd Yoy eXW Z\XX\XW Zbv \X\m]\mXb Y]\nmW ZYa\Zd mb \]oWbv Yeb mZm`̀WbW YZmd§ X\

� \]nWb g

_ ]]\weW Z°¤¦̂�d mZZW Zw*́ í

QP QRP QSThUÊ Zmyd \¬ Zb \]Zmdc \ZYrmbW YZYl mc \XẀ \Zq\|v mb
¤ Y\Xf Yb¬ Zq]\mX\bv \² YYb a]W Zb_ XmZ_§�Wlbv \

t eWd̀W ZwW XmZ©W Xb Y]W qf YZ jz YZl Y]nW Zw§ X\W Zbv \
� \]q\Zb Ylß Ybz Yr\]mw\

c \l \]b Ybv \�d mZZW Zwz YnnW XXW YZb Y\Zmyd \mZ_§�l Y]bv \]\ZYrmbW YZYl mZ\̈W XbW Zw]\XẀ \Zq\ i

]mbv \]bv mZml edd aeydW qv \m]W Zw iW Zbv \l Ydd YoW ZwqW ]qenXb mZq\X³T g|v \]\ZYrmbW YZ` Y\XZYb

W Zq]\mX\bv \a\]q\Zb mw\Yld Yb qYr\]mw\Q g|v \]\XẀ \Zq\W XmZvW Xb Y]W qZYZ jqYZl Y]nW ZweX\W Zbv \

a\]q\Zb mw\Yld Yb qYr\]mw\O g|v \]\ZYrmbW YZ` Y\XZYb maa\m]b Yq]\mb \mZW Zb \ZXWlW qmbW YZYl eX\

¦ gf Yqv mZw\b Ybv \y eWd̀W Zw\Zr\d Ya\ g

{ mW Y i¥ \Zw]ml i ¤ ]YXb \ i© m]]W XYZ�d mZZW Zw*/

TSP OTP QSTRQRzWb u{ mZmw\]mZ�̀d mZZW Zwz YnnW XXW YZc \l \]]md ³
² mqWdWb mb \� ]W nm]Wd ukb e` \Zb© YeXW Zwy um| o\Zb u

² \\b© \W wvb¬ Zq]\mX\mZ_̀̀s eXb²d YY]_ ]\mc mbW YW Z
bv \c jk{§ ic jk mZc̀ jO_ ]\mX» Zd u² ]Yn¤ oW wvbb Y

t mZq]Ylb mZ²̀ ]Ynz Ydd \w\b Y² edb YZc \l \]b Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]mZ�̀d mZZW Zwz YnnW XXW YZb Yl mqWdWb mb \a]W nm]Wd ukb e` \Zb© YeXW Zwy u

mn\ZẀ Zwbv \[ YZW Zw» ]Ẁ ZmZq\b Ym`̀ mb o\Zb ul \\bv \W wvbW Zq]\mX\mZ` ms̀ eXb²d YY]_ ]\mc mbW Y

W Zbv \c jk{§ ic jk mZc̀ jO m]\mXYZd ul ]Yn¤ oW wvbb Yt mZq]Ylb mZl̀ ]Ynz Ydd \w\b Y² edb YZ g¥ Y]bvW Zwb YZ i © m]]W XYZ�d mZZW Zw*¼

TSP TUP QSThQ¦Ê ämZẀ Zwbv \¤ YoZb YoZ_ ]b X¤W Xb ]W qbT gc \±e\Xbbv \�d mZZW Zwz YnnW XXW YZ\̈mnW Z\\̈amZẀ Zwbv \y YeZ` m]W \XYlbv \qe]]\Zb

¤ YoZb YoZ_ ]b X¤W Xb ]W qb» r\]d mumXo\dd mXbv \mdd Yomyd \mqbW r\w]YeZ` jld YY]eX\X g

Q gc \±e\Xbbv \zWb u{ mZmw\]qYZXẀ \]bv \¤ YoZb YoZ_ ]b X¤W Xb ]W qb mXam]b Ylbv \ea` mb \b Ybv \

t \]p \d \u_ ]b XmZz̀ edb e]\�d mZ g

{ muY]�d mZZW Zw*Ó

QSTh jO«OP TOP QSTUTO̧ �} ������ ~�� ���� �· ������º �ê}}� ���¢ ���� ���� �
b Yt \]p \d \u{ eZW qW amdz Y` \|Wbd \T¦¸ �} ��� ~�� ���� �· ������º �~}}� ��� ~�è �� �£�� ~������ ���� �� ~� ��� �� ��· ��� �� ���� ~� ����� �èî

b Ymebv Y]W x\Z\oam]pW Zwn\b \]XW Zk Yebvt \]p \d \umd YZwbv \l Ydd YoW Zwm]\mX³m gkv mbb eqp_ r\

y \b o\\Z¤ \]y umZ¥̀ m]` mZỳ gkv mbb eqp_ r\y \b o\\Z¤ \]y umZz̀ m]d \b YZ gQ g© Yd̀ maeydW q

v \m]W ZwmZ` eaYZqYZqd eXW YZm` Yabbv \lW ]Xb ]\mẀ ZwYlbv \Y]Ẁ ZmZq\W ZqY]aY]mbW Zwmn\Z` n\Zb X

Ẁ \ZbWlW \` my Yr\ g

t m]bd \bb i© mv Z� eydW q¥ Y]p X*Õ

¦P ¦P QSTRQhc \l \]]mdc \XaYZX\³¶ \Z` \]� muÊ ±eWb uQ gz Ynad \b \mamumeẀb YZbv \Xmd m]W \XYlzWb uYlt \]p \d \u\nad Yu\\Xb YW Zr\XbW wmb \aYb \ZbW md

w\Z` \]amuwmaXoWbvW Zbv \qWb uoY]pl Y]q\

z»k»¥©c
*Ö

¯P QP QSTRTRc \l \]]mdb Y�d mZZW Zwz YnnW XXW YZb Y� ]YrẀ \
» ]Ẁ ZmZq\ß mZwemw\l Y]bv \z ]\mbW YZYlÔ eZW Y]_¤§ Xc \l \]b Ybv \�d mZZW Zwz YnnW XXW YZb Ya]YrẀ \Y]Ẁ ZmZq\d mZwemw\l Y]bv \q]\mbW YZYlÔ eZW Y]_¤§ X

mZ` ]\b e]Zb YzWb uz YeZqWdl Y]m` YabW YZ g

¥ \Zw]ml�d mZZW Zwª×

ï ¾¿½ÀÁ ÂÃÄÉ ÆÇ ÈÉ



� ����� �����
		
 ��� �� � ����	 �� ������ � ��� ��� ��

� ���	 ��� ���

��� �� !"#�$ %& ' ()(��

1 23456 78 9: ;;<6 78 = 3< ;> 8;7? 3 @< ;A B C D16<E ;
F ;4CAA;7? 3<6 C7

G HC7IC26 78 J CK746E A;AL ;2+ J CAA6 II6 C7F ;IHC7I6LE ; = ;H32< A;7<+ =6 M6 I6 C7F 375: 325 ;? N C2 F ;ACM3E

OP TOP QSTUTS² \XbW rmd¶ ]mZb X� ]Yw]mn
c \l \]b Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]bv \\Xb mydW Xv n\Zb Ylbv \zWb uYlt \]p \d \u² \XbW rmd¶ ]mZb X� ]Yw]mnb Y

mdd Yqmb \¶ \Z\]md² eZ` w]mZb Xl Y]Xa\qW md \r\Zb XmZl̀ \XbW rmd XrW mm]\wed m]mZb̀ ]mZXam]\Zb a]Yq\XX i

l Y]W nad \n\Zb mbW YZy \wW ZZW ZwW Zbv \²ðQSQSy e` w\b u\m] g_ aa]Yr\` ]\qYnn\Z` mbW YZ]\rW X\b̀ Y

W Zqd e` \Ẁ ]\qbW YZbv mbbv \qYnnW XXW YZoWddW Zqd e` \w\Yw]mavW qmZ` ]mqW md \ZbWb uov \ZqYZXẀ \]W Zw

l eZẀ Zw]\±e\Xb X g

zW rW q_ ]b X z YnnW XXW YZ»Ê¤
ª*

¦P Q¦P QSTUTh� m]bW mdc \XaYZX\b Yz YeZqWdc \l \]]md YZ¤ \\a¶ ]\\Z
t eWd̀W Zw¬ ZWbW mbW r\ jc \qYnn\Z` mbW YZl Y]¤ \Ẁ qmb \`

c \r\Ze\kb ]\mnb Y¬ Zq\ZbW rW x\c \XẀ \ZbW mdÊ Z\]wu
ÊllW qW \ZqumZỀd \qb ]WlW qmbW YZ

zWb uz YeZqWd ]\l \]Xb YXb mll m]\±e\Xbb YqYZ` eqb mZmZmd uXW Xb YẀ \ZbWl umZ`̀ \r\d YamX\b Yl

a]Yw]mnXmZ` aYdW qW \XqYZXW Xb \Zb oWbvbv \zdW nmb \_ qbW YZ�d mZb YW Zq\ZbW rW x\]\XẀ \ZbW md \Z\]wu

\llW qW \ZqumZ` \d \qb ]WlW qmbW YZW Zr\Xb n\Zb X iy mX\` YZmqYXby \Z\lWb mZmd uXW Xb Y` \b \]nW Z\vW wv \Xb

rmd e\\Z\]wu jXmrW Zwn\mXe]\X g|vW X]\qYnn\Z` mbW YZXeaaY]b Xbv \¤ \\a¶ ]\\Zt eWd̀W Zw¬ ZWbW mbW r\

]\l \]]mdl ]Ynbv \z YeZqWdb Ybv \Ê Z\]wuz YnnW XXW YZ gz YeZqWdl e]bv \]]\l \]Xñ S̄ iSSSb Ybv \y e` w\b

a]Yq\XXl Y]bv \Xb mll oY]p mZ` mZmd uXW X g

z YeZqWd�d mZZW Zwªª

RP T¦P QST̄ORc \l \]]mdb Y�d mZZW Zwz YnnW XXW YZ³¶ eẀW Zw
¤ \r\d Yan\Zb YZk mZ� myd Y_ r\Ze\

c \l \]b Ybv \�d mZZW Zwz YnnW XXW YZbv \` \r\d Yan\Zb Yl m�d mZb YweẀ \` \r\d Yan\Zb YZk mZ� myd Y

_ r\Ze\ g

{ mW Y°¤W Xb gT̂ i { YY]\°¤W Xb gQ̂�d mZZW Zwª®

RP TTP QSTRT«VWb mdWb uYl§ ZW r\]XWb u_ r\Ze\
c \l \]b Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]mZỀ qYZYnW q¤ \r\d Yan\Zbb YmZmd ux\Xb Y]\l ]YZb rmqmZqW \XYZ

§ ZW r\]XWb u_ r\Ze\mZ` nmp \]\qYnn\Z` mbW YZXYZv Yob Yq]\mb \mnY]\rWy ]mZb Xb ]\\b Xqma\YZ

Ye]nmW Zy Yed \rm]` g

{ mW Y i¤ mrWd m i © m]]W XYZ»Ê¤
ª́

¯P TP QSTUQ̄c \l \]]mdb Ybv \�d mZZW Zwz YnnW XXW YZb Y_dd Yo¦
| \naY]m]u[ YZW Zw_ n\Z` n\Zb Xb Y¬ Zq]\mX\kb e` \Zb

© YeXW ZwW Zbv \k Yebv XẀ \_ ]\m
c \l \]b Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]mZb̀v \�d mZZW Zwz YnnW XXW YZb YqYZXẀ \]qYZr\]XW YZYl \̈W XbW Zw

qYnn\]qW md Xamq\l Y]]\XẀ \ZbW md eX\y \b o\\Zz Ydd \w\_ r\Ze\mZ²̀ edb YZkb ]\\b mZt̀ mZq]Ylb¥ mu

b Y¤ oW wvb¥ mu g

¥ Y]bvW Zwb YZ�d mZZW Zwª/

QSTR j¦«¦P ¦P QSTRQhc \l \]]mdc \XaYZX\³¶ \Z` \]� muÊ ±eWb uO g¤ \r\d YamZ\±emd amuq\]bWlW qmbW YZa]Yw]mnl Y]qWb uqYZb ]mqb Y]X g
z»k»¥»Ê¤

ª¼

RP TTP QSTRTR{WbW
wmbW Zw¬ namqb XYl» eb̀ YY]_W ]µ emdWb uYZ¬ Z` YY]

_W ]µ emdWb uW Zt \]p \d \u
c \l \]bv \Wb \nb Ybv \�d mZZW Zwz YnnW XXW YZb YqYZXẀ \]bv \mZmd uX\Xa]\X\Zb \v̀ \]\ imZb̀v \` ]mlb

a]YrẀ \Ẁ Z_ aa\ZẀ ¨¬¬ ib Yq]\mb \Z\okb mZ` m]z̀ YZẀbW YZXYl_ aa]Yrmd°kz_̂l Y]Z\oy eWd̀W Zw

qYZXb ]eqbW YZZ\m]nms Y]XYe]q\XYl mW ]aYdd ebW YZ ib YmqvW \r\mZmqq\ab myd \d \r\d YlW Z` YY]mW ]

±emdWb u°¬_µ̂l Y]X\ZXWbW r\]\q\ab Y]X g

zÊ_z�d mZZW ZwªÓ

QP TOP QSTUOSc \XẀ \ZbW md� ]\l \]\ZbW md� m]pW Zw°c��̂� ]Yw]mn
c \l Y]nmZỀ ämZXW YZ

Q gc \l \]b Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]b Y\̈ad Y]\YabW YZXb Ymn\Z` n\Zb Xb Ybv \Y]Ẁ ZmZq\]\d mb \b̀ Ybv \

qmaYZa\]nWb Xl Y]XWb embW YZXXeqv mXqm]\wW r\]X iqvWd̀ qm]\ imZ` Ybv \]X g
z YeZqWd� eydW q¥ Y]p XªÕ

TTP T¦P QSTRQTzWb u{ mZmw\]c \l \]]mdb Y¬ na]Yr\²W ]\k ml \b u
kb mZ` m]` Xl Y]c \y eWdb²W ]\ j¤ mnmw\k̀b ]eqb e]\Xc \l \]b Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]b Y]\±eW ]\]\amW ]mZ` ]\ad mq\n\Zb YllW ]\` mnmw\ỳ eWd̀W ZwXb Yy \

y ]Yewvb eab Yqe]]\ZblW ]\Xml \b uXb mZ` m]` X g

¥ Y]bvW Zwb YZ²W ]\
ªÖ

OP QRP QSTUQh� ~����� ~�¸ ��~�� ��� �ÏÏ���¡� ~��� ��� ~�º �
� ]YaYX\�̀ YdW qub Yc \l ]mW Zl ]Yn� ]Yqe]W Zw ik \ddW Zw i

mZk̀ \]rW Zwk ewm] jk o\\b \Z\t̀ \r\]mw\X
c \l \]y Ybv¬b \nQh mmZQ̀hyb Ybv \zWb u{ mZmw\]mZ` ]\±e\Xbbv mbbv \zWb u{ mZmw\]` ]mlb mZ

Y]Ẁ ZmZq\l Y]qYZXẀ \]mbW YZy ubv \zWb uz YeZqWd g» ]W wW Zmdz Ynnc \qYnn\Z` mbW YZ³ò gggm` Yab mZ

» ]Ẁ ZmZq\mn\ZẀ Zwbv \_̀ nW ZW Xb ]mbW r\z Y` \b YẀ ]\qbbv \zWb uYlt \]p \d \u` \am]b n\Zb XmZz̀Wb u

l YY` X\]rW q\XqYZb ]mqb Y]Xb Y]\l ]mW Zl ]Yn³T g� ]Yqe]W ZwXewm] jXo\\b \Z\ỳ \r\]mw\XoWbvzWb u

l eZ` XQ gk \ddW ZwXewm] jXo\\b \Z\ỳ \r\]mw\XYZzWb ua]Ya\]b u iW Zqd eẀ ZwW Zr\ZẀ ZwnmqvW Z\XmZ`

O gk \]rW ZwXewm] jXo\\b \Z\ỳ \r\]mw\XmbzWb un\\bW ZwXmZ` \r\Zb XYZzWb ua]Ya\]b u gòkkt��»Ê©©zk
®×

ó ¾¿½ÀÁ ÂÃÄôõ ÆÇ ÈÉ



ö ÷øùúû üûýúþ
ÿÿ� ���� �� � ÷ø���ÿ ù	 ù

��� 
� �
��� ��� �ø

�� ø��ÿ �ø�� ø��

��� ��� ����� �� �������

 !"#$% &' () **+% &' , "+ *- '*&. " /+ *0 1 2 3 %+4 *
5 *#200*&. "+% 2&

6 72&82!% &' 9 2:&#%4 0*0; *!< 9 200% 88% 2&5 *872&8%;4 * , *7"!+ 0*&+< ,% =% 8% 2&5 "&$) "!$ *. > 2! 5 *02="4

?@AB CDEF A?F ?@ABGHIJ KLMNNO LPJN QR STSULKN VI KSWN STX KYJ TSTMLN V
Z SJ [LP LKN SJ T\ LL]W VK^ LK_ L` LQD Va]J TUb Ka]N\ aTY

c KVd LMN ]STYe LTY Sf LNN LKN VĝeÎ VSKY VW
hY aMSNJ VTi LjaL]NJ TUP VT]JY LKSNJ VTVW SZ SJ [LKVW

e MO VV\̀ SMJ̀JN Q\ LL]W VK^ LK_ L` LQD Va]J TUb Ka]N\ aTY
c KVd LMN ]

A kIJ KLMNNO LPJN QR STSULKN VY KSWN STVKYJ TSTMLL]N Sl̀J ]OJ TUSaN VmSNJ MnSJ [LKVW MLKN SJ T

SY mJ TJ ]N KSNJ [L opLKmJN oJ mpSMN STY VNO LKW LL]W VKpKVd LMN ]KLMLJ [J TUPJN QVŴ LK_ L` LQD Va]J TUb Ka]N

\ aTYqDb\r mVTJ L]STY ]al mJN SY KSWN nJNOJ TE@Y SQ]W VKP VaTMJ̀ SppKV[S` k\ LLnSJ [LK]]O S`̀ Spp` Q

N VS`̀Db\ pKVd LMN ]NO SNO S[LTVN QLNl LLTJ ]]aLY Sl aJ̀YJ TUpLKmJN oSTY ]O VaỲJ TM` aY L ol aN TVNl L

J̀ mJN LYN VsS kZ SJ [LKVWJ TN LKTS` o]N SWW CNJ mL CKL` SN LY pLKmJN oJ T]pLMNJ VT oSTY VNO LKW LL]tSTY M k

u vw xywz {w |}~y }�wz �|� v�� �� ��{w v�v����yw �� v�w v� �v�� �w� �v{w { �� ��{�|{{�~ �wz �v��zw vvwz ��

SULTMJ L] oSTYW LL]TLML]]JN SN LYl QPh�� ]O VaỲ TVNl LnSJ [LY k
D SO T oD SKKJ ]VT o � KKLUaJ Tc̀ STTJ TU��

HF A�F ?@ABG@c KJ VKJNJ �J TUc LY L]N KJ ST]SN� TN LK]LMNJ VT]i LW LKN VNO LPJN QR STSULKSTYNO Lb KST]pVKN SNJ VTP VmmJ ]]J VTNO LY L[L` VpmLTN VW pVJ̀ MJ L]N V

J mpKV[LNO LpLY L]N KJ STMKV]]J TUL�pLKJ LTMLSTY KLY aMLpLY L]N KJ STnSJNNJ mL]SNJ TN LK]LMNJ VT]

xywz�� ��� �ww v}{ �� �vw �}wy |�� �� �|�wy �|wy }���~ �{w �y |}��v{{y }�{y �}|�y }�xywz ��������� �� |{

VppV]LYN VNO LMaKKLTN ]JN aSNJ VT onOJ MO VT` QSMNJ [SN L]MKV]]J TU]J UTS` ]nO LTSl aNN VTJ ]pa]O LYr k

P VT]JY LKNO LY L[L` VpmLTN VW SpLY L]N KJ ST CY KJ [LTJ TN LK]LMNJ VTJ mpKV[LmLTN pKVML]]N VSYY KL]]

]J UTSJ̀ TUSTYNJ mJ TUJ TSY LjaSMJ L]

I KV]N L oZ LTUKSW o ^ SKǸ LNNc al̀J MZ VK_ ]��

HF �@F ?@AB?B̂ aY ULNi LW LKKS` s� VaNOfJ ]N LTJ TUP SmpSJ UT�
PJN QnJY LR S]N LKc̀ ST

� mLTY LYN VJ TM` aY L� VaNOP VmmJ ]]J VT k� T]appVKN VWNO L?@?@�J ]J VTpKVML]]STY S]pSKN VWNO L

` SKULKMVmmJN mLTN VWNO LPJN QVŴ LK_ L` LQN VJN ]QVaTUpLVp` L onLSKLpKVpV]J TUSp` STTJ TU

pKVML]]NO SN MLTN LK]NO L[VJ ML]STY TLLY ]VW QVaTUpLVp` L oNO LJ KW SmJ̀J L]STYNO LpLVp` LnO V

]appVKNNO LmY SQ CJ TSTYY SQ CVaN kbO LpKVML]]nVaỲJ TM` aY LsAr�fJ ]N LTJ TUP SmpSJ UTNO SN nVaỲ

J TM` aY LW VMa]UKVap] o]aK[LQ]STY VTL CVT CVTLJ TN LK[J Ln]N VJY LTNJW QNO LL�pLKJ LTML]VW o

pLK]pLMNJ [L]VW oTLLY ]VW STYl SKKJ LK]W VKQVaTUpLVp` L oSUL]A� C?G oJ T]LMaKJ TUSTY mSJ TN SJ TJ TU

]SW LN QSTY nL`̀ Cl LJ TU oSMOJ L[J TUNO LJ KUVS` ]STYY KLSm] oSTYO S[J TUpV]JNJ [LSTY ]appVKNJ [L

KL` SNJ VT]OJ p]nJNO SY aǸ ]J TNO LJ KJ̀ [L] oJ TM` aYJ TUNO L]MO VV` ]STY pKVUKSm]NO LQpSKNJ MJ pSN LJ Tt?r

g ]LNO LKL]aǸ ]VWNO LfJ ]N LTJ TUP SmpSJ UTN VVKUSTJ �LS]]Lml̀J L]VW QVaTUpLVp` L oNO LJ KW SmJ̀J L]

STYNO LpKVUKSm]STY pKV[JY LK]NO LQSKLMVTTLMN LYN VJ TVKY LKN VMV`̀ LMNJ [L` QKLẀ LMN VTNO L

KL]aǸ ]STYJY LTNJW QpVN LTNJ S` ]LK[J ML] opKVUKSm] oKL]VaKML]STY pVJ̀ MJ L]NO SN MVaỲ KL]pVTYN V

NO LJ KTLLY ] oKLY aMLl SKKJ LK]STYO SKm]STYl KVSY LTnO SNJ ]S[SJ̀ Sl̀ LN V]appVKN QVaTUpLVp` Lt

STY�rg ]LNO LVaN MVmL]W KVmNO LS]]Lml̀ QpKVML]]STYfJ ]N LTJ TUP SmpSJ UTN VpSKN TLKnJNO MJN Q

]N SWWJ TMKLSNJ TUS� VaNOR S]N LKc̀ ST k

� KKLUaJ T oI S[J̀ SPJN QR STSULK
��

�F A�F ?@ABGGi LW LKKSǸ VNO Lh TLKUQP VmmJ ]]J VTSTYNO LPJN Q
R STSULKsh̀ LMN KJ M� LOJ M` LPO SKUJ TUX KYJ TSTMLi LW LKN VNO Lh TLKUQP VmmJ ]]J VTSTYNO LPJN QR STSULKN VY L[L` VpSTh̀ LMN KJ M� LOJ M` Lqh�rPO SKUJ TU

X KYJ TSTMLW VKNO LPJN QVŴ LK_ L` LQ kbO LX KYJ TSTML]O S`̀ MVT]JY LKNO LKLjaJ KLmLTN ]VaǸJ TLYJ TNO L

KLpVKNW VKJ T]N S`̀ SNJ VTVW L` LMN KJ M[LOJ M` LMO SKUJ TUJ TW KS]N KaMN aKLJ TS`̀ TLnl aJ̀YJ TU]VKl aJ̀YJ TU]

aTY LKUVJ TUmSd VKSǸ LKSNJ VT] k

^ SKǸ LNN o D SKKJ ]VTPJN QR STSULKF c̀ STTJ TU��

�F A�F ?@A�?Ai LW LKKSǸ VNO Lh TLKUQP VmmJ ]]J VTseN KSN LUJ L]N V
� mpKV[Lh�g ]SUL

i LW LKN VNO Lh TLKUQP VmmJ ]]J VTSTYNO LPJN QR STSULKN VKL]LSKMOl L]N pKSMNJ ML]N VLTMVaKSULSTY

]appVKNNO La]LVW L` LMN KJ M[LOJ M` L] oSTYY L[L` VpSY KSWNh�c̀ STW VK^ LK_ L` LQNO SNPJN QP VaTMJ̀ MST

SY VpN kbO Lp` ST]O VaỲJ TM` aY LKLSJ̀ ]NJ MUVS` ]]appVKN LYl QMJN Q CnJY LJ TJNJ SNJ [L]N VJ mpKV[Lh�

y }� �|{w ���w ���|}~y }��}wy �y  �¡¢ �{�� v�£ ��� �� ��¤ {��{y~ �}w {|}~ xv�� ��{ ¥
Z LTUKSW o D SKKJ ]VT o ^ SKǸ LNN oD SO Tc̀ STTJ TU�¦

?@AB CG�A@F ABF ?@AB?Bi LW LKKSǸ VNO LPJN QR STSULKSTYc SK_ ]STY
Z SN LKW KVTNP VmmJ ]]J VTN VP KLSN LSc VJ̀ MQN V

h ]N Sl̀J ]O SP VmmLmVKSNJ [Lb KLLc KVUKSmi LW LKN VNO LPJN QR STSULKSTYNO Lc SK_ ]STYZ SN LKW KVTNP VmmJ ]]J VTNO LMKLSNJ VTVW SpVJ̀ MQ

�{w |��y {zy }�|� v§§�§v�|wy ��¨ ���© �v��|§ �{y §y� |�w vwz ��yw �¤ {© |��£ �}�zª v}|wy v}© v�y �� ¥D SO T oD SKKJ ]VT o Z LTUKSW oI S[J̀ Sc SK_ ] oi LM oZ SN LKW KVTN�«

¬ ®̄°± ²³́µµ ¶· ¸¹



ö ÷øùúû üûýúþ
ÿÿ� ���� �� � ÷ø���ÿ ù	 ù

��� 
� �
��� ��� �ø

�� ø��ÿ �ø�� ø��

��� ��� ����� �� �������

 !"#$% &' () **+% &' , "+ *- '*&. " /+ *0 1 2 3 %+4 *
5 *#200*&. "+% 2&

6 72&82!% &' 9 2:&#%4 0*0; *!< 9 200% 88% 2&5 *872&8%;4 * , *7"!+ 0*&+< ,% =% 8% 2&5 "&$) "!$ *. > 2! 5 *02="4

AF ?BF ?@AHAGi LjaL]NNO SNNO LPJN QR STSULKnVK_ nJNOP SǸ KST]N V
apUKSY LNO LJ TN LK]LMNJ VTSNe STc Sl̀ VSTYP LY SKi LjaL]NNO LPJN QR STSULKSTS` Q�LNO L]ald LMNJ TN LK]LMNJ VTSTY nVK_ nJNOP SǸ KST]N VmS_ L

J mpKV[LmLTN ]N VpKL[LTǸ VTUl SM_ Cap]SNNO LJ TN LK]LMNJ VTVWe STc Sl̀ VSTYP LY SK opSKNJ Ma` SK` Q

W VMa]LY VTNO LTLLYN VMKLSN LS` LWN CN aKT` STLVTN Ve STc Sl̀ VO LSYJ TUTVKNO k
R SJ VqIJ ]N kArc al̀J MZ VK_ ]�º

A@F ABF ?@ABG@�Y mJ TJ ]N KSNJ [LPO STUL]i L` SN LYN Vb S�J MSl ]i LjaL]NNO LPJN QR STSULKMVT]JY LKNO LW V`̀ VnJ TUSY mJ TJ ]N KSNJ [LMO STUL] oJ TVKY LKN VJ TMKLS]LNO L

MVmpLNJNJ [LTL]]VWNO LN S�JJ TY a]N KQsA ki LY aMLNO LSTTaS` [LOJ M` LJ T]pLMNJ VTW LLW KVm» ��N V» GH

STYNO LKL CJ T]pLMNJ VTW LLW KVm» GHN V» ?H kt? k� TMKLS]LNO LmS�J mamSmVaTN VWW KLLN S�J ]MKJ p

NO SNY KJ [LK]SKLSl̀ LN VKLY LLmLSMO nLL_W KVmNO LMaKKLTǸJ mJN VW» G@@N V» �@@qJWN S�J ]MKJ pJ ]

KLY LLmLYN nJ MLpLKnLL_ oNO LmS�J mamSmVaTN KLY LLmLY SN VTML]O VaỲl LKSJ ]LYN V» G@@

W KVm» ?@@r kt� kP VT]VJ̀Y SN LS`̀N S�J CKL` SN LY aTY LKN S_J TU] oJ TM` aYJ TUMa]N VmLK]LK[J MLSTYN S�J ]MKJ p

KLY LmpNJ VT oN VVTLVWWJ ML` VMSN LY SNAEGBP LTN LKeN KLLN o^ LK_ L` LQ oP�EGB@G ktG ki LY aMLNO L

l aKY LTVWNO LMaKKLTN mSTY SN VKQ]LT]JNJ [JN QN KSJ TJ TUMVaK]LW VKN S�JY KJ [LK] ol QL�p` VKJ TUSTVpNJ VT

N VMVmp` LN LNO LMVaK]LVTJ̀ TLJ T]N LSY VWJ Te ST\ KSTMJ ]MV onOJ MO MV]N ]» H@ STYJ mpV]L]VTLKVa]

` VUJ ]NJ MS` MV]N ] k\ VKL�Smp` L oS[SJ̀ Sl̀ LMVaK]L]MSTl LW VaTY SNONN psFF nnn kLjaV kMV ka_F AA Cb S�J C

I KJ [LK] ktH kP̀ SKJW QJ TnKJNJ TUNO SNN S�J CY KJ [LK]mSQpaKMO S]LMV`̀ LMNJ [LJ T]aKSTMLJ T]N LSY VW

J TYJ [JY aSJ̀ T]aKSTML kbOJ ]nJ̀̀ S`̀ VnY KJ [LK]N VSMMama` SN LSmVKL]al ]N STNJ SẀ aTYN VMV[LK

J TYJ [JY aS` MKS]O L] opSQ` L]]pLKpLK]VT oSTY KLSp]J mJ̀ SKl LTLWJN ]S]KJY L]O SKLY KJ [LK]q nO VSKL

J T]aKLYl Qb KST]pVKN SNJ VT¼ LN nVK_P VmpSTJ L]rY V k
Z VKNOJ TUN VT o D SKKJ ]VTPJN QR STSULK

�½

?@AB CHAHF A�F ?@AB??� T]N S`̀G CZ SQeN VpSN¾J̀ mSTeN KLLN STYc LKSǸ S
� [LTaL

i LjaL]NN VNO LPJN QR STSULKN VJ T]N S`̀ SG CnSQeN VpSN¾J̀ mSTeN KLLN STYc LKSǸ S� [LTaL kR SJ Vc al̀J MZ VK_ ]�¿

AF �@F ?@A�Ei LW LKKSǸ VNO LPJN QR STSULKSTYNO LD Va]J TU
P VmmJ ]]J VTN VP VT]JY LKP KLSNJ TUSI LYJ MSN LY

i L[LTaLeN KLSmW KVmP Smpa]� KLSc KVd LMN ]N V\ aTY
D Va]J TUW VKD VmL` L]]STYh �N KLmL` Qf Vn� TMVmL

eN aY LTN ] oSTYI KSWNJ TUSf LNN LKh TMVaKSUJ TU
h �p` VKSNJ VTVWg TJ [LK]JN Q\ aTYJ TU]N KLSm]W VK

]N aY LTNO Va]J TU
i LW LKN VNO LPJN QR STSULKSTYD Va]J TUP VmmJ ]]J VTN VMVT]JY LKJ TpSKN TLK]OJ pnJNONO LpKVpV]LY

Y LT]JN Ql VTa]J TNO LMSmpa]SKLSSTY VNO LKpVJ̀ MJ L]YJ KLMN LY SNJ TMKLS]J TU]N aY LTNO Va]J TU o

MKLSNJ TUSY LYJ MSN LY KL[LTaL]N KLSmN VW aTYO Va]J TUW VKO VmL` L]]STY L�N KLmL` Q` VnJ TMVmL

]N aY LTN ]a]J TUmLNO VY ]VWJY LTNJW QJ TULJ̀ UJl̀ L]N aY LTN ]l S]LY VTVTLVKmVKLVWNO LW V`̀ VnJ TU

MKJN LKJ SshXc o\�\e� oc L`̀¾ KSTN oZ VK_eN aY QjaSJ̀WJ LY oW SmJ̀ QJ TMVmLVKVNO LK[LKJWJ Sl̀ L]N SN a]S]

nL`̀ S]]J mJ̀ SKMSN LUVKJ L]SppJ̀ MSl̀ LN VUKSY aSN L]N aY LTN ] k
Z VKNOJ TUN VT o ^ SKǸ LNNDDPe

�À

EF EF ?@AG?EP KLSNJ TU�YYJNJ VTS�̀Y mJ TJ ]N KSNJ [Lc VnLK]VWÁ VTJ TU
XWWJ MLKN V¾ KSTN VKi LMVmmLTY¼ Lnc LKmJN ]S]

i L` SN LYN VP VY Lh TW VKMLmLTN
i LW LKN VNO LPJN QR STSULKSTŶ LK_ L` LQc̀ STTJ TUP VmmJ ]]J VTN VL�p` VKLNO LMKLSNJ VTVW S

mLMO STJ ]mNO SN nVaỲ L�pJ̀ MJǸ QS`̀ Vn]N SWW TLnYJ ]MKLNJ VTSKQpVnLK]N VpKL[LTN SppJ̀ MSTN ]W KVm

l LJ TUUKSTN LY TLnKL]JY LTNJ S` pLKmJN ]aTNJ̀NO LQO S[LSl SN LY VaN ]N STYJ TUTVTMVmpJ̀ STMLJ ]]aL]

VKMVY L[J V` SNJ VT]J TVNO LKl aJ̀YJ TU]NO LQVnTJ T^ LK_ L` LQnJNOJ TSKLS]VTSl̀ LNJ mLW KSmLVKN S_ LT

UVVYW SJNO mLS]aKL]N VMVmmLTMLY VJ TU]V k

D�Pc̀ STTJ TU��

A@F ?AF ?@AG?�Z L]Nl KSLb KSWWJ Mc̀ ST
i LW LKN VNO Lb KST]pVKN SNJ VTP VmmJ ]]J VTSTYPJN QR STSULKNO LY L[L` VpmLTN VW SN KSWWJ M

mSTSULmLTN p` STW VKNO LZ L]Nl KSL� KLS k

R SJ VqIJ ]N kArc al̀J MZ VK_ ]��

?F ?BF ?@A�??ZJ̀
Ỳ STYg Kl ST� TN LKW SML\J KLe SW LN QSTY\J KLe SW LN Q

hY aMSNJ VT
P VmmJ ]]J VTi LW LKKSẦH KL[J ]LYN VKLSY sH ki LW LKN VNO Lc̀ STTJ TUP VmmJ ]]J VTN VMVT]JY LK

� MML]]VKQI nL`̀J TUg TJN ]q�Ig ]rJ TNO L� LKQDJ UOD S�SKY\J KLÁ VTLN VKL[J Lnpal̀J M]SW LN QJ ]]aL]

L]pLMJ S`̀ QKL` L[STNN VNO LKJ ]_ VWZg�WJ KL] k� mLTYe LMNJ VT?�I kA@N VJ TMVKpVKSN LUKLSN LKpal̀J M

]SW LN QMVT]JY LKSNJ VT]N Vl LmLNl LW VKLJ ]]aJ TUST�Y mJ TJ ]N KSNJ [Lg ]Lc LKmJNq�gcr tP VaTMJ̀c̀ STTJ TU��

Ã ®̄°± ²³́µÄ ¶· ¸¹



ö ÷øùúû üûýúþ
ÿÿ� ���� �� � ÷ø���ÿ ù	 ù

��� 
� �
��� ��� �ø

�� ø��ÿ �ø�� ø��

��� ��� ����� �� �������

 !"#$% &' () **+% &' , "+ *- '*&. " /+ *0 1 2 3 %+4 *
5 *#200*&. "+% 2&

6 72&82!% &' 9 2:&#%4 0*0; *!< 9 200% 88% 2&5 *872&8%;4 * , *7"!+ 0*&+< ,% =% 8% 2&5 "&$) "!$ *. > 2! 5 *02="4

GF ?HF ?@ABG�e V` STV� [LTaLh MVTVmJ MI L[L` VpmLTNeN aY Qi LW LKN VNO LPJN QR STSULKN VaTY LKN S_ LSMVmpKLO LT]J [L]N aY QVWNO Le V` STV� [LTaLP VmmLKMJ S`

IJ ]N KJ MN oN VpKV[JY Ll S]LJ̀ TLJ TW VKmSNJ VTW VKW aN aKL]N KSN LUJ Mp` STTJ TUSTYl a]J TL]]Y L[L` VpmLTN

STYJ TJNJ SNJ [L]NO SN nJ̀̀ KL]aǸJ TJ TMKLS]LYN S�KL[LTaL]W VKNO LPJN QVŴ LK_ L` LQ oSTYN VKLpVKNN V

NO LP VaTMJ̀ VTSpKJ VKJN Ql S]J ] oSN STapMVmJ TUnVK_ ]L]]J VT k
D SO TXhI

��

HF AF ?@A�A�PJN
J L]X pLT� TN LKTLNc̀ LY ULW VK¼ LN¼ LaN KSJ̀N QA keJ UTVTN VNO LPJNJ L]X pLT� TN LKTLNc̀ LY UL k? ki LW LKN VNO LPJN QR STSULKN V` VV_J TN VnSQ]N V

J mp` LmLTNNO LpVJ TN ]KSJ ]LYNO Lc̀ LY ULSTY LT]aKLNO LPJN QVŴ LK_ L` LQJ ]S¼ LN¼ LaN KSJ̀N QMJN Q k� KKLUaJ T� TW VKmSNJ VT b LMO TV` VUQ�¦ Å

A?F AEF ?@AB?�c LK]VTSÌ LJ̀ [LKQe LK[J ML\ KSTMOJ ]L� UKLLmLTN ]Æ �� ���|�w vwz ��yw �Ç |}|���¤ {È��y ��w v~ ���� v�|��v��|§wz |w xv��~ �}|�� �wz ��yw �w v�v}{y~ ��

W KSTMOJ ]LSppJ̀ MSNJ VT]W VKpLK]VTSỲ LJ̀ [LKQ]LK[J MLMVmpSTJ L]J T[V` [J TUpLK]VTSỲ LJ̀ [LKQY L[J ML] k^ SKǸ LNNc al̀J MZ VK_ ]�«

GF GF ?@AB?�i LW LKKSì L]pVT]Ls¾ LTY LKc SQh jaJN QA kIJ KLMN ]N SWWN VY KSWN STVKYJ TSTMLKL` SN LYN VSTLjaS` pSQ[LTY VKpKLW LKLTMLW VKMJN QMVTN KSMN VK]

nO VY LmVT]N KSN LLjaS` pSQW VKmS` LSTYW LmS` LLmp` VQLL]q ULTY LKl S]LY VT]LẀ CJY LTNJWJ MSNJ VTrPXeXZ\J TSTML
�º

?@AB CDGF ?�F ?@A�G�h �pLYJNJ TUP VT]JY LKSNJ VTVW Sc VN LTNJ S`» � mJ̀̀J VT
¾ KSTNN V^ aJ̀Y SR SUJ MS`̂ KJY ULc̀ SQUKVaTY STY

]LTYJ TUS` LNN LKVWJ TN LTNqP VTNJ TaLYW KVm� pKJ̀H o
?@A�r

i LjaL]NNO LPJN QR STSULKN VL�pLYJN LMVT]JY LKSNJ VTVW SpVN LTNJ S`» � mJ̀̀J VTUKSTNN Vl aJ̀Y S

R SUJ MS`̂ KJY ULc̀ SQUKVaTY oSTY ]LTY S` LNN LKVWJ TN LTNN VNO LR SUJ MS`̂ KJY UL\ VaTY SNJ VT kZ VKNOJ TUN VT qIJ ]N kBr tP SpJN L`̀J qIJ ]N kHr t � KKLUaJ TqIJ ]N k�rc SK_ ]
�½

�F ?BF ?@A�A�D LSǸOh jaJN Q�� TTV[SNJ VTIJ ]N KJ MNi
LW LKKSǸ VNO Lc̀ STTJ TUP VmmJ ]]J VT oNO LP VmmaTJN QD LSǸOP VmmJ ]]J VT oNO LP VmmJ ]]J VTVT

� UJ TU oSTYNO LPJN QR STSULKN VL]N Sl̀J ]O SD LSǸOh jaJN Q�� TTV[SNJ VTIJ ]N KJ MNqD�Ir kbO LUVS` VW

NO LD�IJ ]N VKLY aMLMO KVTJ MKSMJ SÒ LSǸOYJ ]pSKJNJ L]STYJ mpKV[LNO LV[LKS`̀ pal̀J MO LSǸO ]N KSN LUQ

VŴ LK_ L` LQl QW V]N LKJ TUJ TTV[SNJ VT]J TO LSǸO MSKLY LJ̀ [LKQ oJ mpKV[J TUKL]J̀J LTMQ oSTY

]N KLTUNO LTJ TUNO LJ TN LUKSNJ VTVWO LSǸO ]LK[J ML]STY ]Q]N Lm] kbO LD�IJ ]J TN LTY LYN VY KSn

J T[L]N mLTN STY UKSTN VppVKN aTJNJ L] oS]nL`̀ S]N VL�p` VKLNO LL�pST]J VTVW ]MVpLVW pKSMNJ MLW VK

mLYJ MS` pKV[JY LK]

^ SKǸ LNN oD SO T o � KKLUaJ TDDPe
�¿

?@AB C�AGF GF ?@ABA�P KLSNJ VTSTY�Y VpNJ VTVW Sb KST]JNeN KLLN ]
P VVpLKSNJ [L� UKLLmLTN nJNONO L�̀ SmLY S CP VTN KS

P V]N Sq�Prb KST]JNIJ ]N KJ MN
i LW LKN VNO LPJN QR STSULKNO LP KLSNJ VTSTY�Y VpNJ VTVW Sb KST]JNeN KLLN ]P VVpLKSNJ [L� UKLLmLTN

nJNONO L�̀ SmLY S CP VTN KSP V]N Sq�Prb KST]JNIJ ]N KJ MN k
D SO Tc al̀J MZ VK_ ]¦À

?@A� C�GAF ?�F ?@A�?H\ KLLY VmW KVmI VmL]NJ M�J V` LTMLS]SD amSTiJ UON
i L]V` aNJ VT

�Y VpNNO L\ KLLY VmW KVmI VmL]NJ M�J V` LTMLS]SD amSTiJ UONi L]V` aNJ VT kPJN QR STSULK]O S`̀

pKLpSKLSKLpVKN nJNOJ TNO LTL�N ]J �q�r mVTNO ]VTNO LpVJ̀ MQSTY pKSMNJ MLVWPJN QY LpSKN mLTN ]VT

Y VmL]NJ M[J V` LTML oJ TM` aYJ TUl aN TVǸJ mJN LYN V oNO L^ LK_ L` LQc VJ̀ MLI LpSKN mLTN oNO L^ LK_ L` LQ\J KL

I LpSKN mLTN oSTYD LSǸO oD Va]J TU�P VmmaTJN Qe LK[J ML] onJNO KL]pLMNN VNO L]N SN a]VWY VmL]NJ M

�y v� �}��|}~wz ��yw �¤ {xv��w vv����v§�~ v§�{wy ��y v� �}��|}~ {���v�w {���y �v�{ ¥£¡É̈ÊËÆ̈Ì¡Æ

iheXf�hINO SNPJN QY LpSKN mLTN ]]O S`̀ nVK_N VJ TMVKpVKSN LNOJ ]i L]V` aNJ VTJ TN VNO LJ KnVK_ kc LSMLSTY Í a]NJ MLPJN QR STSULKF D amST i L]VaKML]
¦�

A?F AEF ?@AB?Bc KVOJlJNJ TUIJ ]MKJ mJ TSNJ VTVTNO L^ S]J ]VW
i L` SNJ VT]OJ peN KaMN aKL

i LW LKNO LpKVpV]LỲ STUaSULN VNO LPJN QR STSULKKLjaL]NJ TUNO SNNO LPJN QSmLTYPO SpN LKA� k�A

S]pKVpV]LYN VpKVOJlJNYJ ]MKJ mJ TSNJ VTVTNO Ll S]J ]VW KL` SNJ VT]OJ p]N KaMN aKLJ TKLUSKYN V

h mp` VQmLTN oi LSh̀ ]N SN Lb KST]SMNJ VT] o^ a]J TL]]c KSMNJ ML] oPJN Q\ SMJ̀JNJ L]STYe LK[J ML]VKhY aMSNJ VT

VTNO L^ S]J ]VWi L` SNJ VT]OJ peN KaMN aKL k

R SJ VPJN Q�NN VKTLQ¦�

?@AB CAEF A?F ?@ABGGi LW LKKSǸ VNO LPJ [J M� KN ]P VmmJ ]]J VTSTYPJN Q
R STSULKN V�Y LTNJW Q�̀̀\ aTY ]�NN KJl aN LYN V\ L]NJ [S` ]i LW LKN VNO LPJN QR STSULKN VpKV[JY LSKLpVKN VTNO LW aTY ]l LJ TUSNN KJl aN LYN VW L]NJ [S` ] kD SKKJ ]VT oD SO T o I S[J̀ SXhI

¦�

Î ®̄°± ²³́µÏ ¶· ¸¹



ö ÷øùúû üûýúþ
ÿÿ� ���� �� � ÷ø���ÿ ù	 ù

��� 
� �
��� ��� �ø

�� ø��ÿ �ø�� ø��

��� ��� ����� �� �������

 !"#$% &' () **+% &' , "+ *- '*&. " /+ *0 1 2 3 %+4 *
5 *#200*&. "+% 2&

6 72&82!% &' 9 2:&#%4 0*0; *!< 9 200% 88% 2&5 *872&8%;4 * , *7"!+ 0*&+< ,% =% 8% 2&5 "&$) "!$ *. > 2! 5 *02="4

BF AAF ?@AB?Ai LW LKKSǸ VNO LP VmmaTJN Qh T[J KVTmLTN S�̀Y [J ]VKQ
P VmmJ ]]J VTsPJ USKLNN L^ aNNc V`̀ aNJ VTc KL[LTNJ VT

c KVUKSmJ Te VaNÔ LK_ L` LQ
i LW LKN VNO LP VmmaTJN Qh T[J KVTmLTN SP̀ VmmJ ]]J VTqPh�Pr�¼IbDhP�b�
R�¼�¾hiN VMVT]JY LK

Y L[L` VpJ TUSPJ USKLNN L^ aNNc V`̀ aNJ VTc KL[LTNJ VTc KVUKSmW VKe VaNÔ LK_ L` LQ kh �p` VKLNO L

W V`̀ VnJ TUJN Lm]sSrf VMSNJ VT kZ VK_ nJNONO L` VMSl̀ a]J TL]]S]]VMJ SNJ VT] ol a]J TL]]VnTLK] oS]nL`̀

S]VNO LKTLJ UOl VKO VVY STY MVmmaTJN QVKUSTJ �SNJ VT]N VJY LTNJW Q_ LQ` VMSNJ VT]W VKMJ USKLNN Ll aNN

KLMLpN SM` L] klrX pLKSNJ VT kZ VK_ nJNÒ VMSl̀ a]J TL]]L]N VY L[L` VpS]Q]N LmW VKM` LSTapSTY

YJ ]pV]S` VWNO LMVTN LTN ]VWNO LKLMLpN SM` L] kMrP V]N k�Y LTNJW QSTQVTL CNJ mLMV]N ]S]]VMJ SN LY nJNO

NO LpKVUKSm oJ TM` aYJ TUpaKMO S]J TUSTYJ T]N S`̀ SNJ VTVWNO LKLMLpN SM` L] k�Y LTNJW QSTQMV]N ]NO SN

]O VaỲl L]LN S]JY LW VKmSJ TN LTSTML kbO LKL]O VaỲ TVNl LKLUa` SKVTUVJ TUMV]N ] kPh�P ]O VaỲ

nVK_ nJNONO Ll a]J TL]]L]STY TLJ UOl VKO VVY ]N VY L[L` VpSMVmmaTJN Q Cl S]LY ]Q]N LmN VW SMJ̀JN SN L

Y SJ̀ QVpLKSNJ VT] k

^ SKǸ LNN STY D SKKJ ]VTPRXF c̀ STTJ TU¦�

GF ?HF ?@AB?EI VUX nTLKhY aMSNJ VT oP L]SKPO S[L�c SK_i LjaL]NNO LPJN QR STSULKN V` VV_J TN VNO LY L[L` VpmLTN VW SY VUVnTLKLY aMSNJ VTpKVUKSmSN

P L]SKPO S[L�c SK_ S]N VNO LY L]J UTSN LY VT C` LS]O STY VWW C` LS]O SKLS]a]J TU[V` aTN LLK]nO VnVaỲ

l LLJ̀ UJl̀ LW VKS]mS`̀ ]NJ pLTY kP VT]JY LKpSKN TLKJ TUnJNONO L^ LK_ L` LQD amSTLe VMJ LN Q kR SJ Vc SK_ ] oi LM oZ SN LKW KVTN¦¦

HF �@F ?@ABGAc̀ STTJ TUP VmmJ ]]J VTi LW LKKSẀ VKScJ̀ VNI LT]JN Q
^ VTa]c KVUKSmW VKNO Lb L` LUKSpO� [LTaL

P VmmLKMJ SÌJ ]N KJ MNN V¾ LTLKSN Li L[LTaLN VD Va]L
NO LD VmL` L]]STYh �N KLmL` Qf Vn C� TMVmL� TYJ [JY aS` ]i LW LKSPJN QI LT]JN Q^ VTa]pVJ̀ MQW VKNO Lb L` LUKSpO� [LTaLP VmmLKMJ SÌJ ]N KJ MNN VNO Lc̀ STTJ TU

P VmmJ ]]J VTN VULTLKSN LJ T CJ̀ LaW LL]NO SN MVaỲl La]LYN Vl aJ̀YO Va]J TUW VKO VmL` L]]STY

L�N KLmL` Q` Vn CJ TMVmLKL]JY LTN ] k

Z VKNOJ TUN VT o ^ SKǸ LNN o � KKLUaJ Tc̀ STTJ TU¦«

A?F AEF ?@AB?Gi LW LKKSǸ Vc̀ STTJ TUP VmmJ ]]J VTsi LM` S]]JWJ MSNJ VTVW
A@H@c SK_ LKeN KLLNF ?�?Ab LTNOeN KLLNc aK]aSTNN V^ LK_ L` LQR aTJ MJ pSP̀ VY Le LMNJ VT?�� k?@ k@?@ k^ kA si LW LKN VNO Lc̀ STTJ TUP VmmJ ]]J VT

NO LKLM` S]]JWJ MSNJ VTVWNO LL�J ]NJ TURgf� �VTLY pVKNJ VTVWA@H@c SK_ LKeN KLLNF ?�?Ab LTNOeN KLLN

q�c¼@HGAB��@@A@�
rN VP CZZ L]N̂ LK_ L` LQP VmmLKMJ SÌJ ]N KJ MN ki LjaL]NNO SNNO Lc̀ STTJ TU

P VmmJ ]]J VT]al mJNJN ]KLMVmmLTY SNJ VTN VNO LPJN QP VaTMJ̀ VTNO LKLM` S]]JWJ MSNJ VTKLjaL]Nl Q

R SKMO?B o?@A� k

� KKLUaJ Tc̀ STTJ TU¦º

EF A?F ?@AB�Gi LW LKKSǸ VNO LP VmmaTJN Qh T[J KVTmLTN S�̀Y [J ]VKQ
P VmmJ ]]J VTSTYNO LPJN QR STSULKs� TNJ C�ỲJ TU

X KYJ TSTML
i LW LKN VNO LP VmmaTJN Qh T[J KVTmLTN S�̀Y [J ]VKQP VmmJ ]]J VTSTYNO LPJN QR STSULKN VL�p` VKL

Y L[L` VpJ TUSTSTNJ CJỲJ TUVKYJ TSTML kbO LVKYJ TSTML]O VaỲ̀J mJN [LOJ M` LLTUJ TLJỲJ TUnO LTS

[LOJ M` LJ ]pSK_ LY o]N VppLY oVK]N STYJ TU oJ TM` aYJ TUW VKNO LpaKpV]LVW VpLKSNJ TUSJ KMVTYJNJ VTJ TU

LjaJ pmLTN tSTY pKVOJlJN S`̀ aTSNN LTY LY pKJ [SN LpS]]LTULKmVN VK[LOJ M` L]W KVmJỲJ TU kbO L

VKYJ TSTML]O VaỲ VaǸJ TLLTW VKMLmLTN STY MJN SNJ VTpKVMLY aKL] kbO LP VmmJ ]]J VTSTYNO LPJN Q

R STSULK]O VaỲY L[L` VpSppKVpKJ SN LL�MLpNJ VT]W VKMVmmLKMJ S` [LOJ M` L] k� TQW aTY ]KLMLJ [LY

NO KVaUO LTW VKMLmLTN VWNO LVKYJ TSTML]O VaỲ SMMKaLN VNO L¾ LTLKS\̀ aTYN VpKV[JY LSYYJNJ VTS`

W aTYJ TUW VK]a]N SJ TSlJ̀JN QLWW VKN ] kbO LP VmmaTJN Qh T[J KVTmLTN S�̀Y [J ]VKQP VmmJ ]]J VTSTYNO L

�yw �Ç |}|���{z v��~ ���y �xwz �ªy {w �y �w v�� v� �§�y |¤ {|}wy �y~�y }������ |wy v}{� |ww |�z �~w v���v�wÐ

N VSJY LJ TNO LY L[L` VpmLTN VWNO LVKYJ TSTML k

^ SKǸ LNN o D SKKJ ]VT oI S[J̀ Sc̀ STTJ TU¦½

?@AB C�A@F A�F ?@A��Bi LW LKKSì L]pVT]LsR VYJW Q¼ amLKJ MfJ mJN SNJ VT]
��Ñ �vw |{�Ðy }wz �¡� §xvv~�� �¡Ð� v§§���y |�

IJ ]N KJ MN t� mLTYJ TUR̂PPO SpN LK]?�h kGG STY?�\ k@G?ri LjaL]N LYNO SNNO LPJN QR STSULKKL[J LnNO L]jaSKLW VVN SULJ̀ mJN SNJ VT]J Te LMNJ VT?�h kGG k@G@

STY KLN aKTnJNO VpNJ VT]W VKmVYJWJ MSNJ VT

R SQVKSTY P VaTMJ̀c̀ STTJ TU¦¿

Ò ®̄°± ²³́µÓ ¶· ¸¹



ö ÷øùúû üûýúþ
ÿÿ� ���� �� � ÷ø���ÿ ù	 ù

��� 
� �
��� ��� �ø

�� ø��ÿ �ø�� ø��

��� ��� ����� �� �������

 !"#$% &' () **+% &' , "+ *- '*&. " /+ *0 1 2 3 %+4 *
5 *#200*&. "+% 2&

6 72&82!% &' 9 2:&#%4 0*0; *!< 9 200% 88% 2&5 *872&8%;4 * , *7"!+ 0*&+< ,% =% 8% 2&5 "&$) "!$ *. > 2! 5 *02="4

�F AHF ?@A�?Ai LW LKKSǸ VPJN QR STSULKsI VTSNJ VTVWg T]VỲ\ VVY
N VPO SKJNJ L]qP VTNJ TaLYW KVm\ Ll KaSKQ?� o?@A�ri LW LKN VNO LPJN QR STSULKSTYÁ LKVZ S]N LP VmmJ ]]J VTN VY L[L` VpSTVKYJ TSTMLW VKP VaTMJ̀

MVT]JY LKSNJ VTKLjaJ KJ TU]apLKmSK_ LN ]J T^ LK_ L` LQN VY VTSN LNO LJ KaT]VỲW VVYN VMO SKJN Q k�W TV

` VTULKLYJl̀ LW VKO amSTMVT]ampNJ VTKLjaJ KLNO SNJNl LY VTSN LYW VKSTJ mSẀ LLY VKMVmpV]N k� KKLUaJ TqIJ ]N kGrc al̀J MZ VK_ ]«À Å

GF GF ?@ABA�PJN QR STSULKi LW LKKS` th �pST]J VTVWNO L¾ V^ LK_ L` LQ
b KST]pVKN SNJ VTc KVUKSml Q� T]N S`̀J TUeN KLLǸJ TL

D Ql KJYe mSKNc SK_J TU
PJN QR STSULKi LW LKKS` th �pST]J VTVWNO L¾ V^ LK_ L` LQb KST]pVKN SNJ VTc KVUKSmN VJ TM` aY LNO L

J T]N S`̀ mLTN VWeN KLLǸJ TLD Ql KJYe mSKNc SK_J TUVTSTVT CL�M` a]J [Ll S]J ] k
Z VKNOJ TUN VTc al̀J MZ VK_ ]«�

?F A�F ?@A���� mLTYJ TUR̂PPO SpN LKE k@G sb S�i SN LW VK¼ VT C
R LYJ MSP̀ STTSlJ ]^ a]J TL]]L]

�r KLjaL]NNO SN ]N SWW L�p` VKL[SKJ Sl̀ LVKpKVUKL]]J [LN S�KSN L]l S]LY VTJ̀ MLT]LN QpL]tSTYP VaTMJ̀\J TSTML
«�

GF ?GF ?@A��B�e�
bJ TQD VmL]c KVd LMN Ci L[J ]LY mSN LKJ S` ]qe app?rbO L�e� SppJ̀ MSNJ VTnJ̀̀l LpKVML]]LY aTY LKNO LTVKmSỲ L[L` VpmLTN KL[J LnpKVML]] k� TQ

SYYJNJ VTS` ]N SWW nVK_ TLLY LY VTNO L�e� pKVd LMNl LQVTYNO LTVKmSỲ L[L` VpmLTN KL[J LnpKVML]] o

]aMO S]VKYJ TSTMLSmLTY mLTN ] oJ ]KLW LKKLYN VNO LP VaTMJ̀ pKJ VKJNJ �SNJ VTpKVML]] k
^ SKǸ LNN o D SKKJ ]VTc̀ STTJ TU«�

BF AF ?@AGA�A� kPJN QR STSULKi LW LKKS` sg pY SNJ TU¾ KSWWJNJ
X KYJ TSTMLSTYc VJ̀ MJ L]^ S]LY VTSi L[J LnVWe ST

Ê �|}�y {�v¤ {u �xÈ �~y }|}��
i LW LKN VNO LPJN QR STSULKSTYNO Lc al̀J MZ VK_ ]STYc SK_ ]STYi LMKLSNJ VTP VmmJ ]]J VT]N VMKLSN L

STVKYJ TSTMLNO SN KL[J ]L]^ LK_ L` LQÔ ]pVJ̀ MJ L]KLUSKYJ TUUKSWWJNJ oW VMa]J TUVTpKL[LTNJ VTSTY

LTW VKMLmLTN VW KLUa` SNJ VT] k

Z VKNOJ TUN VT qIJ ]N kBrc al̀J MZ VK_ ]«�

AAF A�F ?@AGG@�\ aLèN SNJ VTP SKl VTIJ V�JY Lf Sl L` ]A k�Y VpNJN Lm]G@ kS kSTYG@ kl kYJ KLMNJ TUNO LPJN QR STSULKN VpKLpSKLSTVKYJ TSTMLKLjaJ KJ TU

MJ̀ mSN LMO STUL` Sl L` ]SNW aLỲJ ]pLT]J TUW SMJ̀JNJ L]STY ]al mJNNO LY KSWN VKYJ TSTMLN VNO L

MVmmJ ]]J VT]W VKKL[J Ln k? ki L[J LnNO LJ mp` LmLTN SNJ VTVWNO LVKYJ TSTMLJ TVTLQLSK k� kIJ KLMNNO L

P VmmaTJN Qh T[J KVTmLTN S�̀Y [J ]VKQP VmmJ ]]J VTSTYNO Lh TLKUQP VmmJ ]]J VTN VL�p` VKLNO LJY LS

VW MJ̀ mSN LMO STUL` Sl L` ]SNNO LpVJ TN VW ]S` LVW SaN VmVlJ̀ L] k
Ph�P STYh TLKUQPJN Q�NN VKTLQ«¦

?@A� C??AAF AF ?@A�A�PJN QR STSULKi LW LKKS` sP VT]JY LKRJNJ USNJ VT]W VK
RJ TJ mamZ SUL� TMKLS]L]N Ve appVKNe mS`̀

^ a]J TL]]L]STY¼ VT Cc KVWJN ]l Q�YY KL]]J TUc SK_J TU o
c LKmJN STYDJ UOi LTN ]� ]]aL]

i LW LKN VNO LPJN QR STSULKN VMVT]JY LKmJNJ USNJ VT]W VKmJ TJ mamnSULJ TMKLS]L]N V]appVKN ]mS`̀

l a]J TL]]L]STY TVT CpKVWJN ]l QSNN LmpNJ TUN VSYY KL]]pSK_J TUSTY pLKmJN ] ki LjaL]NNO SNNO LXWWJ ML

VWh MVTVmJ MI L[L` VpmLTN KLpVKN VTVNO LKmLNO VY ]N VmJNJ USN LNO LJ mpSMN ]VW mJ TJ mamnSUL

J TMKLS]L]VT]mS`̀l a]J TL]]L] k

Z VKNOJ TUN VT qIBrXhI
««

?@A� CAGAAF A�F ?@AGG?\ aN aKLI L[L` VpmLTN VWNO LGNOeN KLLN� KLSi LjaL]NNO SNNO Lc̀ STTJ TUP VmmJ ]]J VTKLN aKTN VP VaTMJ̀ nJNO pV]]Jl̀ LVpNJ VT]N VLT]aKLNO SN

W aN aKLY L[L` VpmLTN VWNO LGNOeN KLLN SKLSJ ]O SKmVTJ Va]nJNONO L]aMML]]W a` L�J ]NJ TUKLN SJ̀YJ ]N KJ MN kP SpJN L`̀JqIJ ]N kHr o R SJ VqIJ ]N kArc̀ STTJ TU«º Å

°̄ ®̄°± ²³́µ ¸ ¶· ¸¹



B-8Transportation Commission 

Agenda 1/17/2019

Continued on reverse 

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION- Ad Hoc Subcommittee Assignments 

Subcommittee Members Staff 

Contact 

Date/ 

Location 

Due TC Work Plan 2017-18 

ACTC/MTC 
Review* 

Ghosh 
Zander 

TBA N/A Review TDA Article 3-funded 
Bike and Ped project plans as 
assigned 

Bicycle Plan 
Implementation 

Greene 
Humbert 
Parolek 

Monitor Bike Plan projects and 
report to TC by December 2018 

Stop Sign 
Warrants 

Greene 
Oxley 
Parolek 

Research, recommend  Stop 
Sign criteria to TC by 
12/30/2018 

Pedestrian 
Plan Update 

Ghosh 
Humbert 
Thomas 
Zander 

Follow & coordinate Ped Plan 
issues, attend public meetings; 
report. to TC  by 12/2018 

Vision Zero 
Greene 
Lathbury 
Oxley 
Ghosh 

Dev. Recommendations for VZ 
Policy to supplement Ped Plan 
and Complete Streets Policy; 
Report  to TC by 12/2018 

LIAISONS  
Alameda CTC: 
Ashby/I-80 

Oxley 
Zander 
Ghosh(Alt) 

FJ /HM Attend ACTC meetings on 
Emeryville’s Ashby/I-80 Project; 
Provide comments; Update TC 

Energy 
Commission 

Oxley Attend EC 
meetings 

EV Charging strategies; provide 
comments; Update TC 

Public Works 
Commission 

Bruzzone 
Oxley (alt)

Attend PWC 
meetings 
relating to 
assignment 

Report to TC re 
Undergrounding Utility wires; 
Meas. M Updates 

goBerkeley 
Advisory 
Group 

Ghosh 
Bruzzone (alt) 

Attend 
goBerkeley 
Advisory 
Group mtgs as 
needed 

Report to TC re Value-Priced 
Parking Program 

Commission 
on Disability 

Humbert Attend  COD 
meetings as 
needed 

Report to TC on  issues of 
common concern 

*TC may also fill this required MTC role (of BPAC) without the Subcommittee.

There are no Standing Subcommittees. 
Ad Hoc Subcommittees  

 There must be at least two commissioners present to hold a subcommittee meeting, but never
a quorum of the total TC membership

 must be reviewed annually by the commission to determine if a subcommittee is needed,
specify work assignments, and clarify response times. (Reso. 60,504-N.S.)

 do not have officers or submit minutes

 may submit written summary meeting notes for inclusion in the TC Agenda Packet under
Information or as Communications.



Updated July 2018 

 may submit their recommendations as written or verbal reports to support an Action or
Discussion item.  The Commission Secretary needs to receive written material 10 days before
the meeting date for inclusion in the Agenda Packet; Late arrivals will be delivered at meeting
and published with next agenda.

 member(s) prepares agenda based on TC adopted Work Plan and/or specific assignment.

Commission Secretary 

 maintains subscription lists, publishes and (e)mails agendas,  reserves meeting room, and
routes communications between public and Commissioners, Commissioners and other staff.

 Staff attendance at Subcommittee meetings is optional.



Transportation Commission Agenda                                                       B-8 
Excerpts from Commissioners Manual 2018 ed.  1/17/19 
 

 

5) Temporary Subcommittees/Ad Hoc Subcommittees 
From time to time, the commission or the chair, with the confirmation of the 
commission, may appoint several of its members, but fewer than a quorum of 
the present body, to serve as a temporary subcommittee. Commissions are 
limited to the creation of ad hoc single purpose subcommittees. Ad hoc 
subcommittees are treated as if they are legislative bodies under City policy 
and, as such, are required to comply with the requirements in the Brown Act. 

 
Ad hoc subcommittees are defined by all of the following characteristics. 

 

 Composed of less than a quorum of the parent body. 

 Composed of only members of the parent body (no members of other 
commissions or any other persons may be included). 

 Have a finite purview established by the parent body. 

 Have a set target date to report back to the parent body. 

 Terminate within one year, unless the parent body reviews and extends 
the timeline. 

 Have no regular meeting schedule set by the parent body (all 
subcommittee meetings are “special meetings”). 

 Have no alternate commissioner assigned to attend meetings, even as an 
observer, if his or her presence would create a quorum of the parent body. 

 
Subcommittees are advisory only to their parent commission, not to Council.  

    Subcommittees are tasked with the study of a specific issue and with  
making a recommendation to their parent commission. The parent 
commission has the opportunity for input when the subcommittee reports 
its findings and makes the recommendation(s). The parent commission has 
final decision-making authority on the disposition of the subcommittee’s 
work. 
 

The parent commission must adopt subcommittee recommendations before 
they can be forwarded to Council. A subcommittee may not represent the 
parent commission before the Council or other city legislative bodies unless it 
has first received the authorization of the parent commission to do so. 

 
Only commissioners may become members of the subcommittee; however, 
the subcommittee should seek input and advice from the public, commissions 
with relevant subject matter jurisdiction, and other groups. Subcommittees 
must be reviewed annually by the commission to determine if they should 
continue their work. The commission secretary should track the creation of 
subcommittees and notify the commission of the pending expiration a 
subcommittee. The commission may request that renewal be agendized at a 
future meeting. 

 

Please consult Chapter IV for noticing and agenda requirements applicable to 
subcommittees. 



 

 

 

Extensive collaboration between commissions can be accomplished through 
concurrent meetings of subcommittees, meaning subcommittees meet in the same 
place at the same time, each noticed and conducted appropriately. In almost every 
case, concurrent meetings facilitate collaborative goals. Rarely, the City Council 
may choose to approve a joint subcommittee with the members designated by the 
City Council in accordance with the Fair Representation Ordinance, BMC Sections 
2.04.030–2.04.070 and 2.04.080–2.04.130. 

 

Subcommittees shall conduct their meetings in public and in accessible locations that 
are open to the public. Meetings may be held at privately owned facilities provided that 
the location meets all the requirements of the Brown Act, including the following: 

 The location is open to all who wish to attend and there is no requirement for 
registration or purchase to attend. 

 No prohibition on attendance based on a protected class (e.g. race, ancestry, 
gender) 

 Must be accessible to the disabled. 

 The agenda must be publicly viewable at the meeting location for the full 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Agendas for subcommittee meetings must be posted in the same manner as the 
agendas for regular commission meetings (posting board, website, meeting location) 
except that subcommittee agendas may be posted with 24-hour notice instead of 72-
hour notice. 

 

Question: 
If a subcommittee plans to hold a meeting in a local shop that will allow members of 

the public in without charge and will post the agenda 24 hours in advance on the 
bulletin board in the back of their dining room, would this be a legal subcommittee 
meeting? 

 

Answer: 
 

Potentially not. The agenda must be posted where it is viewable by the general public 
for the full 24-hour posting period. If the shop closes at night and the agenda can’t 
be viewed from outside the store, then the meeting was not properly noticed and 
cannot be held. 

 

The secretary is not required to attend or take minutes of meetings of subcommittees. 
City staff may attend and participate in subcommittee meetings. Depending on the 
desires of the subcommittee members, City staff may participate the same as 
members of the public or may be asked to offer insights or provide information during 
discussion. 

 

Subcommittees must be comprised of at least two commissioners. If only two 
commissioners are appointed, then both must be present in order for the subcommittee 



 

 

meeting to be held. In other words, the quorum for a two- member subcommittee is 
always two. A quorum of a subcommittee is prohibited from engaging in an illegal 
meeting; please refer to Chapter IV of this manual for more information regarding serial 
meetings. 

 

A temporary appointee does not assume the subcommittee membership(s) of the 
commissioner for whom he or she is substituting on the full commission. A 
subcommittee member who is terminated from the parent commission and 
subsequently reappointed to the parent commission does not automatically resume 
membership on the subcommittee; he or she may, however, be reappointed to the 
subcommittee by action of the parent commission. 
 
 



Transportation Commission   C-2 
Excerpts of Council Actions 2018   Information 1/17/19 
 

 

December 11, 2018 

3. Annual Commission Attendance and Meeting Frequency Report  
From: City Manager  
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving a revised commission meeting 
frequency schedule, changing the reporting period for the annual attendance report, and 
accepting the annual attendance report.   
Financial Implications: None  
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900 
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,705–N.S. 

20. Establishment of Traffic Circle Policy Task Force  
Supplemental material (Supp 2) 
From: Mayor Arreguin and Councilmembers Davila, Bartlett, and Droste  
Recommendation: Establish a Traffic Circle Policy Task Force comprised of 
representatives of the Parks and Waterfront Commission, Transportation Commission, 
community representatives from the neighborhoods where traffic circles are located, 
and city staff in the Parks and Public Works Departments as follows: City Staff, 1 
representative from the Transportation Department and 1 representative from the Parks 
Department; Commissions, 1 representative from the Parks and Waterfront Commission 
and 1 representative from the Transportation Commission; Community, Several 
representatives from the neighborhoods currently maintaining traffic circles, chosen 
from geographically diverse parts of the city and 1 representative from Berkeley 
Partners for Parks.  
The charge of this Task Force is to: a) Evaluate the City’s current traffic circle 
vegetation policy; and b) Conduct a community led process to update that policy to 
ensure pedestrian/bicycle/ vehicle safety and preserve community efforts to beautify 
traffic circles.  
Task Force activities may include, but are not limited to: -Determine appropriate 
characteristics and parameters for allowed plantings; -Develop policy that ensures lines 
of sight and other important safety considerations; -Conducting a survey of current 
traffic circles and their vegetation; -Conducting a survey of neighborhood associations, 
neighborhood captains, community and community groups such as Berkeley Partners 
for Parks to determine which traffic circles are being maintained by community 
members; Examining the City of Oakland’s ‘Adopt a Spot’ initiative to encourage 
community involvement in the maintenance of public spaces by loaning tools, supplies, 
and technical assistance to committed members of the community; -Hosting a 
presentation from City staff to better understand concerns with the current traffic circle 
policy and any safety concerns that should be taken into consideration; -Developing a 
clear set of guidelines/criteria to allow for community maintenance of traffic Circles; -
Outlining the appropriate community outreach strategy and process to share the 
updated policy for managing vegetation in traffic circles; -Developing a replanting 
strategy, with emphasis on drought-resistant plants.   

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/Documents/2018-12-11_Item_03_Annual_Commission_Attendance.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/Documents/2018-12-11_Item_20_Establishment_of_Traffic_Circle.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/Documents/Item_20_Sup_Arreguin.aspx


Page 2 of 34 

Financial Implications: See report  
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, 981-7100 
Action: Approved recommendation as revised in Supplemental Communications 
Packet #2. Vote: Ayes – Kesarwani, Davila, Bartlett, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, 
Arreguin; Noes – Harrison. 

December 4, 2018 

8. Adopt a Shared Electric Scooter Pilot Program  

Revised material (Supp 3) 

From: City Manager  

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the terms and 

conditions for a Shared Electric Scooter Pilot Franchise Program.   

Financial Implications: See report  

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Maio) to accept revised material from staff on Item 8. 

Vote: All Ayes.  

Action: Moved to Action Calendar. 12 speakers. M/S/C (Worthington/Hahn) 

to adopt Resolution No. 68,699–N.S. amended to include provisions for 

privacy, reporting to Council, public survey, and compliance measures and 

refer comments from the Council to staff for consideration. Vote: Ayes – 

Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin; Noes – 

Maio; Abstain – Davila.  

 
14.  Presentation: Pedestrian Master Plan Update  
Presentation 
From: City Manager  
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 
Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Worthington) to refer Item 14 to the Agenda Committee for 
future scheduling. Vote: All Ayes. 

17.   City Council Referral Process – 2018 Interim Update 
From: City Manager  
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900 
Action: Received and filed. 

 

November 27, 2018 

17. North Berkeley BART Site Recommendations  

From: Housing Advisory Commission  
Recommendation: Adopt guidelines for the development of the North Berkeley BART 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/Documents/2018-12-4_Item_08_Adopt_a_Shared_Electric_Scooter_Pilot_Program.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/Documents/2018-12-04_Supp_3_Reports_Item_8_Rev_Public_Works_pdf.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/Documents/2018-12-04_Supp_3_Reports_Item_8_Rev_Public_Works_pdf.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/Documents/2018-12-4_Item_14_Pedestrian_Master_Plan_Update.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/Documents/2018-12-4_Item_14_Pedestrian_Master_Plan_Update.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/Documents/2018-12-04_Presentations_Item_14_Pedestrian_Master_Plan_Transporation_pdf.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/Documents/2018-12-4_Item_17_City_Council_Referral_Process_%E2%80%93_2018_Interim_Update.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/11_Nov/Documents/2018-11-27_Item_17_North_Berkeley_BART_Site_Recommendations.aspx


Page 3 of 34 

site to develop as many housing units as possible and include as many affordable units 
as financially feasible, with an emphasis on addressing the City’s underserved Regional 
Housing Need Allocation (RHNA) targets.   
Financial Implications: See report  
Contact: Amy Davidson, Commission Secretary, 981-5400 
Action: Item held over to the January 15, 2019 worksession meeting. 

30. Refer the Transportation Commission to consider incentives for the public to 
use sustainable modes of transportation similar to Bologna, Italy.  
Supplemental material (Supp 2) 
From: Councilmember Worthington  
Recommendation: That the Council refer to the Transportation Commission to create 
incentives for members of the public to cycle, walk and take public transport as opposed 
to driving.   
Financial Implications: Minimal  
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 
Action: Councilmembers Hahn and Harrison added as co-sponsors. Approved recommendation 

as revised in Supplemental Reports Packet #2. 

31. City Manager short-term Referral; Preliminary steps towards the expansion 
of the GoBerkeley Transportation Program to Increase Parking Efficiency  
From: Councilmembers Worthington and Harrison  
Recommendation: City Manager short-term Referral; Amendment to the City of 
Berkeley municipal code regulating off-street parking lots in order to facilitate the 
expansion of the GoBerkeley Transportation Program to allow private parking vendors 
to charge adjustable rates for parking spaces.   
Financial Implications: See report  
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 
Action: Approved recommendation. 

33. Referral to the Transportation Commission: Explore Possibilities for 
Initiating Equitable Exchange with Transportation Network Companies (TNCs)  
Supplemental material (Supp 2) 
From: Councilmember Worthington, Mayor Arreguin, and Councilmember Hahn 
Recommendation: The City Council requests that the Transportation Commission 
initiate research into an effective means of equitable exchange with TNCs. In order to 
compensate the City of Berkeley for traffic congestion, air pollution, and infrastructure 
damage, the Council recommends that TNCs participate in the payment of taxes and 
the exchange of data.  
  
Financial Implications: See report  
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 
Action: Councilmember Davila added as a co-sponsor. Approved recommendation 
revised to add the proposed ballot measure item in Supplemental Reports Packet #2. 

November 13, 2018 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/11_Nov/Documents/2018-11-27_Item_30_Refer_the_Transportation_Commission.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/11_Nov/Documents/2018-11-27_Item_30_Refer_the_Transportation_Commission.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/11_Nov/Documents/Item_30_Supp_Worthington.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/11_Nov/Documents/2018-11-27_Item_31_City_Manager_short-term_Referral.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/11_Nov/Documents/2018-11-27_Item_31_City_Manager_short-term_Referral.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/11_Nov/Documents/2018-11-27_Item_33_Referral_to_the_Transportation_Commission.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/11_Nov/Documents/2018-11-27_Item_33_Referral_to_the_Transportation_Commission.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/11_Nov/Documents/Item_33_Supp_Worthington.aspx


Page 4 of 34 

5. Contract Award to GradeTech Inc.:  John Muir School Crossing 
Improvements Project, Specification No. 18-11246-C  
From: City Manager  
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution: 1. Approving plans and specifications for 
the John Muir School Crossing Improvements Project (“Project”), Specification 
No. 18-11246-C; 2. Authorizing the change of Project Specification No. from 17-
10240-C to 18-11246; 3. Accepting the bid of the lowest responsible bidder, 
GradeTech Inc.; and 4. Authorizing execution of a contract and any amendments, 
extensions, or change orders until completion of the project in accordance with 
approved plans and specifications, in an amount not to exceed $355,807.   
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $355,807  
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,663–N.S. 

12. City Manager Short-Term Referral: To Change Telegraph Avenue Parking Signs 

to Allow Parking All Times  

From: Councilmember Worthington  

Recommendation: That the Council refer to the City Manager to eliminate the no 

parking signs on Telegraph Avenue between Bancroft and Dwight.   

Financial Implications: Minimal  

Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 

Action: Approved recommendation. 

25.  One-Way Car Share – Mid-Pilot Program Report (Continued from October 30, 

2018.)  

From: City Manager  

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 

Action: Moved to Consent Calendar. No action taken. 

 

October 30, 2018  

2. Adoption of Administrative Regulations Regarding Temporary Non-
Commercial Objects on Sidewalks and Parklets, and Amending BMC 
Chapter 14.48  
From: Mayor Arreguin and Councilmembers Hahn and Maio  
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,632-N.S. 
amending BMC Chapter 14.48, “Miscellaneous Use of Streets and Sidewalks.”  
First Reading Vote: Ayes – Bartlett, Droste, Hahn, Harrison, Maio, Wengraf, 
Arreguin; Noes – None; Abstain – Davila; Absent – Worthington.  
Financial Implications: See report  
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, 981-7100 
Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,632-N.S. Vote: Ayes – 
Maio, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Droste, Arreguin; Noes – Worthington; 
Abstain – Davila. 

31.  One-Way Car Share Pilot Program – Fee Changes (continued from May 29, 
2018)  

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/11_Nov/Documents/2018-11-13_Item_05_Contract_Award_to_GradeTech_Inc.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/11_Nov/Documents/2018-11-13_Item_05_Contract_Award_to_GradeTech_Inc.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/11_Nov/Documents/2018-11-13_Item_12_City_Manager_Short-Term_Referral.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/11_Nov/Documents/2018-11-13_Item_12_City_Manager_Short-Term_Referral.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/11_Nov/Documents/2018-11-13_Item_25_One-Way_Car_Share_%E2%80%93_Mid-Pilot.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-30_Item_2_Ordinance_7632.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-30_Item_2_Ordinance_7632.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-30_Item_2_Ordinance_7632.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-30_Item_31_One-Way_Car_Share_Pilot_Program_–_Fee_Changes.aspx


Page 5 of 34 

From: City Manager  
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt a 
Resolution approving an updated fee structure for the One-way Car Share Two-
and-a-Half-Year Pilot Program for Fiscal Year 2019 that will increase residential 
parking permit fees by 20 percent and decrease parking meter deposits by 14 
percent and amending Resolution No. 67,696-N.S. 
Financial Implications: See report  
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 
Public Testimony: The Mayor opened the public hearing. 1 speaker. M/S/C 
(Maio/Worthington) to close the public hearing. Vote: All Ayes. Action: M/S/C 
(Maio/Worthington) to adopt Resolution No. 68,660–N.S. Vote: All Ayes. 

 

October 16, 2018 

1. Amend BMC Chapters 6.24 and 14.52 to Authorize Paid Parking on Shattuck 
Avenue between Carleton Street and Ward Street and add the Northside 
(Euclid/Hearst) Metered Parking Area to the goBerkeley Program  
From: City Manager  
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,628-N.S. 
amending Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Chapter 6.24 to update regulations 
related to parking payment, and amending Chapter 14.52 to authorize new 
meters on Shattuck Avenue in South Berkeley and add the Northside 

32.  One-Way Car Share – Mid-Pilot Program Report (continued from May 29, 
2018)  
From: City Manager  
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 
Action: Item held over to November 13, 2018. 

35.  City Manager referral: Initiate a franchise agreement with FlixBus(Referred 
from Agenda Committee due to Significant Lack of Background or Supporting 
Information)  
From: Councilmember Worthington  
Recommendation: That the Council refer to the City Manager initiation of a 
franchise agreement with FlixBus, requiring a permit issued by the Director of 
Public Works, establishing a fee for the issuance of the permit, establishing 
administrative penalties for failure to obtain a permit or violation of permit 
requirements, and providing a procedure for the assessment and collection of 
administrative penalties for permit violations.   
Financial Implications: See report  
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 
Action: Councilmember Harrison added as a co-sponsor. Moved to Consent 
Calendar. Approved recommendation as written in Supplemental Reports Packet 
#2. That the Council refer an initiation of a franchise agreement with FlixBus, 
requiring a permit issued by the Director of Public Works, establishing a fee for 
the issuance of the permit, establishing administrative penalties for failure to 
obtain a permit or violation of permit requirements, providing a procedure for the 
assessment and collection of administrative penalties for permit violations. 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-16_Item_01_Ordinance_7628.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-16_Item_01_Ordinance_7628.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-16_Item_01_Ordinance_7628.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-30_Item_32_One-Way_Car_Share_–_Mid-Pilot_Program_Report.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-30_Item_35_Initiate_a_franchise_agreement_with_FlixBus.aspx


Page 6 of 34 

(Euclid/Hearst) metered parking area to the goBerkeley parking program.  
First Reading Vote: All Ayes.  
Financial Implications: See report  
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 
Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,628-N.S. 

14. Contract: Ghilotti Construction Company for Shattuck Reconfiguration and 

Pedestrian Safety Project  

From: City Manager  

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution: a. Approving plans and specifications for 

the Shattuck Reconfiguration and Pedestrian Safety Project (“Shattuck 

Reconfiguration Project”, or “Project”), Specification No. 17-11090-C; b. Waiving 

inconsequential defect and accepting the bid of Ghilotti Construction Company as 

the lowest responsive and responsible bidder on the Project, and authorizing the 

City Manager to execute a contract with Ghilotti Construction Company and any 

amendments, extensions, or change orders until completion of the Project in 

accordance with the approved plans and specifications in an amount not to 

exceed $7,986,960, which includes a contingency of 20 percent; and c. Accepting 

the Addendum to the 2009 Downtown Area Plan Environmental Impact Report 

(DAP EIR), which was prepared in response to California Environmental Quality 

Act (CEQA) requirements.  This addendum, which is attached herein, describes 

changes in the project scope as a result of developing the project from the 

conceptual stage to the detailed design stage.  The detailed design of the Project 

does not increase the level of impact anticipated in the conceptual design.   

Financial Implications: See report  

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,634–N.S. 

25. Welcome to Berkeley Signage (Continued from October 2, 2018)  

From: Transportation Commission  

Contact: Farid Javandel, Commission Secretary, 981-6300 

Action: 5 speakers. M/S/C (Hahn/Arreguin) to refer to the City Manager on a 

short term basis to replace all the Welcome to Berkeley signs with the Option B 

design per the Transportation Commission recommendation, including “Ohlone 

Territory” but not a second motto. Also, leave space on the sign to add a policy 

message and consult with Ohlone leaders on the use of the word “territory.” Vote: 

Ayes – Maio, Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Worthington, Arreguin; Noes – 

Droste; Abstain – Wengraf. 

 

October 2, 2018 

4. Contract: Nelson\Nygaard for Community Outreach and Engagement 
Services for the goBerkeley Residential Shared Parking Pilot Project  
From: City Manager  

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-16_Item_14_Contract__Ghilotti_Construction.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-16_Item_14_Contract__Ghilotti_Construction.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-16_Item_25_Welcome_to_Berkeley_Signage.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-02_Item_04_Contract_Nelson-Nygaard_for_Community.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-02_Item_04_Contract_Nelson-Nygaard_for_Community.aspx


Page 7 of 34 

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute 
a contract with Nelson\Nygaard for community outreach and engagement 
services for the goBerkeley Residential Shared Parking Pilot project for an 
amount not to exceed $250,000 for the period October 15, 2018 through June 
30, 2021.   
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $250,000  
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,619–N.S. 

 
E. Welcome to Berkeley Signage (Continued from September 25, 2018)  

From: Transportation Commission  
Contact: Farid Javandel, Commission Secretary, 981-6300 
Action: Item held over to October 16, 2018. 
 

F.   Adopt an Ordinance to amend BMC Chapter 3.80 allow Mayor and City Council 
employees serve as Commissioner (Continued from September 25, 2018. Item 
contains revised material.)  
Supplemental materials (Supp 2) 
Supplemental materials (Supp 2) 
From: Councilmember Worthington  
Recommendation: Adopt revisions to Chapter 3.80 in Berkeley Municipal Code 
(BMC) concerning Membership On Boards And Commissions to allow Mayor and City 
Council employees to serve as a Commissioner by repealing section 3.80.030.   
Financial Implications: Minimal  
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 
Action: Item removed from the agenda by Councilmember Worthington. 

 
16. g goBerkeley Parking Management Program - Parking Rate and Time Limit 

Adjustments for New Northside Area for November 1, 2018  
From: City Manager  
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 
Action: Received and filed. 

 

September 25, 2018 

3.  Grant: Alameda County Transportation Commission for Measures B and 
BB Paratransit Revenue  
From: City Manager  
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to receive 
funds and execute any agreements and amendments with the Alameda County 
Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC) for the renewal of Measure B and 
Measure BB annual pass-through funds estimated to be in the amount of 
$600,667 for use during FY 2019, and execute resulting contracts for services 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-02_Item_E_Welcome_to_Berkeley_Signage.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-02_Item_F_Ordinance_to_amend_BMC_Chapter.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-02_Item_F_Ordinance_to_amend_BMC_Chapter.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-02_Supp_2_Reports_Item_F_Supp_Worthington_pdf.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-02_Supp_2_Reports_Item_F_Supp_Worthington_pdf.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-02_Supp_2_Reports_Item_F_Supp_Wengraf_pdf.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-02_Item_16_goBerkeley_Parking_Management_Program.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-02_Item_16_goBerkeley_Parking_Management_Program.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/09_Sep/Documents/2018-09-25__Item_03_Grant__Alameda_County_Transportation.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/09_Sep/Documents/2018-09-25__Item_03_Grant__Alameda_County_Transportation.aspx


Page 8 of 34 

with Easy Does It and Friendly Transportation. These funds are critical in 
supporting our Aging Services programs by meeting the transportation needs of 
seniors and people with disabilities in the Berkeley community. 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400 
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,603–N.S. 

 
10.  Contract: Cadmus for Development of a Berkeley EV Roadmap  
From: City Manager  
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute 
a contract and any amendments, extensions, or change orders with The Cadmus 
Group LLC (Cadmus) to develop a Berkeley Electric Vehicle (EV) Roadmap for 
an amount not to exceed $65,000 for the period October 1, 2018 through 
October 31, 2019. 
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $65,000 
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400 
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,608–N.S. 

 
15. Approval of Berkeley Strategic Transportation Plan Addendum  
From: City Manager  
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution: 1. Approving the Berkeley Strategic 
Transportation Plan Addendum. 2. Authorizing the City Manager to submit the 
remaining unfunded and partially funded Five-Year Priority Projects from the 
Berkeley Strategic Transportation Plan Addendum to the Alameda County 
Transportation Commission for inclusion and funding in the County's Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2020 - FY 2024 Comprehensive Investment Plan. 3. Authorizing the City 
Manager to execute agreements as needed for accepting the awarded grant 
funds. 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,613–N.S. amended to adopt Sections I and II 
only and to include the Shattuck-Adeline Greenway in the list of projects. 

 
16.  Zero Emission Vehicle Requirements for City Fleet  
From: Community Environmental Advisory Commission  
Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager the finalization of a policy which 
would require all new purchases of light-duty passenger vehicles to be electric 
vehicles or plug-in hybrids, and require the City-owned light-duty passenger 
vehicle fleet to be 100% electric vehicles or plug-in hybrids by the mid-2020s. 
This policy would be based on the City & County of San Francisco's zero-
emission light-duty passenger vehicle policy, and the report to Council should 
identify any additional costs associated with electric vehicles or plug-in hybrids, 
potentially accelerated fleet turnover, and necessary charging infrastructure on 
City lots. 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/09_Sep/Documents/2018-09-25__Item_10_Contract__Cadmus.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/09_Sep/Documents/2018-09-25__Item_10_Contract__Cadmus.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/09_Sep/Documents/2018-09-25__Item_15_Approval_of_Berkeley_Strategic_Transportation_Plan_Addendum.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/09_Sep/Documents/2018-09-25__Item_16_Zero_Emission_Vehicle_Requirements_for_City_Fleet.aspx


Page 9 of 34 

Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Viviana Garcia, Commission Secretary, 981-7460 
Action: Moved to Action Calendar. 2 speakers. M/S/C (Worthington/Maio) to 
approve the recommendation amended to state that the policy includes the goal 
of moving the balance of the fleet to electric and plug-in hybrid vehicles. 

Vote: Ayes – Maio, Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, 
Arreguin; 
Noes – None; Abstain – None; Absent – Bartlett. 
 

2 25.  Traffic Circle Vegetation Maintenance Policy  
From: Councilmembers Droste, Bartlett, Davila, and Mayor Arreguin  
Recommendation: Refer to Parks and Waterfront Commission and the 
Transportation Commission to establish a city/community task force to: a) 
Evaluate the City's current traffic circle vegetation policy and b) Conduct a 
community led process to update that policy to ensure pedestrian/bicycle/vehicle 
safety and preserve community efforts to beautify traffic circles. 
Financial Implications: Staff time 
Contact: Lori Droste, Councilmember, District 8, 981-7180 
Action: Approved recommendation. 
 
26.  Refer to the City Manager UC Berkeley Game Day Parking Restrictions and 
Fines in RPP Surrounding Campus 
From: Councilmembers Droste, Wengraf, and Mayor Arreguin  
Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager to adopt a Resolution: 1) Modifying 
RPP zones A, B, and D on posted University of California football game days to 
prohibit parking without a valid Residential Preferential Parking permit; 2) 
Modifying RPP zones F, G (which do not have RPP on Saturdays) to include 
RPP enforcement and prohibit parking without a valid RPP permit on posted 
University of California football game days. (No RPP on Saturdays except game 
days) 3) Establishing a new Parking Fine Schedule including increased parking 
fines of $300 per violation of BMC 14.40.090 in Residential Preferential Parking 
zones A, B, D, F G on posted University of California football game days; 4) 
Replacing existing RPP signs in zones A, B, D, F, and G with new signs clearly 
indicating the University of California football game day parking prohibitions and 
listing the dates on the sign of University of California football game days; and 5) 
Assessing the modified University of California Football Game Day Parking Fine 
program within three years of implementation and recommend to Council 
whether to continue or modify the program; and rescinding Resolution 63,800- 
N.S. 
Financial Implications: Staff time and signage. Increased revenue from parking 
tickets on game days. 
Contact: Lori Droste, Councilmember, District 8, 981-7180 
Action: Approved recommendation revised to state, “Refer to the City Manager 
to develop a Resolution:” 

September 13, 2018 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/09_Sep/Documents/2018-09-25__Item_25_Traffic_Circle_Vegetation_Maintenance_Policy.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/09_Sep/Documents/2018-09-25__Item_26_Refer_to_the_City_Manager_UC_Berkeley_Game_Day_Parking.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/09_Sep/Documents/2018-09-25__Item_26_Refer_to_the_City_Manager_UC_Berkeley_Game_Day_Parking.aspx


Page 10 of 34 

23.  Eliminating Public Parking from the Proposed Berkeley Way 
Project  
From: City Manager  
Recommendation: Authorize the City Manager to continue working 
with BRIDGE Housing Corporation on the proposed development of the 
City-owned site at 2012 Berkeley Way with a revised proposal that 
includes no public parking.   
Financial Implications: See report  
Contact: Paul Buddenhagen, City Manager's Office, 981-7000 
Action: 16 speakers. M/S/C (Hahn/Maio) to approve the recommendation 
amended 
to refer to the City Manager to evaluate all potential short term and long term 
solutions to increase parking availability in the project area. 
Vote: All Ayes. 

 

28. Urban Forest and Wildlife Habitat Preservation  

From: Councilmembers Davila and Harrison  

Recommendation: Refer to the Transportation Commission to research a 

modification of Chapter 19.37, the Berkeley Green Code. Code 19.37.040 

Chapter 3 Green Building code shall have a new subsection that shall require 

that: -Additions or alterations to single-family residences must have at least 

one tree on the parcel per each 2,500 square feet of lot size upon project 

completion. -Additions or alterations to a multi-family dwelling with two to four 

units must have two trees on the parcel per 4,500 square feet of lot size upon 

project completion. -Additions or alterations to a multi-family dwelling with five 

plus units must have four trees per each 5,000 square feet of lot size upon 

project completion. -Projects with thirteen or more units that fails to 

incorporate all of the trees required into the build, must plant the remainder of 

the required trees at a location within the City of Berkeley. An ideal location to 

be considered is the eastern side of the I-580 freeway along the Frontage 

Road. The developer will incur the cost of maintenance of the trees for a 

period of five years after planting. -Parking structures shall be required to 

have one tree per fifty parking spaces. The trees can be either on the footprint 

or the rooftop of the structure. Additionally, a requirement to incorporate a 

greywater system should be implemented to water the trees. -Trees planted 

must be California Natives species. Refer to the California Native Plant 

Society for a list of eligible trees. https://www.cnps.org/   

Financial Implications: Unknown  

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/09_Sep/Documents/2018-09-13_Item_23_Eliminating_Public_Parking.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/09_Sep/Documents/2018-09-13_Item_23_Eliminating_Public_Parking.aspx


Page 11 of 34 

Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120 
Action: Item removed from the agenda by Councilmember Davila. 

 

July 24, 2017 

4.  Cooperative Agreement and Lease: Downtown Berkeley Bike Station  
From: City Manager  
Recommendation:  Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,621-N.S. 
authorizing the City Manager to execute a lease agreement with Bay Area Rapid 
Transit for retail space at the Center Street Garage for a two-year lease term 
expiring June 30, 2020, with an option to extend for three one-year terms.   
First Reading Vote: All Ayes.  
Financial Implications: See report  
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 

Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,621-N.S. 
 

35. Contract: Parisi Transportation Consulting, Inc. for Planning and 

Preliminary Engineering for the Milvia Bikeway Project  

From: City Manager  

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 

execute a contract and any amendments with Parisi Transportation 

Consulting, Inc. for Planning and Preliminary Engineering for the Milvia 

Bikeway Project, for an amount not to exceed $350,000 for the period 

September 1, 2018 through October 31, 2019.  

Financial Implications: Capital Project Grant Fund - Local - $350,000 

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300  

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,551–N.S. 

38. Contract No. 10298 Amendment: C. Overaa & Co. for the Center 

Street Parking Garage  

From: City Manager  

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 

amend Contract No. 10298 with C. Overaa & Co. for the Center Street 

Parking Garage Project, increasing the contract amount by $1,500,000 for a 

total amount not to exceed $38,470,483.  

Financial Implications: Off Street Parking Fund - $1,500,000  

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300  

Action: Moved to Action Calendar. 2 speakers. M/S/C (Harrison/Maio) to 

adopt Resolution No. 68,554–N.S. authorizing the City Manager to amend 

Contract No. 10298 with C. Overaa & Co. for the Center Street Parking 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/07_Jul/Documents/2018-07-24_Item_04_Ordinance_7621.aspx


Page 12 of 34 

Garage Project, increasing the contract amount by $1,500,000 for a total 

amount not to exceed $38,470,483.  

Vote: Ayes – Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Wengraf, Worthington, Arreguin; Noes 

– None; Abstain – None; Absent – Maio, Hahn, Droste 

41. Grant Application: Active Transportation Program Funding for the 

Milvia Bikeway Project  

From: City Manager  

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 

submit a grant application to the California Department of Transportation 

Active Transportation Program for the remaining unfunded phases of the 

Milvia Bikeway Project, for a total amount up to $6,470,650, and, if awarded, 

to accept the grant and execute any resultant agreements and amendments.  

Financial Implications: See report  

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300  

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,557–N.S. 

45. Contract: Nelson\Nygaard for Parking Data Collection and Analysis 

Services for the goBerkeley Residential Shared Parking Pilot  

From: City Manager  

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 

execute a contract and any amendments, extensions, or change orders with 

Nelson/Nygaard Consulting Services for parking data collection and analysis 

services for the goBerkeley Residential Shared Parking Pilot for an amount 

not to exceed $250,000 for the period September 1, 2018 through June 30, 

2021.  

Financial Implications: Various Funds - $250,000  

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300  

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,565–N.S. 

51. Proposing Time Requirements for Commission and Board Meeting 

Minutes  

From: Open Government Commission  

Recommendation: Approve the recommendation and insert the language in 

the report into the Commissioners' Manual “Chapter III, Coordination with 

Council, Staff and Others” that draft minutes shall be completed and posted 

within two (2) weeks after the commission meets.  

Financial Implications: None  



Page 13 of 34 

Contact: Jessica Mar, Commission Secretary, 981-6950  

Action: Approved recommendation. 

54. Budget Referral: RRFB Light at San Pablo Avenue & Addison 

Street  

From: Councilmember Davila  

Recommendation: Refer to the budget process an allocation for Rectangular 

Rapid Flash Beacon (RRFB) at the crosswalk at San Pablo and Addison 

Street.  

Financial Implications: See report  

Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120  

Action: Approved recommendation. 

73. Ordinance to amend BMC Chapter 3.80 allow City Staff serve as a 

Commissioner  

From: Councilmember Worthington  

Recommendation: Adopt revisions to Chapter 3.80 in Berkeley Municipal 

Code (BMC) concerning Membership On Boards And Commissions to allow 

City Staff to serve as a Commissioner by repealing section 3.80.030.  

Financial Implications: See report  

Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170  

Action: Item held over to September 25, 2018 including revised materials. 

74. Resolution creating a ballot measure which establishes a 50-cents 

per ride tax on Transportation Network Companies 

From: Councilmember Worthington  

Recommendation: City Council submit to the voters of the City, at the 

November 6, 2018 election, the ordinance and ballot measure set forth in this 

item. This ordinance proposes to adopt a tax of up to 50 cents per ride on 

passengers of Transportation Network Company (TNCS) trips originating in 

the City of Berkeley, if a majority of all qualified voters voting on the ballot 

measure vote in favor thereof.  

Financial Implications: Minimal  

Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170  

Action: Item held over to July 31, 2018 (including supplemental materials). 

78.  City Council Short Term Referral Process – Monthly Update  

From: City Manager  

Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900  

Action: Received and filed. 



Page 14 of 34 

82. Welcome to Berkeley Signage  

From: Transportation Commission  

Contact: Farid Javandel, Commission Secretary, 981-6300  

Action: Item held over to September 13, 2018. 

84. Suggested Process for North Berkeley BART Parking Lot  

From: Councilmember Maio and Mayor Arreguin  

Contact: Linda Maio, Councilmember, District 1, 981-7110  

Action: Received and filed. 

July 10, 2018  

11. Cooperative Agreement and Lease: Downtown Berkeley Bike Station  
From: City Manager  
Recommendation:   
1. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a cooperative 
agreement with the Bay Area Rapid Transit District for continued operation of the 
Downtown Berkeley Bike Station in its new Center Street Garage location for a 
two-year term in an amount not to exceed $130,000, expiring on June 30, 2020.  
2. Adopt first reading of an Ordinance authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
lease agreement with Bay Area Rapid Transit for retail space at the Center Street 
Garage for a two-year lease term expiring June 30, 2020, with an option to 
extend for three one-year terms.   
Financial Implications: See report  
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 
Action: 1. Adopted Resolution No. 68,507–N.S. 2. Adopted first reading of 
Ordinance No. 7,621–N.S. Second reading scheduled for July 24, 2018. 

20. Refer to City Manager to look into adopting an ordinance requiring a permit 
process for scooter sharing companies to operate on public streets  
From: Councilmembers Worthington and Hahn  
Recommendation: Refer to the City manager to look into adopting an ordinance 
establishing a pilot Powered Scooter Share Permit Program for 24 months, 
requiring a permit issued by the Director of Public Works, establishing a fee for 
the issuance of the permit, establishing administrative penalties for failure to 
obtain a permit or violation of permit requirements, providing a procedure for the 
assessment and collection of administrative penalties for permit violations or 
parking or leaving standing an unpermitted powered scooter subject to the pilot 
Powered Scooter Share Permit Program on a sidewalk, street, or other public 
right-of-way.  
Financial Implications: See report  
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 
Action: Approved recommendation amended to also refer the item to the 
Transportation Commission 

 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/07_Jul/Documents/2018-07-10_Item_11_Cooperative_Agreement_and_Lease.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/07_Jul/Documents/2018-07-10_Item_20_Refer_to_City_Manager_to_look.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/07_Jul/Documents/2018-07-10_Item_20_Refer_to_City_Manager_to_look.aspx


Page 15 of 34 

37. Referral Response: City-wide Green Development Requirements  
Supplemental material (Supp 2) 
From: Community Environmental Advisory Commission  
Recommendation: Refer to the Planning Commission development of City-wide 
Green Building and Transportation Demand Management measures, based on 
those currently required in the Commercial Downtown Mixed Use District (C-
DMU), to apply throughout the City of Berkeley’s commercial zoning districts, with 
the following amendments: 1. Change the Green Building and Transportation 
Demand measures to apply to all projects of 50 units or more, or 10,000 square 
feet of commercial area, instead of limiting it to projects of 75 units or more. 2. 
Require one bicycle parking space per two residential units, in addition to the 
bicycle parking space requirements of one per 2,000 square feet of commercial 
space. 3. Change the number of required vehicle sharing spaces to be based on 
the number of parking spaces constructed, rather than required, to avoid any 
potential confusion surrounding waived parking requirements (either through 
legislation or payment of an in-lieu fee). 4. Add in a requirement that all 
constructed parking areas be EV-ready, such that EV charging stations could be 
installed and be able to reach and charge any and all parking spaces if 
needed/desired. Actual EV charging stations should not be required at 
construction beyond City requirements. 5. Instead of LEED Gold, require projects 
to achieve LEED Silver, or equivalent as evaluated City staff. 6. Do not require 
the transportation benefits, with plans to re-consider requiring the transportation 
benefits after the City or an independent third party evaluates the impact of transit 
benefit requirements in Downtown.   
Financial Implications: None  
Contact: Viviana Garcia, Commission Secretary, 981-7460 
Action: Moved to Consent Calendar. Adopted the revised recommendation from 
Councilmember Hahn in Supplemental Reports Packet #2: 

Meeting Date: July 10, 2018 
Item Number: 37 
Item Description: Referral Response: City-wide Green Development 
Requirements 
Submitted by: Councilmember Sophie Hahn 
Recommend that Council express our gratitude to CEAC for providing the 
Referral Response; take no action on the Item; and request that Staff transmit the 
CEAC report to the Planning Commission for consideration when the Planning 
Commission takes up the City-wide Green Development Requirements referral. 
Note: The original April 2016 referral was to the Planning Commission. CEAC 
and Energy Commissions were added by Council at the time of the referral. The 
Planning Commission is best situated to consider/integrate the input of CEAC 
and Energy Commissions and to create a single recommendation for Council to 
consider. 

 

 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/07_Jul/Documents/2018-07-10_Item_37_Referral_Response_City-wide_Green.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/07_Jul/Documents/2018-07-10_Item_37_Referral_Response_City-wide_Green_-_Supp.aspx


Page 16 of 34 

June 26, 2018 

24. Weekdays’ Lunchtime Closure of Ward Street Mid-block Between Sacramento 

Street and California Street  

From: City Manager  

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing weekdays’ lunchtime closure 

of Ward Street mid-block between Sacramento Street and California Street 

between the hours of 11:30am to 1:30pm on school days in order to enhance 

safety of school children crossing between buildings of Longfellow Middle 

School.   

Financial Implications: See report  

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,496–N.S. 

29. Budget Referral: $120,000 for Enhanced Lighting Along Ohlone Park in Key 
Areas  
From: Councilmembers Maio and Harrison  
Recommendation: Refer to the budget process $120,000 for the funding of 
enhanced lighting along Ohlone Park in key areas.   
Financial Implications: $120,000  
Contact: Linda Maio, Councilmember, District 1, 981-7110 
Action: Approved recommendation. 

30. Budget Referral: Funding a Pedestrian-Activated Crosswalk Across Gilman at 

Peralta 

From: Councilmember Maio  

Recommendation: Refer to the budget process the funding of pedestrian-

activated crosswalk across Gilman Street at Peralta Avenue.   

Financial Implications: $100,000  

Contact: Linda Maio, Councilmember, District 1, 981-7110 

Action: Approved recommendation 

34. Reassessing Traffic Calming Policy  

From: Councilmembers Droste, Wengraf, Maio, and Harrison  

Recommendation: Refer to the Transportation Commission to re-evaluate the 

City’s qualifying criteria and ranking and prioritization process for traffic calming, 

by considering the following possibilities, among other changes that would 

promote safe residential streets and maximize the public health benefit of the 

traffic calming program: -Lowering the speed limit criteria to read “where the 85th 

percentile speed profile is greater than the speed limit” instead of ‘“greater than 5 

mph over the speed limit.” -Taking alignment with the City’s bicycle and 

pedestrian plans into account.   

Financial Implications: See report  

Contact: Lori Droste, Councilmember, District 8, 981-7180 

Action: Approved recommendation. 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-26_Item_24_Weekdays%E2%80%99_Lunchtime_Closure_of_Ward.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-26_Item_24_Weekdays%E2%80%99_Lunchtime_Closure_of_Ward.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-26_Item_29_Budget_Referral_120,000_for_Enhanced.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-26_Item_29_Budget_Referral_120,000_for_Enhanced.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-26_Item_30_Budget_Referral_Funding_a_Pedestrian.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-26_Item_30_Budget_Referral_Funding_a_Pedestrian.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-26_Item_34_Reassessing_Traffic_Calming_Policy.aspx


Page 17 of 34 

36.  City Manager Referral; Preliminary steps towards the expansion of the 

GoBerkeley Transportation Program to Increase Parking Efficiency (Continued 

from May 29, 2018. Item contains revised material.)  

Revised materials (Supp 2) 

From: Councilmember Worthington  

Recommendation: City Manager Referral; Amendment to the City of Berkeley 

municipal code regulating off-street parking lots in order to facilitate the 

expansion of the GoBerkeley Transportation Program to allow private parking 

vendors to charge adjustable rates for parking spaces.  

Financial Implications: Minimal  

Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 

Action: Moved to Consent Calendar. Adopted item as revised in Supplemental 

Reports Packet #2 with additional background and amendments in the proposed 

ordinance. 

38. Budget Referral: Replace Berkeley City Limit Signs to Read “Welcome to 

Berkeley, LOVE LIFE! Sanctuary City and Ohlone Territory” (Continued from 

June 12, 2018)  

From: Councilmember Davila  

Recommendation: Refer to the FY19 (2018/2019) Budget Process an estimate of 

$3,000 to Replace Berkeley City Limit Signs to read: Welcome to Berkeley, LOVE 

LIFE!, Sanctuary City and Ohlone Territory.   

Financial Implications: $3,000  

Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120 

Action: Moved to Consent Calendar. Approved recommendation without 

reference to specific language for the signs. 

 

June 12, 2018- Regular Meeting 

1. Amend Berkeley Municipal Code Section 14.52.130 for Inoperable Pay-and-
Display Stations to Align with the California Vehicle Code 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,600-N.S. 
amending Berkeley Municipal Code Section 14.52.130 Time Limits Enforced at 
Inoperable Parking Meters and Pay-And-Display Stations to align with California 
Vehicle Code (CVC) §22508.5, which allows free parking up to the posted time 
limit at a space controlled by an inoperable parking meter. 
First Reading Vote: Ayes – Maio, Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, 
Droste, Arreguin; Noes – None; Abstain – None; Absent – Worthington. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 

Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,600-N.S. 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-26_Item_36_City_Manager_Referral_Preliminary.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-26_Item_36_City_Manager_Referral_Preliminary.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-26_Item_36_City_Manager_Referral_Preliminary_-_Rev.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-26_Item_38_Budget_Referral_Replace_Berkeley_City.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-26_Item_38_Budget_Referral_Replace_Berkeley_City.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Item_01_Ordinance_7600.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Item_01_Ordinance_7600.aspx


Page 18 of 34 

  

2. Amending Berkeley Municipal Code Title 6 and Title 14 to Include Electric 
Vehicle Parking in Municipal Off-Street Parking Facilities and on Public 
Streets 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,601-N.S.amending 
Berkeley Municipal Code Title 14 Vehicles and Traffic by adding Chapter 14.46 
Electric Vehicle Parking to manage their parking on public streets and amending 
Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 6.24 Municipal Off-Street Parking lots to 
manage electric vehicle parking for off-street facilities, revise terminology to utilize 
“off-street parking facilities” in order to represent off-street lots and garages, and 
remove references to the City Epark card. 
First Reading Vote: Ayes – Maio, Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, 
Droste, Arreguin; Noes – None; Abstain – None; Absent – Worthington. 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 

Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,601-N.S. 
30. Fossil Fuel Free Berkeley 

Supplemental materials (Supp 3) 

From: Councilmember Davila, Mayor Arreguin, and Councilmember Harrison 

Recommendation: Refer to the Energy Commission and Transportation 

Commission the proposed resolution to further implementation of the Climate 

Action Plan and establish the goal of becoming a Fossil Fuel Free Berkeley: - 

Establish a date by which we are committed to being a Fossil Fuel Free City. - 

Oppose further transportation of oil, gas, and coal. - Strengthen green building 

requirements for newly constructed city facilities, and major renovations, including 

the potential for Zero Net Energy and further integration of considering climate 

impacts in capital planning projects. Current requirements are LEED Silver, which 

are far below what we require for new buildings in the Downtown.  - All future City 

government procurements of vehicles should minimize emissions and set a goal 

of transitioning the city’s vehicle fleet to all electric vehicles. - Establish a goal of 

transitioning to 100% renewable energy for municipal operations and community 

wide goal of 100% reductions by 2030. - Formally oppose recent expansion of 

offshore drilling by the Trump Administration. - Call for region-wide solutions to 

carbon emissions, including rapid adoption of renewable energy sources, 

affordable densification of cities and low-emissions public transportation 

infrastructure. 

Financial Implications: Unknown 

Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120 

Action: M/S/C (Worthington/Harrison) to accept supplemental material from 

Councilmember Hahn on Items 30 and 49. Vote: Ayes – Davila, Harrison, Hahn, 

Wengraf, Worthington, Arreguin; Noes – None; Abstain – None; Absent – Maio, Bartlett, 

Droste.  

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Item_02_Ordinance_7601.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Item_02_Ordinance_7601.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Item_02_Ordinance_7601.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Item_30_Fossil_Fuel_Free_Berkeley.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Item_30_Fossil_Fuel_Free_Berkeley_-_Supp.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Item_30_Fossil_Fuel_Free_Berkeley_-_Supp.aspx


Page 19 of 34 

Action: Moved to Action Calendar. 8 speakers. M/S/C (Harrison/Wengraf) to approve the 

recommendations in Item 30 and Item 49 as amended in the revised items submitted by 

Councilmember Hahn. Councilmembers Davila (Chair), Harrison, and Hahn appointed to 

Ad Hoc Committee. Revised Recommendation for Item 30: Refer to the Energy 

Commission and Transportation Commission consideration of the proposed resolution or 

similar action to further implement the Climate Action Plan and establish the goal of 

becoming a Fossil Fuel Free Berkeley, and further consider:  Establishing a date by 

which we are committed to being a Fossil Fuel Free City.  Opposing further 

transportation of oil, gas, and coal.  Fully implementing Berkeley Deep Green Building, 

raising the citywide LEED certification requirement above the current LEED Silver, and 

applying the same requirements to newly constructed city facilities, and major 

renovations. Council Consent Items  Requiring all future City government procurements 

of vehicles to minimize emissions, and establishing a goal and plan for transitioning the 

city’s vehicle fleet to all electric vehicles  Establishing a goal and plan for transitioning to 

100% renewable energy for municipal operations and a community wide goal of 100% 

reductions by 2030.  Formally opposing the recent expansion of offshore drilling by the 

Trump Administration.  Calling for region-wide solutions to carbon emissions, including 

rapid adoption of renewable energy sources, affordable densification of cities and low-

emissions public transportation infrastructure.  

Vote: Ayes – Maio, Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin; 

Noes – None; Abstain – None; Absent – Bartlett 

37.  Referral to the Budget Process: Increased Funding for Neighborhood Traffic 

Calming 

From: Councilmembers Wengraf, Harrison, and Droste 

Recommendation: Refer to the Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Budget Process an 

increase in allocation for neighborhood traffic calming from the current 50 

thousand dollars to 100 thousand dollars. 

Financial Implications: $50,000 

Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, 981-7160 

Action: Approved recommendation. 

51. Budget Referral: Replace Berkeley City Limit Signs to Read “Welcome to 

Berkeley, LOVE LIFE! Sanctuary City and Ohlone Territory” (Continued from May 

15, 2018) 

From: Councilmember Davila 

Recommendation: Refer to the FY19 (2018/2019) Budget Process an estimate of 

$3,000 to Replace Berkeley City Limit Signs to read: Welcome to Berkeley, LOVE 

LIFE!, Sanctuary City and Ohlone Territory. 

Financial Implications: $3,000 

Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120 

Action: Item held over to June 26, 2018. 

52. Updated Commissioners’ Manual (Continued from May 29, 2018) 

Revised materials (Supp 1) 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Item_37_Referral_to_the_Budget_Process.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Item_37_Referral_to_the_Budget_Process.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Item_51_Budget_Referral_Replace_Berkeley_City.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Item_51_Budget_Referral_Replace_Berkeley_City.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Item_52_Updated_Commissioners%E2%80%99_Manual.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Item_52_Updated_Commissioners%E2%80%99_Manual_-_Rev.aspx


Page 20 of 34 

From: City Manager 

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution 1. rescinding Resolution No. 65,570-N.S.; 

2. adopting the updated edition of the Commissioners’ Manual to include new 

regulations, clarify current procedures, and increase organization and efficiency; 

and 3. rescinding Resolution No. 61,312-N.S. due to redundancy. 

Financial Implications: None 

Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900 

Action: Moved to Consent Calendar. Adopted Resolution No. 68,487–N.S. as revised in 

Supplemental Reports Packet #1 to include additional modifications to the adopted 

Manual. 

 

June 12, 2018 – Special Meeting 

1. 2018 City Council Referral Prioritization Process Using Re-
Weighted Range Voting (RRV) 
Presentation  
From: City Manager  
Recommendation: 1. Review the completed Re-Weighted Range 
Voting (RRV) rankings for all outstanding City Council referrals;  
2. Approve the removal of referrals that have been marked as rescinded 
by the sponsoring Councilmember or District;  
3. Adopt a Resolution approving the list of prioritized referrals to city 
staff. 
 Financial Implications: Staff time Contact: Mark Numainville, City 
Clerk, 981-6900  
Action: 0 speakers. M/S/C (Maio/Wengraf) to:  
1. Approve the removal of referrals that have been marked as rescinded 
by the sponsoring Councilmember or District.  
2. Adopt Resolution No. 68,467–N.S. approving the list of prioritized 
referrals to city staff.  
3. Request that when deemed necessary by the City Manager, an 
informational report will be submitted when Council items that “Direct” 
action by the City Manager have impacts on projects and priorities 
currently in process.  
Vote: Ayes – Maio, Davila, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste; Noes 
– None; Abstain – None; Absent – Bartlett, Harrison.June 12, 2018 

 

May 29, 2018 

5. Updated Commissioners’ Manual 
From: City Manager 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Special_Item_01_City_Council_Referral.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Special_Item_01_City_Council_Referral.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/06_June/Documents/2018-06-12_Special_Item_01_City_Council_Referral_-_Pres.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/05_May/Documents/2018-05-29_Item_05_Updated_Commissioners%E2%80%99_Manual.aspx


Page 21 of 34 

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution 1. rescinding Resolution No. 65,570-N.S.; 
2. adopting the updated edition of the Commissioners’ Manual to include new 
regulations, clarify current procedures, and increase organization and efficiency; 
and 3. rescinding Resolution No. 61,312-N.S. due to redundancy. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900 
Action: Item held over to June 12, 2018. 
 

27. One-Way Car Share Pilot Program – Fee Changes 

From: City Manager 

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt a 

Resolution approving an updated fee structure for the One-way Car Share Two-

and-a-Half-Year Pilot Program for Fiscal Year 2019 that will increase residential 

parking permit fees by 20 percent and decrease parking meter deposits by 14 

percent and amending Resolution No. 67,696-N.S. 

Financial Implications: See report 

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 

Action: Item 27 and 37 referred to the Agenda Committee for scheduling 

  

30. City Manager Referral: Expansion of the GoBerkeley Transportation Program to 

Increase Parking Efficiency (Continued from April 24, 2018) 

From: Councilmember Worthington 

Recommendation: City Manager Referral; Expansion of the GoBerkeley 

Transportation Program to allow private parking vendors to charge adjustable 

rates for parking spaces. 

Financial Implications: Minimal 

Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 

Action: Item held over to June 26, 2018. 

33. Amending Berkeley Municipal Code Title 6 and Title 14 to Include Electric 
Vehicle Parking in Municipal Off-Street Parking Facilities and on Public 
Streets 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: 
1. Adopt first reading of an Ordinance amending Berkeley Municipal Code Title 
14 Vehicles and Traffic by adding Chapter 14.46 Electric Vehicle Parking to 
manage their parking on public streets and amending Berkeley Municipal Code 
Chapter 6.24 Municipal Off-Street Parking lots to manage electric vehicle parking 
for off-street facilities, revise terminology to utilize “off-street parking facilities” in 
order to represent off-street lots and garages, and remove references to the City 
Epark card. 
2. Adopt a Resolution updating the schedule of fines for parking violations and 
late payment penalties to include fine and late payment penalty amounts for 
violating the laws set forth in the Ordinance, and rescinding Resolution No. 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/05_May/Documents/2018-05-29_Item_27_One-Way_Car_Share_Pilot_Program.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/05_May/Documents/2018-05-29_Item_30_City_Manager_Referral_Expansion.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/05_May/Documents/2018-05-29_Item_30_City_Manager_Referral_Expansion.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/05_May/Documents/2018-05-29_Item_33_Amending_Berkeley_Municipal_Code.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/05_May/Documents/2018-05-29_Item_33_Amending_Berkeley_Municipal_Code.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/05_May/Documents/2018-05-29_Item_33_Amending_Berkeley_Municipal_Code.aspx


Page 22 of 34 

65,812-N.S. 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 
Action: Moved to Consent Calendar. Adopted first reading of Ordinance No. 
7,601–N.S. Second reading scheduled for June 12, 2018. Adopted Resolution 
No. 68,466–N.S. 

May 15, 2018 

1. Modifications to BMC Chapters 9.49 and 13.44 for Activation of Downtown 
Berkeley BART Plaza 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,594-N.S. 
amending Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 9.49 (Food Vending on Sidewalks 
and Rights-of-Way) and Chapter 13.44 (Permits for Street Events and Block 
Parties) to facilitate the activation of Downtown Berkeley BART Plaza. 
First Reading Vote: Ayes – Maio, Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, 
Droste, Arreguin; Noes – None; Abstain – None; Absent – Worthington. 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Jordan Klein, Economic Development, 981-7530 
Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,594-N.S. 
 

44. Budget Referral: Replace Berkeley City Limit Signs to Read “Welcome to 
Berkeley, LOVE LIFE! Sanctuary City and Ohlone Territory” 
From: Councilmember Davila 
Recommendation: Refer to the FY19 (2018/2019) Budget Process an estimate 
of $3,000 to Replace Berkeley City Limit Signs to read: Welcome to Berkeley, 
LOVE LIFE!, Sanctuary City and Ohlone Territory. 
Financial Implications: $3,000 
Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120 
Action: Item held over to June 12, 2018. 

 

 

 

April 24, 2018 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/05_May/Documents/2018-05-15_Item_01_Modifications_to_BMC_Chapters_9_49.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/05_May/Documents/2018-05-15_Item_01_Modifications_to_BMC_Chapters_9_49.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/05_May/Documents/2018-05-15_Item_44_Budget_Referral_Replace_Berkeley.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/05_May/Documents/2018-05-15_Item_44_Budget_Referral_Replace_Berkeley.aspx


Page 23 of 34 

 
36. City Manager Referral: Expansion of the GoBerkeley Transportation Program 

to Increase Parking Efficiency (Continued from April 3, 2018) 

From: Councilmember Worthington 
Recommendation: City Manager Referral; Expansion of the GoBerkeley 
Transportation Program to allow private parking vendors to charge adjustable rates 
for parking spaces. 
Financial Implications: Minimal 
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 
Action: Item held over to May 29, 2018. 

 

April 3, 2018 

12. City Manager Referral: Expansion of the GoBerkeley Transportation Program 
to Increase Parking Efficiency 

From: Councilmember Worthington 
Recommendation: City Manager Referral; Expansion of the GoBerkeley 
Transportation Program to allow private parking vendors to charge adjustable rates 
for parking spaces. 
Financial Implications: Minimal 
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 
Action: Item held over to April 24, 2018. 
 

17.  Send Ford Bikes a 90 Day Notice to Provide Electric Bikes Based on 

Agreement, Refer the Transportation Commission to Look at Additional Share 

Bike Alternatives, and Electric Motor Scooter and Electric Bike Share Programs 

(Continued from March 13, 2018) 

From: Councilmembers Worthington 
Recommendation: Have the City Manager give Ford Bikes a 90 days notice to 
provide electric bikes based on their agreement with the city. Refer to the 
transportation commission to see if the city can look into alternative bike share 
programs, motor scooter share program, and electric bike programs to explore more 

4. Modifications to BMC Chapters 9.49 and 13.44 for Activation of Downtown 
Berkeley BART Plaza 

From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance amending Berkeley 
Municipal Code Chapter 9.49 (Food Vending on Sidewalks and Rights-of-Way) and 
Chapter 13.44 (Permits for Street Events and Block Parties) to facilitate the 
activation of Downtown Berkeley BART Plaza. 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Jordan Klein, Economic Development, 981-7530 
Action: Moved to Action Calendar. 1 speaker. M/S/C (Arreguin/Harrison) to adopt 
first reading of Ordinance No. 7,594–N.S. amended to remove the exception for the 
BART Plaza in Section 13.44.110.B. Second reading scheduled for May 15, 2018. 
Vote: Ayes – Maio, Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Droste, Arreguin; 
Noes – None; Abstain – None; Absent – Worthington. 

 



Page 24 of 34 

affordable and accessible rideshare programs for a more equitable and environmental 
friendly Berkeley. 
Financial Implications: Minimal 
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 

Action: Item removed from the agenda by Councilmember Worthington. 

March 27, 2018 

4. Amendments to the City Council Rules of Order and Procedure  

From: City Manager  

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution amending the City Council Rules of Procedure 

and Order relating to scheduling of unfinished business and the ability of the Agenda 

Committee to re-schedule agenda items, and rescinding previous amendatory 

Resolutions 68,305-N.S. and 68,309-N.S. Financial Implications: None Contact: Mark 

Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900  

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,362–N.S 

12. Budget Referral: Improved Lighting along the Ohlone Greenway through 

Cedar Rose Park  

From: Councilmember Maio 

Recommendation: Refer to the budget process the funding of improved lighting along 

the Ohlone Greenway through Cedar Rose Park.  

Financial Implications: $50,000  

Contact: Linda Maio, Councilmember, District 1, 981-7110  

Action: Councilmember Harrison added as a co-sponsor. Approved recommendation. 

18. Vision Zero  

From: Councilmember Droste, Mayor Arreguin, and Councilmembers Wengraf 

and Harrison  

Recommendation:  

1. Adopt a resolution in support of a Vision Zero policy to eliminate all traffic-related 

fatalities in Berkeley by 2028 through engineering, education, and enforcement 

strategies.  

2. Refer specific Vision Zero policy and implementation plan development to the City 

Manager and Transportation Commission.  

Financial Implications: Staff time  

Contact: Lori Droste, Councilmember, District 8, 981-7180  

Action: Approved recommendation and resolution as revised in Supplemental Reports 

Packet #2. Approved action below.  

1) Adopted Resolution No. 68,371-N.S. in support of a Vision Zero framework to 

eliminate all traffic-related fatalities and severe injuries in Berkeley through a safe 

systems approach, which prioritizes roadway design and policy strategies, 



Page 25 of 34 

complimented by proven education and enforcement strategies.  

2) Refer specific Vision Zero policy development to the City Manager and 

Transportation Commission. Recommendations could include, but are not limited to, the 

following:  Creation of a Vision Zero Task Force or Transportation Commission 

subcommittee that will engage staff across departments, including Public Works, 

Berkeley Police Department, etc.  Creation a Vision Zero Action Plan that utilizes data-

driven strategies to improve bicycle/pedestrian safety  Engaging community members 

in Action Plan development  Creation of a public website that outlines the Vision Zero 

Action Plan and offers a venue for public input. 

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2  

Item 18: Vision Zero  

44.Revised materials, submitted by Councilmember Droste, Mayor Arreguin, and 

Councilmembers Harrison and Wengraf 

March 13, 2018 

 
18. Budget Referral: Installation of Traffic Lights, HAWK Lights, or Stop Sign at 
California St & Ashby Ave 
From: Councilmember Bartlett 
Recommendation: Refer to the budget process the installation of Traffic Lights, HAWK 
Lights, or Stop Signs at the intersection of California St & Ashby Ave. If such an 
installation is approved in the budget process, direct the City Manager and 
Transportation staff to expedite said installation. Prior to installation of either Traffic 
Lights, HAWK Lights or Stop Signs in this location, a traffic study and public hearing 
must be held to consider the impacts of the proposed improvements. This item urges 
staff to expeditiously complete all steps necessary to install the improvements 
immediately after the budget referral is approved. 
Financial Implications: $10,000-$400,000 
Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, 981-7130 
Action: Councilmember Davila added as a co-sponsor. Approved recommendation. 

.  
20. Support for AB 1796 (Muratsuchi) to Remove Impediments to the 
Installation of Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 
From: Councilmembers Wengraf, Bartlett, Harrison, and Hahn 
Recommendation: Send a letter of support of AB 1796 (Muratsuchi) to 
Assemblymember Thurmond, State Senator Skinner and Governor Brown. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, 981-7160 
Action: Approved recommendation. 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/03_Mar/Documents/2018-03-13_Item_18_Budget_Referral__Installation.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/03_Mar/Documents/2018-03-13_Item_18_Budget_Referral__Installation.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/03_Mar/Documents/2018-03-13_Item_18_Budget_Referral__Installation.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/03_Mar/Documents/2018-03-13_Item_20_Support_for_AB_1796_(Muratsuchi).aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/03_Mar/Documents/2018-03-13_Item_20_Support_for_AB_1796_(Muratsuchi).aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/03_Mar/Documents/2018-03-13_Item_20_Support_for_AB_1796_(Muratsuchi).aspx


Page 26 of 34 

 
21. Referral to the Energy Commission: Strategies to Improve EV Usage 
From: Councilmembers Wengraf, Harrison, Bartlett, and Hahn 
Recommendation: Refer to the Energy Commission and the City Manager to research 
best practices to encourage and support the use of electric vehicles, and develop a draft 
EV Plan for Berkeley that City Council can adopt. The plan should include realistic goals 
supported by city-wide initiatives to improve EV infrastructure and incentivize EV use for 
Berkeley’s residents and workers. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, 981-7160 
Action: Approved recommendation. 

 
24. Send Ford Bikes a 90 day Notice to Provide Electric Bikes Based on 
Agreement, Refer the Transportation Commission to Look at Additional Share 
Bike Alternatives, and Electric Motor Scooter and Electric Bike Share Programs 
From: Councilmember Worthington 
Recommendation: Have the City Manager give Ford Bikes a 90 days notice to provide 
electric bikes based on their agreement with the city. Refer to the transportation 
commission to see if the city can look into alternative bike share programs, motor 
scooter share program, and electric bike programs to explore more affordable and 
accessible rideshare programs for a more equitable and environmental friendly 
Berkeley. 
Financial Implications: Minimal 
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 
Action: Item held over to April 3, 2018. 

 
31.  BRIDGE’s Berkeley Way Development: Funding and Public Parking 
Requirements 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Provide direction on the next steps to further the City’s partnership 
with the BRIDGE Housing Corporation (BRIDGE) and the Berkeley Food and Housing 
Project (BFHP) for the Berkeley Way development project.  Specifically: 
1. Direct the City Manager to work with BRIDGE and BFHP to finalize the design with 
the City’s preferred amount of public parking.  Staff have identified a single level of 
subterranean parking using puzzle lifts to provide approximately 200 spaces as the 
most financially feasible model. 
2. Direct the City Manager on how to respond to the remaining $15M gap in the 
homeless shelter and affordable housing budget that BRIDGE and BFHP have 
proposed for City funding.  At this point, the most feasible financing strategy that staff 
has identified which would yield sufficient funding is using the available $2.2M in the 
Housing Trust Fund and bond financing using increased business license revenues 
from Measure U1.  In consultation with the City’s bond counsel, staff estimates that the 
City could attain $15M in bond financing for an annual debt payment of approximately 
$2M for 10 years. 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/03_Mar/Documents/2018-03-13_Item_21_Referral_to_the_Energy_Commission.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/03_Mar/Documents/2018-03-13_Item_21_Referral_to_the_Energy_Commission.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/03_Mar/Documents/2018-03-13_Item_24_Send_Ford_Bikes_a_90_Day_Notice.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/03_Mar/Documents/2018-03-13_Item_24_Send_Ford_Bikes_a_90_Day_Notice.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/03_Mar/Documents/2018-03-13_Item_24_Send_Ford_Bikes_a_90_Day_Notice.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/03_Mar/Documents/2018-03-13_Item_31_BRIDGE%E2%80%99s_Berkeley_Way.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/03_Mar/Documents/2018-03-13_Item_31_BRIDGE%E2%80%99s_Berkeley_Way.aspx


Page 27 of 34 

3. Direct the City Manager on how to respond to the $1.5M in parking mitigation fees 
that will be required as a result of the Downtown Area Plan parking fee requirements 
because the project does not provide resident parking. 
4. Direct the City Manager on how to address the additional gap of up to $8.5M in the 
project that BRIDGE and BFHP initially proposed filling with 49 project-based Section 8 
vouchers from the Berkeley Housing Authority (BHA).  BHA staff indicated they will be 
unable to award project-based vouchers in 2018 because they are facing a budget 
shortfall. 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Jovan Grogan, City Manager's Office, 981-7000; Paul Buddenhagen, Housing 
and Community Services, 981-5400; Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 

Action: Moved to Consent Calendar. Approved recommendation as written below. 

1. Reaffirm the City Council May 30,2017 commitment to expedite BRIDGE/BFHP as a 
top priority for the Planning Department, and prioritize all City actions needed to meet 
Cap and Trade ( Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities) grant deadlines. 2. 
Refer to the Housing Advisory Commission to consider recommendation on use of a 
lease revenue bond for the creation of the Berkeley Way Development Project. 
Additionally, refer to the Housing Advisory Commission to consider increasing lease 
revenue bond amount in order to facilitate the start and advancement of other affordable 
housing projects, which could enable them to attract more investment and deliver 
affordable housing sooner. 3. Direct the City Manager to consult with our Bond Counsel 
to initiate the process of preparing a Lease Revenue Bond of 24.8 Million Dollars in 
order for the city to meet the current estimated funding gap and contribute the direct city 
portion to the Berkeley Way Development Project, 4. Direct the City Manager to provide 
project partners with specific new parking requirements to incorporate as much public 
parking as needed to separately finance the subterranean parking with no affordable 
housing funds going to the parking structure and no loss of affordable housing units. 
Staff have identified a single level of subterranean parking using puzzle lifts providing 
approximately 200 public parking spaces as the most financially feasible number. 5. 
Direct the City Manager to prepare a resolution waiving the parking mitigation fee for 
this project, due to the unique features of this project including providing permanent 
homeless housing with comprehensive wraparound services and provision of 200 public 
parking spaces. 

 

February 27, 2018 

9. Restricting the Number of Vehicles Being Parked on Our Streets 

From: Councilmembers Maio and Harrison 

Recommendation: Refer to the Transportation Commission to establish an ordinance that 

would prevent the parking of many multiples of vehicles on any given Berkeley street, or 

contiguous streets, by an individual owner. 

Financial Implications: None 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/02_Feb/Documents/2018-02-27_Item_09_Restricting_the_Number_of_Vehicles.aspx


Page 28 of 34 

Contact: Linda Maio, Councilmember, District 1, 981-7110 

Action: Councilmember Wengraf added as a co-sponsor. Approved recommendation. 

15. Residential Preferential Parking (RPP) Program Reform and Expansion 

(Continued from February 13, 2018.)  

From: City Manager  

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion: 1. Adopt second 

reading of Ordinance No. 7,589-N.S. amending Berkeley Municipal Code Title 14 to 

expand eligibility for Residential Preferential Parking to specified areas, allow 

Residential Preferential Parking in areas zoned Mixed Use Residential, authorize new 

meters in West Berkeley to manage commercial parking adjacent to residences in 

mixed-use areas, add a cap on the number of annual permits residents may purchase, 

and  

2. Adopt a Resolution raising permit fees to eliminate the Program’s operating deficit 

and rescinding Resolution No. 66,895-N.S. effective March 1, 2018.  

First Reading Vote: All Ayes. Financial Implications: See report  

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300  

Public Testimony: 3 speakers on second reading of ordinance.  

Action: M/S/C (Maio/Hahn) to: 1. Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,589-N.S. 2. 

Adopt Resolution No. 68,344–N.S.  

Vote: Ayes – Maio, Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Droste, Arreguin; Noes – 

None; Abstain – None; Absent – Worthington. 

16. Residential Curbside Electric Vehicle Charging Pilot Extension and 

Application Fee  

From: City Manager  

Recommendation: 1. Adopt a Resolution extending the Residential Curbside Electric 

Vehicle Charging Pilot (Pilot) through December 31, 2020, in conjunction with other 

efforts to plan for and increase electrical vehicle adoption. This Pilot, which allows 

Berkeley residents who lack off-street parking to install a space for charging an electric 

vehicle (EV) on their property or in the public right-of-way adjacent to their property, was 

originally approved by City Council on July 1, 2014, Resolution No. 66,707-N.S, for a 

three-year duration that concluded in December 2017; and 2. Conduct a public hearing 

and upon conclusion, adopt a Resolution establishing an administrative fee for 

processing Pilot applications to determine eligibility.  

Financial Implications: See report Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and 

Development, 981-7400  

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Droste) to: 1. Adopt Resolution No. 68,345–N.S. (Extending 

Pilot)  

Vote: Ayes – Maio, Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Droste, Arreguin; Noes – None; 

Abstain – None; Absent – Bartlett, Worthington.  

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Droste) to: 2. Adopt Resolution No. 68,346–N.S. 

(Administrative Fee)  



Page 29 of 34 

Vote: Ayes – Maio, Davila, Hahn, Wengraf, Droste, Arreguin; Noes – Harrison; Abstain 

– None; Absent – Bartlett, Worthington 

22a. Wildland Urban Interface Fire Safety and Fire Safety Education  

From: Disaster and Fire Safety Commission  

Recommendation: Approve specific measures described to support the 

recommendations to: 1. Strengthen existing fire safety measures utilized by the City of 

Berkeley for the safety and wellbeing of its residents. 2. Strengthen existing fire 

education outreach efforts to make contact with more citizens by using both digital and 

paper media platforms. Proposed measures include: 1. Programmable alert sirens; 2. 

Form a subcommittee or workgroup comprised of members of both the Disaster Fire 

Safety and Parks and Waterfront Commissions to review the efficacy of the Fire Fuel 

Chipper and Debris Program as it is currently implemented; 3. Take advantage of 

federal, state, local, non-profit or PG&E grant opportunities for fire mitigation and 

education; 4. Clarify when to initiate the Red Flag Nixle warning; 5. Temporarily 

suspend the addition of Auxiliary Dwelling Units (ADUs) in the Very High Hazard Fire 

Zone to review public safety issues especially relevant to the risk of WUI fires. Amend 

Section 23D.10 to incorporate greater public safety considerations to be met before 

issuing an Auxiliary Unit Permit (AUP); 6. Enforce California Vehicle Code 22514 for 

stopping or parking near a fire hydrant; 7. Adopt parking restrictions on narrow streets in 

the Berkeley hills fire zone; and 8. The aforementioned subcommittee or workgroup (#2 

above) will interface with Berkeley Path Wanderers Association to further encourage 

path restoration and maintenance with the goal of evacuation in mind.  

Financial Implications: See report Contact: Keith May, Commission Secretary, 981-

3473 

22b. Companion Report: Wildland Urban Interface Fire Safety and Fire Safety 

Education  

From: City Manager  

Recommendation: Recommend that City Council refer the specific operational items in 

the Disaster and Fire Safety Commission report to the budget process for consideration 

and review by impacted City departments.  

Financial Implications: See report Contact: David Brannigan, Fire, 981-3473 

Action: 2 speakers. M/S/C (Hahn/Wengraf) to:  

A. Commend the Disaster and Fire Safety Commission for their outstanding work in 

researching and putting together this set of recommendations. 

B.Take the following Action:  

1. To address long term fire, earthquake and disaster preparedness, response, and 

safety: Refer all of the Proposed Measures from the Commission’s report to the City 

Manager for review by the Fire Department, Public Works, Parks, Recreation & 

Waterfront and other affected departments to be considered and prioritized along with:  



Page 30 of 34 

 Councilmember Bartlett’s November 28, 2017 referrals,  

 Councilmember Hahn’s January 30, 2018 referrals, and 

 The January 2018 Conceptual Study to Underground Utility Wires  

All of these measures should be reviewed, evaluated and prioritized by the City 

Manager. Report the City Manager’s prioritization to Council.  

Commission Referral #5 revised to read: 5. Refer to the Planning Commission to 

consider Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) in the Very High Hazard Fire Zone to review 

public safety issues especially relevant to the risk of WUI fires. Amend Section 23D.10 

to incorporate greater public safety considerations to be met before issuing an 

Administrative Use Permit (AUP);  

2. To address the urgent firestorm risk demonstrated by the recent, devastating fires in 

Northern and Southern California: Direct the City Manager to report back to Council 

identifying the most important, financially feasible measures that can be deployed 

immediately or with relative speed and will have the greatest impact on prevention 

and/or on the safety of both people and property in the event of a catastrophic fire, 

earthquake or other disaster. Include general information about existing sources of 

funding for each measure and an estimate of additional funds that might be required, as 

well as potential funding sources. Vote: Ayes – Maio, Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, 

Wengraf, Droste, Arreguin; Noes – None; Abstain – None; Absent – Worthington. 

23. Conceptual Study for Undergrounding Utility Wires in Berkeley  

From: Public Works Commission, Disaster and Fire Safety Commission, and 

Transportation Commission  

Recommendation: That Council approve the following items: 1. Conceptual Study for 

undergrounding utility wires in Berkeley (the “Undergrounding Plan”). 2. Proceed with 

Phase 3 of the Undergrounding Plan. We want to emphasize the importance for 

Berkeley to actively participate in the current California Public Utilities Commission 

review of the Rule 20 program.  

Financial Implications: See report Contact: Nisha Patel, Commission Secretary, 981-

6300, Keith May, Commission Secretary, 981-3473, and Farid Javandel, Commission 

Secretary, 981-6300  

Action: 1 speaker. M/S/C (Maio/Wengraf) to accept the Conceptual Study for 

undergrounding utility wires in Berkeley (the “Undergrounding Plan”); and approve the 

commencement of further study in Phase 3 of the Undergrounding Plan as 

investigation, with amendments to Task 2 to read “Develop Financing Options,” and 

Task 5 to state “Consider implementation issues, barriers, and potential timing in the 

implementation of Phase 3.” Budget for staff assistance to be referred to the budget 

process. Request report back to Council after Task 5.  

Vote: Ayes – Maio, Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Droste, Arreguin; 

Noes – None; Abstain – None; Absent – Worthington. 

29. goBerkeley Parking Management Program - Recommended Adjustments for 

April 1, 2018  



Page 31 of 34 

From: City Manager Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 Action: 

Received and filed. 

February 20, 2018 

3. Conceptual Study for Undergrounding Utility Wires in Berkeley 
From: Public Works Commission, Disaster and Fire Safety Commission, and 
Transportation Commission 
Contact: Nisha Patel, Commission Secretary, 981-6300; Keith May, Commission 
Secretary, 981-3473; Farid Javandel, Commission Secretary, 981-6300 
Action: 4 speakers. Presentation made and discussion held. 

 

February 13, 2018 

6. Contract: Gehl Studio, Inc. for Conceptual Design, Feasibility Study and 
Related Services for the Center Street Plaza Project 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
contract and any amendments with Gehl Studio, Inc. for conceptual design, feasibility 
study and related services for the Center Street Plaza Project, for the period March 1, 
2018 through March 1, 2021, in an amount not to exceed $550,000. 
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $550,000 
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 

Action: Moved to Action Calendar. 5 speakers. M/S/C (Arreguin/Harrison) to adopt 
Resolution No. 68,323–N.S. amended to include that the new design will consider the 
conceptual plan created by Walter Hood and the public process to date.  
Vote: Ayes – Maio, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin; Noes 
– None; Abstain – Davila.  

 
30. Residential Preferential Parking (RPP) Program Reform and Expansion 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion: 
1. Adopt first reading of an Ordinance amending Berkeley Municipal Code Title 14 to 
expand eligibility for Residential Preferential Parking to specified areas, allow 
Residential Preferential Parking in areas zoned Mixed Use Residential, authorize new 
meters in West Berkeley to manage commercial parking adjacent to residences in 
mixed-use areas, add a cap on the number of annual permits residents may purchase, 
and 
2. Adopt a Resolution raising permit fees to eliminate the Program’s operating deficit 
and rescinding Resolution No. 66,895-N.S. effective March 1, 2018. 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 

Action: 9 speakers. M/S/C (Maio/Worthington) to include the severed portion of the 
ordinance in Section 14.72.090.A.1.  

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/02_Feb/Documents/2018-02-13_Item_06_Contract_Gehl_Studio,_Inc.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/02_Feb/Documents/2018-02-13_Item_06_Contract_Gehl_Studio,_Inc.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/02_Feb/Documents/2018-02-13_Item_30_Residential_Preferential_Parking.aspx


Page 32 of 34 

Vote: Ayes – Maio, Davila, Bartlett, Hahn, Wengraf, Droste, Arreguin; Noes – Harrison, 
Worthington.  
Action: M/S/C (Maio/Worthington) to:  
1. Adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,589–N.S. Second reading scheduled for 
February 27, 2018.  
2. Refer to the City Manager to explore options to amendments to the ordinance 
related to the cap on permits for situations such as caregivers, child care, and others.  
3. Continue the public hearing for recommendation #2 to February 27, 2018.  

Vote: All Ayes.  
 

January 30, 2018 

8.  Request that the City Manager Write a Letter to Navigation Service Providers 
to Help Mitigate Increased Neighborhood Traffic Volume and Unsafe Driving 
From: Councilmembers Wengraf, Maio, Droste, and Mayor Arreguin 
Recommendation: Request that the City Manager write a letter to navigation service 
providers such as Waze, Google, and Apple, reporting that their apps have led to an 
inappropriate increase in traffic volumes and speeds on many local residential streets, 
and requesting specific adjustments to assumptions that guide their algorithms. The 
goal of the letter is to help mitigate increased traffic volume on neighborhood streets 
and unsafe driving in the City of Berkeley. 
Financial Implications: Staff time 
Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, 981-7160 

Action: Approved recommendation.  

 
January 23, 2018 

6. Activation of Downtown Berkeley BART Plaza  

From: City Manager  

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to implement 

programs to activate Downtown Berkeley BART Plaza, including: 1) implementing a 

pilot program to permit two food vendors at Downtown Berkeley BART Plaza for one 

year, and 2) executing a contract with Downtown Berkeley Association for the 

production of arts and cultural activities at Downtown Berkeley BART Plaza in an 

amount not to exceed $50,000, and authorizing renewal of that contract for up to two 

years, for a total amount not to exceed $150,000. 

Financial Implications: See report Contact: Jordan Klein, Economic Development, 981-

7530  

Action: Moved to Action Calendar. 6 speakers. M/S/C (Worthington/Arreguin) to adopt 

Resolution No. 68,284–N.S. as revised in Supplemental Reports Packet #2 to reduce 

the contract amount to $10,000 per year for up to three years with the amendment in 

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/01_Jan/Documents/2018-01-30_Item_08_Request_that_the_City_Manager_Write_a_Letter.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/01_Jan/Documents/2018-01-30_Item_08_Request_that_the_City_Manager_Write_a_Letter.aspx


Page 33 of 34 

the Resolved clause to state “…with Downtown Berkeley Association for the non-

exclusive production of arts and cultural programming…” Vote: All Ayes. 

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2: 

Item 6: Activation of Downtown Berkeley BART Plaza  

59.Supplemental materials, submitted by Councilmember Worthington  

60.Carol Denney 

28. Budget Referral: Hopkins Street Corridor Traffic and Placemaking Study  

From: Councilmember Hahn Recommendation: Refer to the Budget Process the funds 

necessary to undertake a traffic and placemaking study of the 

Hopkins/Monterey/Sacramento corridor; specifically, Sacramento Street from the 

southern approach of Rose Street to Hopkins, Hopkins from Gilman Avenue to 

Sutter/Henry, and the Monterey Avenue approach to Hopkins from the North. The study 

should include all intersections and use a “complete streets” approach to identify 

improvements to be integrated into the paving and bicycle infrastructure work already 

scheduled for this area and to identify additional projects to be undertaken over time, 

with an emphasis on pedestrian safety, bike and vehicle safety and flow, community-

building and placemaking, parking, support for local businesses, green infrastructure 

and aesthetics. Include cost estimates, potential sources of funding and a proposed 

timeline for implementation of recommended improvements. Financial Implications: 

$200,000 Contact: Sophie Hahn, Councilmember, District 5, 981-7150 

Action: Approved recommendation. 

33. Extend Residential Preferential Parking Permit Program on Sections of Blake 

Street, Ashby Avenue, and Prince Street  

From: City Manager Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon its 

conclusion, adopt a Resolution amending Resolution No. 56,508-N.S. Sections 25C, 

25J and 25M by adding subsections to extend Residential Preferential Permit Parking 

on three city blocks of Blake Street, Ashby Avenue, and Prince Street.  

Financial Implications: General Fund - $2,543  

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300 Public Testimony: The Mayor 

opened the public hearing. 0 speakers. M/S/C (Maio/Worthington) to close the public 

hearing. Vote: All Ayes. 

Action: M/S/C (Worthington/Maio) to adopt Resolution No. 68,307–N.S. Vote: All Ayes. 

39. Replace Berkeley City Limit Signs to Read: “Welcome to Berkeley”, “LOVE 

LIFE!", “Sanctuary City” and “Ohlone Territory” From: Councilmember Davila and 

Mayor Arreguin Recommendation: Short Term Referral to the City Manager to replace 

Berkeley City Limit Signs to read: "Welcome to Berkeley”, “LOVE LIFE!", “Sanctuary 

City” and “Ohlone Territory”. Financial Implications: See report  

Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120  

Action: 8 speakers. M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to refer the item to the Transportation 

Commission and request that the Commission’s recommendation appear on the 

Council agenda no later than six months from January 23, 2018. Vote: Ayes – 



Page 34 of 34 

Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Arreguin; Noes – None; Abstain – None; 

Absent – Maio, Worthington, Droste. 

January  16, 2018 

2. Proposed City of Berkeley 2018-2019 Strategic Plan  

From: City Manager  

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting the proposed Fiscal Year 2018- 2019 

Strategic Plan as presented by the City Manager for City of Berkeley implementation. 

Financial Implications: None Contact: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager, 981-7000 

Action: 3 speakers. M/S/C (Arreguin/Worthington) to adopt Resolution No. 68,280–N.S. 

as amended below.  

 Add Gilman Interchange Project (environmental and design phase)  

 Add Milvia Street Bikeway in Section 1.5  

 Add language stating the priority of bike and pedestrian projects  

 Amend Goal #9 to read “Be a customer-focused organization providing excellent, 

timely, easily-accessible service and information to the community.” 

  Amend Goal #7 to read “Be a global leader in addressing climate change, 

environmental justice, and protecting the environment”  

Vote: Ayes – Maio, Davila, Bartlett, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin; 

Noes – None; Abstain – None; Absent – Harrison. 

 



	 	

	 	 																	 	
	 	 				 		12/20/18	

 
Project FAQs: Frequently Asked Questions  
 

Why is this project needed? 
The Gilman Street interchange on I-80 is a complex system of roadways at the boundary of Berkeley and Albany. It provides 
access to regional recreational facilities and popular businesses in both cities, including Golden Gate Fields and Target. The 
interchange has higher-than-average rates of vehicular injury and fatality collisions, including above average accident 
rates on several ramps. The interchange is identified a "high stress" environment for cyclists by the City of Berkeley.  

Why roundabouts? 
Roundabouts are proven to reduce serious accidents while providing increased capacity and improved traffic operations, 
as compared to a traffic signal with the same number of lanes. According to the Federal Highway Administration, installing 
a roundabout typically results in a 90% reduction in fatality accidents.1 Roundabouts also provide environmental benefits, as 
vehicles typically do not need to stop and idle. Roundabouts calm traffic and provide opportunities for landscaping and 
beautification within constrained space. 

What does this project provide?   
The project is designed to improve safety for all modes of transportation. In addition to the roundabouts, it includes a 
pedestrian and bicycle overcrossing over I-80 that will tie into new Gilman Street sidewalks and the existing Bay Trail; an at-
grade pedestrian and bicycle path through the interchange; and a two-way cycle track on Gilman Street that will flow 
from the pedestrian and bicycle overcrossing to a new signal at 4th Street. Finally, the project will include new bicycle 
"sharrows" connecting Gilman Street to Cordonices Creek, across Gilman Street. The roundabouts and pedestrian elements 
would be fully landscaped.  

Were traffic signals considered at the interchange?  
Yes. The viability of traffic signals was studied over the course of 5 technical reports prepared from1998 to 2014. All 
concluded that given the volume of traffic at the interchange and the number of intersecting roadways, an acceptable 
level of service could not be achieved with traffic signals. 

Aren't traffic signals safer for pedestrians?  
No. The pedestrian crossing at a roundabout is reduced to two simple crossings of one-way traffic moving at slow speeds. 
Pedestrians at a traffic signal crossing need to contend with vehicles turning right or left on green, vehicles turning right on 
red, and vehicles running the red light. The latter two often occur at high speeds, increasing the chance of injuries or 
fatalities to pedestrians. The design of the current roundabouts includes a new pedestrian/bicycle shared use path and 
dedicated pedestrian connections.  

How do cyclists use roundabouts? 
Cyclists have a legal right to ride on most roadways with motorized traffic. Roundabouts are like other intersections in that 
cyclists may either follow the rules of the road and maintain travel on the roadway, or use available paths and crosswalks to 
safely bypass the roundabout. Cyclists who choose to use the roundabout should always ride in the center of the lane. The 
current roundabout project includes a bike-only exit.  

																																																								
1	Federal Highway Administration, Safe Roads for a Safe Future, 2015. 



	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 12/20/18	

	

 

Will the project change existing vehicle access in the area?  
Yes. The current design of the roundabouts will change access to and from Eastshore Highway.  

The project would remove direct access to northbound Eastshore Highway from Gilman Street. Drivers on westbound 
Gilman and those exiting properties between Gilman and Harrison Streets (including Red-D-Arc and PS Public Storage) 
would take 2nd Street northbound one block to Harrison Street. A left turn on Harrison Street would then provide access to 
northbound Eastshore Highway.  

Access to southbound Eastshore Highway from eastbound Gilman Street or  I-80 would also change. Drivers would be 
routed via the eastern roundabout to Gilman and 2nd Streets, and would then turn right (south) onto 2nd Street. A right turn 
on Page Street would then lead to southbound Eastshore Highway.  
Will the project impact parking in the area?  
Parking would be converted from perpendicular to parallel on Harrison Street between Fourth and Fifth Streets, and there 
would be some loss of parking at the western end of Gilman Street, resulting from the extention of the Bay Trail. There would 
be temporary parking impacts during construction at Tom Bates Regional Sports Complex. Otherwise, parking would remain 
as is in the rest of the project area. 

Will the roundabouts accommodate trucks?  
Yes. The Gilman interchange is designed to accommodate all categories of California legal tractor-semitrailers: "Black" CA 
legal 65 FT trucks, "Green" STAA-56 FT trucks, and WB-67D double-bottom combination trucks.  

How have the public and affected landowners been involved?  
From March, 2016 to February, 2018 the project team held a series of  informational meetings, each targeting either public 
agencies, community organizations, area-wide or specific business owners, or the interested public. Feedback was solicited 
at each and incorporated as feasible into the project. The team has led ongoing meetings and coordination with the cities 
of Albany and Berkeley, as well as large and directly affected businesses such as Golden Gate Fields, Pacific Steel, Red-D-
Arc, and Target.  Individual property owners in the project area have been identified and contacted about project 
meetings. The January 15, 2019 Open Forum Hearing will be followed by future public information events. Project updates 
are available at https://www.alamedactc.org/i80gilman, and questions/comments can be sent to inquiry@i80Gilman.com.  

When will the project be built?  
The roundabouts are expected to be completed in late 2022/early 2023. Public release of the draft environmental 
document is a milestone in project development. Environmental certification is expected to occur in Summer2019. Following 
certification, project designs will be refined into construction documents based on further input from elected officials and 
the public. Construction is expected to begin in late 2019 or early 2020. 
Who is leading and funding the project? 
The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) is the Federal and State lead agency for environmental compliance. 
The Alameda County Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC) is the Implementing agency, and is working cooperatively 
with the cities of Berkeley and Albany to deliver the project. The primary funding sources of the project are State funds and 
Measure BB, the 2014 voter-approved extension of the transportation sales tax.   



CAPITAL PROJECT FACT SHEET PN: 1381000

The Alameda County Transportation Commission 

(Alameda CTC), in cooperation with the California 

Department of Transportation (Caltrans) and the cities of 

Berkeley and Albany, proposes to reconfigure the Interstate 

80 (I-80)/Gilman interchange, located in northwest Berkeley 

near its boundary with the City of Albany. The main 

component of this project is a pair of roundabouts at 

Gilman Street intersections on both sides of I-80, as well 

as new pedestrian and bicycle facilities at and near 

the interchange.

The purpose of the project is to increase safety and improve 

navigation, mobility and traffic operations on Gilman Street 

between West Frontage Road and 5th Street through the 

I-80 interchange. The project will reduce congestion, shorten 

queues and minimize merging and turning conflicts. In 

addition to the roundabouts, the project provides:

• A pedestrian and bicycle overcrossing over I-80

• An at-grade pedestrian/bicycle path through 
the interchange

• A two-way cycle track on Gilman Street, from the 
interchange to Fourth Street

• A new traffic signal at Gilman and 4th Streets

• A Bay Trail gap closure at the foot of Gilman Street

Interstate 80/Gilman Street
Interchange Improvement Project

PROJECT OVERVIEW

DECEMBER 2018

PROJECT NEED
• Higher than average rates of injury collisions

• Significant roadway deficiencies 

• Excess left turn vehicle queue lengths on Gilman Street

• Gap in the San Francisco Bay Trail

• Lack of safe pedestrian and bicycle routes to access 
recreation areas west of I-80

PROJECT BENEFITS
• Provides safe access for pedestrians and bicyclists

• Reduces congestion and improves mobility

• Simplifies traffic operations, navigation and mobility at 
the interchange

• Shortens queues

• Reduces turning conflicts and improves merging

• Improves local and regional biking facilities

(For i llustrative purposes only.)



Alameda County Transportation Commission    1111 Broadway, Suite 800    Oakland, CA  94607    510.208.7400    www.AlamedaCTC.org

Note: Information on this fact sheet is subject to periodic updates.

Overlay of the roundabouts at the project location.

Caltrans, Alameda CTC, cities of Berkeley and Albany, East Bay 
Regional Park District, East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD) 
and various bicycle groups

INTERSTATE 80 GILMAN INTERCHANGE IMPROVEMENTS

PARTNERS AND STAKEHOLDERS

STATUS
Implementing Agency: Alameda CTC
Current Phase: Project Approval/Public Review of Environmental 
Document – Initial Study/Environmental Assessment with Proposed 
Negative Declaration

• Project Study Report - Project Development Support (PSR-PDS) 
approved by Caltrans in October 2014

• Scoping open house held in April 2016

• Weekly/monthly workshops with stakeholders 

• Consensus on pedestrian overcrossing location and Active 
Transportation Program elements

• Draft environmental document in late 2018

• Public hearing in January 15, 2019

• Final project approval and environmental document in summer 2019

Conceptual rendering of the I-80 Gilman Interchange Improvements project
looking north along Eastshore Highway before Gilman Street.

Note: Information on this fact sheet is subject to periodic updates

COST ESTIMATE BY PHASE ($ X 1,000)

Planning/Scoping $794

PE/Environmental $5,180

Final Design (PS&E) $4,893

Right-of-Way/Utility $2,600

Construction $41,890

Total Expenditures $55,357

SCHEDULE BY PHASE1

Measure BB $12,000

Federal Accelerated Innovation 
Deployment Demonstration Program

$1,080

State Planning, Programming 
and Monitoring/Local/EBMUD

$354

State Active Transportation Program $4,152

State Transportation 
Improvement Program

$25,784

TBD $11,987

Total Revenues $55,357

FUNDING SOURCES ($ X 1,000)

1 Schedule subject to funding availability.

Begin End

Scoping Spring 2012 Fall 2014

Preliminary Engineering/
Environmental

Fall 2015 Summer 2019

Final Design Fall 2018 Summer 2020

Right-of-Way Fall 2018 Summer 2020

Construction Late 2020 Summer 2023

(For illustrative purposes only.)



WHAT’S BEING PLANNED
The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) and the Alameda 
County Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC) propose to improve 
traffic, pedestrian, and bicycle operations at the I-80/Gilman Street 
Interchange in the City of Berkeley by constructing roundabout intersections 
and pedestrian and bicycle facility improvements at and surrounding the 
interchange. Caltrans, the lead agency under the National Environmental 
Policy Act and the California Environmental Quality Act, and Alameda CTC 
have released an Initial Study/Environmental Assessment (IS/EA) with a 
Proposed Negative Declaration for the Project. 

OPEN FORUM HEARING  
You are invited to comment on the project, environmental document, 
and its findings at an Open Forum Hearing that will be  held on Tuesday, 
January 15, 2019 from 6 – 9 PM at the James Kennedy Recreation Center 
Community Room, 1720 8th Street, Berkeley, CA 94710. 

The environmental document is available for review at the locations listed 
on the back of this mailer.

Notice of Availability of Environmental Document and Open Forum Hearing for the  
Proposed Interstate 80/Gilman Street Interchange Improvement Project 

INTERCHANGE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

NORTH



Copies of the environmental document in alternate formats are available upon request.  
The environmental document and supporting technical studies are available for review at: 

California Department of Transportation, District 4, 111 Grand Avenue, Oakland, CA 94612

Additional copies of the environmental document are available for review at:

 » Berkeley West Branch Library - 1125 University Ave, Berkeley CA 94702
 » Berkeley Tool Lending Library - 1901 Russell Street, Berkeley, CA 94703
 » Albany Public Library - 1247 Marin Ave, Albany, CA 94706

Q u e s t i o n s  o r  C o m m e n t s ? 
Please submit your written comments via postal mail between December 28, 2018 and  
February 5, 2019 to:

Department of Transportation, District 4, Attention: Zachary Gifford 
111 Grand Avenue, Office of Environmental Analysis, MS-8B, Oakland, CA 94612 

(510) 286-5610, e-mail: Zachary.Gifford@dot.ca.gov 

Comments can be sent via email to: inquiry@I80Gilman.com

TTY users may request copies of the document in alternative formats through the California Relay Service at 711.

An electronic copy of the environmental document can be found online at:
www.dot.ca.gov/d4/envdocs.htm  or  www.alamedactc.org/i80gilman



Transportation Commission        D-4  
1/17/19 Agenda        Communications 
  
 
From: Javandel, Farid  
Sent: Tuesday, January 08, 2019 5:35 PM 
To: Javandel, Farid <FJavandel@cityofberkeley.info> 
Cc: Bright, Tamlyn <TBright@cityofberkeley.info> 
Subject: FW: Give input on electric vehicles in Berkeley 

 
Dear Transportation Commissioners, 
If you are interested in helping the City develop its first Electric Vehicle Roadmap please consider taking 
the brief survey at the link below or forward it to others you think may be interested. 
Best Regards, 
Farid 
 
Farid Javandel, PE, TE 
Transportation Manager 
City of Berkeley, Public Works, Transportation 
1947 Center Street, 4th Floor, Berkeley, CA 94704; 510-981-7061 (PH), 510-981-7060 (FX) 

Safety  |  Mobility  |  Sustainability 
 
From: Moore, Sarah M.  
Sent: Tuesday, January 08, 2019 5:07 PM 
To: Romain, Billi <BRomain@cityofberkeley.info>; Javandel, Farid <FJavandel@cityofberkeley.info> 
Subject: FW: Give input on electric vehicles in Berkeley 

 
Dear Billi and Farid, 
 
Please forward to the Berkeley Energy and Transportation Commissioners so that they can participate 
and spread the word: 
 

The City of Berkeley is developing its first Electric Vehicle (EV) Roadmap. Please help by taking a 
brief survey on how we can best support clean transportation options (including electric bikes, 
scooters, buses, and car sharing) in our community for ALL residents. The survey will be open 
until January 31, 2019. 

 
Thanks, 
Sarah 
 
Sarah Moore, AICP 
Sustainability Planner 
Pronouns: she/her/hers 
City of Berkeley | Energy and Sustainable Development 
1947 Center Street, 1st Floor | Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-7494 
smoore@cityofberkeley.info 

 

mailto:BRomain@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:FJavandel@cityofberkeley.info
https://www.opentownhall.com/portals/257/Issue_7014
mailto:smoore@cityofberkeley.info

	2019-01-17Agenda
	A-4 2018-10-18 Draft Minutes 
	B-1 Measure T1 Update Nov-Dec 2018 Presentation revised11-7
	B-1a Attachment 1 -T1 Project Schedule Funding and Project Management rev 11-7
	B-2_2018-11-15 PMP TC RPT
	B3 ElectOfficers- Ex Comms Manual 2018 ed
	B-4 Meeting Date Form 2019-Willow
	B-6a EST. TC Reso 55751 - 1991
	B-6b Reso 56766 - 1992 - No sunset
	B7-2018-19 TC Work Plan  10-18-18 (002)
	B7-2018-06-12 Special 01 CCPriority Referrals-10pg
	B-8 2018-06-21 Subcommittees and Liaisons Rev 62118
	B8b-Temporary Subcommittees-Ex Comm Manual
	C-2 2018 Council Summary Actions- FINAL
	C4-Gilman FAQ_Dec 31_2018_draftrevCSM
	C4-I-80_Gilman_Interchange_revised Fact Sheet
	C4-i80Gilman_Postcard_12-19-2018Finalapproved
	D4-City Survey on EV Roadmap

